
5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg
cf=j= @)*)÷*!

klRr;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf emnsx¿

;+:yfsf] ;fdflhs pQ/  bfloTj;“u ;DalGwt sfo{  qmdx¿

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no, h'DnfsL ;b:o ;'lgtf yfkfnfO{ 
;'Ts]/L vr{ k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no u?8f, /f}tx6sL ;b:o ktl;of b]ljsL 
5f]/L l;df s'df/LnfO{ 5fqj[lQ  k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no a'lt{jfª, afUn'ª4f/f afl9 klx/f]af6 kLl8t ;b:o rlg 
sfdLnfO{ /fxt vr{ k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v 

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no d+un;]g, c5fdsL ;b:o hdgfb]lj bdfO{sf] klt v8s axfb'/sf] 
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;~rfns
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;~rfns
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;~rfns
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;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no t'n;Lk'/, bfªsL ;b:o slb 3lt{sf] d[To" kZrft lghsf] 

klt 7u axfb'/ 3lt{nfO{ aLdf Ifltk"lt{ /sd k|bfg ub}{ j8fWoIf >L z';L/fd rf}w/L 

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no ;f+3'6f/, /fd]5fkåf/f ;b:o g/dfof sfsL{ v8\sfsL 
5f]/L ;lagf v8\sfsf] d'6'sf] eNj ck/]zgsf nflu /fxt k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no Oldlnof, slknj:t'sL ;b:o cf/tL 
b]lj ljZjsdf{ t/sf/L v]tL Joj;fo ub}{

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no ;f+km]au/, c5fdsL ;b:o piff zfxsf] 
5f]/f ;+:sf/ h+u zfxnfO{ 5fqj[lQ k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no d'lUnË, lrtjgsL ;b:o ;'s' 3n] 
s'v'/fkfng Joj;fo ;~rfng ub}{ 

;+:yfdf cfj4 n3'pBdLx¿n] ;~rfng u/]sf] kl/of]hgf

zfvf sfof{no /fdfk'/, ?kGb]xLaf6 ;~rflnt ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmddf 
;xefuL ;b:o tyf sd{rf/Lx¿

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no alGbk'/, l;/fxfåf/f ;~rflnt Jofj;flos 
t/sf/L v]tL tflnddf ;xefuL ;b:o tyf sd{rf/Lx¿ 

;+:yfåf/f ;+rflnt sfo{qmdx¿
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15lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

:juL{  o 8f= xl/  x/  b]  j kGt
;+:yfks, k"j{ cWoIf Pjd\ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns

8f= kGtn] g]kfndf /x]sf] cfly{s, ;fdflhs, ;fF:s[lts tyf dfgl;s ul/aL / ;f]af6 l;lh{t c;dfgtf sd 

ug{] Pp6} dfq dfu{ cfd hgtfdf ljQLo ;fIf/tf / Aoj;fo ;fIf/tf ;lxtsf] ljQLo kx'Fr k'¥ofpg' kb{5 eGg] 

dfGotf /fVg'x'GYof] . pxfF :j/f]huf/L / ;fdflhs hfu/0fsf] dfWodaf6 ljkGg ju{ tyf dlxnfx?nfO{  cfTdlge{/ 

agfpg'sf ;fy} pGgtzLn ;dfhsf] lgdf{0fdf dxTjk"0f{ of]ubfg k'¥ofpg] kl/sNkgfsf ;fy lbuf] tl/sfn] 

ljQLo tyf u}/ ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ug{, ;fdflhs r]tgf hufpg] cleofgdf hLjge/ cxf]/fq v6\g' eof] . 

g]kfndf n3'ljQ ;'?jft ug{] tyf ul/aL lgjf/0f g} cfkm\gf] hLjgsf] Ps dfq nIo agfpg' ePsf 8f= kGt 

n3'ljQsf lktfsf ?kdf ;'kl/lrt x'g'x'GYof] . 

hGd
@))!÷)^÷@#

:juf{/f]x0f
@)&@÷)%÷@!
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2 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

llggww{{gg  ppTTyyffgg  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  

-;+lIfKt kl/ro_ 

::yyffkkggff  llddllttMM @)%%.)&.!@ ut] 
gg]]kkffnn  //ffii66««  aa}}++ssaaff66  OOhhffhhttkkqqkk||ffKKtt  llddllttMM @)%%.!@.#) 
  
ss]]GGbb||LLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo                                zzffvvff  ssffooff{{nnoo 
lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8            s]Gb|Lo sfof{no======   ! 
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no                              If]qLo sfof{no=======   !) 
…lgw{g ejgÚ                                zfvf sfof{no========  !*% 
eujtLaxfn, gS;fn, sf7df08f} 
kmf]g g+M (&&–!–$%!#&!!, $%!#&($, $%!#*$) 
Email:  info@nirdhan.com.np 
Website:  www.nirdhan.com.np 
 

eeff}}uuff]]llnnss  ssffoo{{IIff]]qqMM g]kfne/L sfo{ ug]{ ul/ /fli6«o:t/sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf . 
b]zsf] ;a} && lhNnfx?df sfo{qmd ;+rfng eO/x]sf] . 

  

kk||bbffgg  uugg]]{{  ;;]]jjff  MM  
nn33''sshhff{{    MM ;fd"lxs hdfgLdf lagf lwtf] clwstd\ ?= &)),))).– ;Dd 

  lwtf] hdfgLdf clwstd\ ?= &)),))) .– ;Dd   
nn33''aarrtt  MM u|fxs ;b:ox? tyf ;j{;fwf/0faf6 . 
nn33''aaLLddff  MM n3'hLjg tyf kz'wg aLdf . 
lljjkk||]]iiff00ff  ;;]]jjff        MM ljleGg a}+s tyf ljk|]if0f sDkgLx?;Fusf] ;fem]bf/Ldf :jb]z leq / ljb]zaf6  

/sd 6«fG;km/ ;]jf . 
  

kkFF""hhLL    MM  
ccllwwss[[tt  kkFF""hhLL  MM ?= # ca{ %) s/f]8 . 
hhff//LL  kkFF""hhLL  MM  ?= @ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ & ;o %) .  
rr''QQmmff  kkFF""hhLL        MM ?= @ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ & ;o %) . 

llggww{{gg  ppTTyyffgg  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  
-g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf_ 

s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, eujtLaxfn, gS;fn, sf7df08f} 

kmf]g g+= (&&–!–$%!#&!!, $%!#*$) 
  

55llAAaa;;ff}}++  jjfflliiff{{ss  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeff  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  ;;""rrggff  
--kk||yydd  kk66ss  kk||ssffllzztt  llddlltt  M @@))**!!÷÷))((÷÷))@@__  

>L z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, 

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)! df a;]sf] #@@ cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf lgDg k|:tfjx¿df 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ 
a:g] ePsf] x'Fbf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ^& -@_ cg';f/ ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] hfgsf/L tyf 
pkl:yltsf] nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 .  

!!==  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeff  xx''gg]]  llddlltt,,  ;;ddoo  //  ::yyffgg  MM    

  ldlt M  @)*!÷)(÷@^ ut] z'qmaf/ -tbg';f/ hgj/L !), @)@%_ . 

  ;do M  laxfg !)M)) ah] . 

  :yfg M lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, gS;fn sf7df08f}+ .  

@@==  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeffddff  55nnkkmmnn  xx''gg]]  lljjiiffooxx¿¿MM    

--ss__  ;;ffddffGGoo  kk||::ttffjjxx¿¿MM  

-!_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"n] k|:t't ug'{x'g] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 
5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ . 

-@_ n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft, cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] gfkmf 
gf]S;fg lx;fa / gub k|jfx ljj/0f ;lxtsf] ljQLo ljj/0fx? tyf ;DjlGwt cg';"rLx¿ pk/ 5nkmn 
u/L kfl/t ug]{ . 

-#_ a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf ^# tyf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !!! cg';f/ 
cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] n]vfk/LIf0f ug{ n]vfk/LIfs lgo'Qm ug]{ / lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ . 

  --vv__  lljjzz]]iiff  kk||::ttffjj  

-!_ o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cGo O{hfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf Ps jf PseGbf al9 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ 
dh{/÷k|fKtL  ug{ pko'Qm b]lvPdf ;f] ;DaGwL cfjZos ;Dk"0f{ sfo{ cufl8 j9fpg 
;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clwsf/ k|Tofof]hg ug]{ .  

--uu__    lljjlljjww  MM    

##==  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeff  ;;DDaaGGwwddff  ccGGoo  yykk  hhffggssff//LLMM  

!= zz]]oo//  wwggLL  bbttff{{  llssttffjj  aaGGbb  //xxgg]]  MM 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf] nflu o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
z]o/ bflvn vf/]h olx ldlt @)*!÷)(÷!@ ut] ! -Ps_ lbg aGb /xg]5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh 
lnld6]8df ldlt @)*!÷)(÷!! ut];Dd sf/f]jf/ eO{ z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf sfod z]o/wgLx¿n] ;f] 
;efdf efu lng of]Uo x'g] Joxf]/f ;j}sf] hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"lrt ul/G5 .  

@= jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfpg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] cfk\mgf] z]o/ k|df0fkq, lxtu|fxL gDj/ 
jf kl/ro v'Ng] s'g} cflwsfl/s k|df0fkq clgjfo{¿kdf ;fydf lnP/ cfO{lbg' x'g cg'/f]w 5 . ;+ul7t 
;+:yfaf6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ePdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] cflwsfl/s kq clgjfo{ k]z ug'{ kg]{5 .  
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llggww{{gg  ppTTyyffgg  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  

-;+lIfKt kl/ro_ 

::yyffkkggff  llddllttMM @)%%.)&.!@ ut] 
gg]]kkffnn  //ffii66««  aa}}++ssaaff66  OOhhffhhttkkqqkk||ffKKtt  llddllttMM @)%%.!@.#) 
  
ss]]GGbb||LLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo                                zzffvvff  ssffooff{{nnoo 
lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8            s]Gb|Lo sfof{no======   ! 
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no                              If]qLo sfof{no=======   !) 
…lgw{g ejgÚ                                zfvf sfof{no========  !*% 
eujtLaxfn, gS;fn, sf7df08f} 
kmf]g g+M (&&–!–$%!#&!!, $%!#&($, $%!#*$) 
Email:  info@nirdhan.com.np 
Website:  www.nirdhan.com.np 
 

eeff}}uuff]]llnnss  ssffoo{{IIff]]qqMM g]kfne/L sfo{ ug]{ ul/ /fli6«o:t/sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf . 
b]zsf] ;a} && lhNnfx?df sfo{qmd ;+rfng eO/x]sf] . 

  

kk||bbffgg  uugg]]{{  ;;]]jjff  MM  
nn33''sshhff{{    MM ;fd"lxs hdfgLdf lagf lwtf] clwstd\ ?= &)),))).– ;Dd 

  lwtf] hdfgLdf clwstd\ ?= &)),))) .– ;Dd   
nn33''aarrtt  MM u|fxs ;b:ox? tyf ;j{;fwf/0faf6 . 
nn33''aaLLddff  MM n3'hLjg tyf kz'wg aLdf . 
lljjkk||]]iiff00ff  ;;]]jjff        MM ljleGg a}+s tyf ljk|]if0f sDkgLx?;Fusf] ;fem]bf/Ldf :jb]z leq / ljb]zaf6  

/sd 6«fG;km/ ;]jf . 
  

kkFF""hhLL    MM  
ccllwwss[[tt  kkFF""hhLL  MM ?= # ca{ %) s/f]8 . 
hhff//LL  kkFF""hhLL  MM  ?= @ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ & ;o %) .  
rr''QQmmff  kkFF""hhLL        MM ?= @ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ & ;o %) . 

llggww{{gg  ppTTyyffgg  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  
-g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf_ 

s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, eujtLaxfn, gS;fn, sf7df08f} 

kmf]g g+= (&&–!–$%!#&!!, $%!#*$) 
  

55llAAaa;;ff}}++  jjfflliiff{{ss  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeff  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  ;;""rrggff  
--kk||yydd  kk66ss  kk||ssffllzztt  llddlltt  M @@))**!!÷÷))((÷÷))@@__  

>L z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, 

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)! df a;]sf] #@@ cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf lgDg k|:tfjx¿df 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ 
a:g] ePsf] x'Fbf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ^& -@_ cg';f/ ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] hfgsf/L tyf 
pkl:yltsf] nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 .  

!!==  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeff  xx''gg]]  llddlltt,,  ;;ddoo  //  ::yyffgg  MM    

  ldlt M  @)*!÷)(÷@^ ut] z'qmaf/ -tbg';f/ hgj/L !), @)@%_ . 

  ;do M  laxfg !)M)) ah] . 

  :yfg M lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, gS;fn sf7df08f}+ .  

@@==  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeffddff  55nnkkmmnn  xx''gg]]  lljjiiffooxx¿¿MM    

--ss__  ;;ffddffGGoo  kk||::ttffjjxx¿¿MM  

-!_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"n] k|:t't ug'{x'g] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 
5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ . 

-@_ n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft, cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] gfkmf 
gf]S;fg lx;fa / gub k|jfx ljj/0f ;lxtsf] ljQLo ljj/0fx? tyf ;DjlGwt cg';"rLx¿ pk/ 5nkmn 
u/L kfl/t ug]{ . 

-#_ a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf ^# tyf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !!! cg';f/ 
cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] n]vfk/LIf0f ug{ n]vfk/LIfs lgo'Qm ug]{ / lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ . 

  --vv__  lljjzz]]iiff  kk||::ttffjj  

-!_ o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cGo O{hfhtkqk|fKt æ3Æ ju{sf Ps jf PseGbf al9 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ 
dh{/÷k|fKtL  ug{ pko'Qm b]lvPdf ;f] ;DaGwL cfjZos ;Dk"0f{ sfo{ cufl8 j9fpg 
;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clwsf/ k|Tofof]hg ug]{ .  

--uu__    lljjlljjww  MM    

##==  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeff  ;;DDaaGGwwddff  ccGGoo  yykk  hhffggssff//LLMM  

!= zz]]oo//  wwggLL  bbttff{{  llssttffjj  aaGGbb  //xxgg]]  MM 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf] nflu o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
z]o/ bflvn vf/]h olx ldlt @)*!÷)(÷!@ ut] ! -Ps_ lbg aGb /xg]5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh 
lnld6]8df ldlt @)*!÷)(÷!! ut];Dd sf/f]jf/ eO{ z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf sfod z]o/wgLx¿n] ;f] 
;efdf efu lng of]Uo x'g] Joxf]/f ;j}sf] hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"lrt ul/G5 .  

@= jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfpg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] cfk\mgf] z]o/ k|df0fkq, lxtu|fxL gDj/ 
jf kl/ro v'Ng] s'g} cflwsfl/s k|df0fkq clgjfo{¿kdf ;fydf lnP/ cfO{lbg' x'g cg'/f]w 5 . ;+ul7t 
;+:yfaf6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ePdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] cflwsfl/s kq clgjfo{ k]z ug'{ kg]{5 .  
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4 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

#= 5lAa;f} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] k|ltj]bg z]o/wgLHo"x¿sf] 7]ufgfdf x'nfs÷s'l/o/af6 k7fOg]5 . s'g} 
sf/0fj; pk/f]Qm k|ltj]bg k|fKt gug'{ x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] o; ;+:yfsf] j]j;fO6 

 df klg x]g{ ;Sg' x'g]5 . ;fy}, ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no gS;fn, 
sf7df08f}+ jf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ PgcfOPdla P; Soflk6n lnld6]8 nflhDkf6, sf7df08f}+ 
/ ;ef x'g] lbg ;ef :ynaf6 ;d]t k|fKt ug{ ;Sg' x'g]5 .  

$= ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;xefuL x'gsf] nflu k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgLx¿n] ;+:yfsf] csf]{ 
z]o/wgLnfO{ k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/L k|rlnt sDkgL sfg"gn] tf]s]sf] 9fFrfdf k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/d e/L 
;ef z'¿ x'g'eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufl8 sDkgLsf] ;lrjfnodf btf{ u/fO{ ;Sg' kg]{5 .  

%= Ps hgf z]o/wgLn] PseGbf al9 JolQmnfO{ k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ d's// u/]df k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ :jtM ab/ 
x'g]5 . t/, k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lbg] z]o/wgLn] cfkm"n] klxnf lbPsf] k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ ab/ u/]sf] Joxf]/f 
k|i6 pNn]v ul/ 5'§} lgj]bg lbO{ csf]{ z]o/wgLnfO{ k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm u/]df To;/L lgo'Qm k|ltlglw 
-k|f]S;L_ n] ;efdf efu lng kfpg]5g\ . o:tf] cj:yfdf cl3Nnf] k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ :jtM ab/ ePsf] 
dflgg]5 . k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ul/;s]sf] z]o/wgL cfkm} ;efdf ;xefuL x'g rfx]df lghn] lbPsf] k|ltlglw 
-k|f]S;L_ :jtM ab/ x'g]5 . 

^= aF'bf g++= $ / % adf]lhdsf sfo{ ug{sf] nflu s'g} ;fj{hlgs labf kg{ uPdf ;d]t sDkgLsf] ;lrjfno 
v'Nnf /xg]5 . 

&= PseGbf a9L JolQmx¿sf] ;+o'Qm gfddf z]o/ btf{ /x]sf] cj:yfdf ;j{;Ddtaf6 rog ePsf] Pshgf 
k|ltlglwn] dfq jf nut lstfadf klxnf] gfd pNn]v ePsf] JolQmn] ;efdf efu lng ;Sg]5g\ . 

*= gfafns z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 ;+:yfsf] z]o/ btf{ lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ¿kdf gfd btf{ eO;s]sf 
dxfg'efjx¿n] ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{, k|ltlglw lgo'lQm ug{ / dt ;d]t lbg ;Sg]5g\ .  

(= ;efdf efu lng] k|To]s z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] ;ef x'g] :yfgdf /x]sf] pkl:ylt k'l:tsfdf b:tvt 
ug'{ kg]{5 . z]o/wgLHo"x¿sf] ;'ljwfsf] nflu z]o/wgL pkl:ylt k'l:tsf ;ef x'g] lbg laxfg (M)) 
ah]b]lv v'Nnf /xg]5 .   

!)= ;fwf/0f ;efsf] yk hfgsf/Lsf] nflu sfof{no ;doleq ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no sDkgL ;lrjfnodf 
;Dks{ /fVg ;d]t cg'/f]w ul/G5 . ;fy} cGo hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;+:yfsf] j]j;fO{6 

  df ;d]t x]g'{x'g cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .  

$$==  zz]]oo//wwggLL  ddxxffgg''eeffjjxx¿¿nnffOO{{  hhffggssff//LLMM  

cf=j= @)&*÷&( / ;f]eGbf cufl8sf] cfly{s jif{x¿sf] nfef+z tyf af]g; z]o/ lng afFsL ePsf 
z]o/wgLx¿n] o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ PgcfOPdla P;= Soflk6n lnld6]8 nflhDkf6, sf7df08f}+af6 
lng' x'g cg'/f]w 5 . 

                                                                                                                
;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn]                                                                                                                  

sDkgL ;lrj 
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lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 
5lAa;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf  

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf6 cWoIf >L xl/ s[i0f kGtHo"sf] dGtJo 
 

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,  

o; lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] @^ cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;xeflu x'g' ePsf 
;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, ljleGg ;+:yfx¿af6 k|ltlglwTj ub}{ pkl:yt x'g' ePsf JolQmTjx¿, 
kqsf/ Pj+ cGo cfdlGqt dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf d]/f] JolQmut tkm{af6 xflb{s 
:jfut ub{5' .  

g]kfndf n3'ljQ sfo{qmdsf] ;'¿jft ug{] klxnf] JolQmTj, n3'ljQsf lktfsf?kdf lrlgg'ePsf :juL{o 
8f= xl/x/b]j kGtn] lng' ePsf] p2]Zoadf]lhd lj=;+= @)$( df ælgw{gÆ gfds u}/–;/sf/L ;+:yfsf] 
dfWodaf6 ;j{k|yd cf}krfl/s¿kdf lagf lwtf] n3'ljQ sfo{qmd z'¿ u/]sf] o; ;+:yfn] ljQLo ;+:yf 
:yfkgfsf] @^ jif{ k'/f u/]sf] 5 eg] lgw{g ;+:yfn] ;~rfng u/]sf] n3'ljQ sfo{qmd ;d]t hf]8\bf #@ 
jif{ k'/f u/]sf] 5 . ljleGg ptf/r9fjsf afah'b klg ljut @^ jif{b]lv oxfFx¿sf] ;xof]u, ;b\efj / 
;xsfo{s} sf/0f xfdL cfh o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] @^ cf} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ub}{5f}+ . o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfnsf] && lhNnfdf !*% j6f zfvf sfof{no :yfkgf u/L %%@ j6f :yfgLo txdf 
sfo{qmd lj:tf/ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,  

@% cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 lgo'Qm afXo n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! 
sf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj, ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg nufot sDkgLsf] jflif{s cfly{s 
ljj/0f oxfFx¿af6 cWoog ePs} xf]nf eGg] d}n] ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' . ljut jif{x¿df h:t} ljljw 
cf/f]x–cj/f]x, afXo k|lts'n jftfj/0fsf] ljr o; jif{ klg sDkgLsf] ;du| ljQLo kl/;'rsx¿ 
cfzfltt /x]sf] ;Ddflgt ;efnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fp5' .  

cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df shf{ hf]lvd gf]S;fgL Joxf]g]{ vr{ ?=*& s/f]8 %( nfv *) xhf/ ePsf]df 
cf=j= @)*)÷*! df shf{ hf]lvd gf]S;fgL Joxf]g]{ vr{ ?= $# s/f]8 #$ nfv ^) xhf/ ePsf] 5 . 
cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df v'b d'gfkmf ?=!^ s/f]8 (( nfv %* xhf/ ePsf]df cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! 
df v'b d'gfkmf ?=@^ s/f]8 ^@ nfv $* xhf/ ePsf] 5 . To;}u/L cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) df ;l~rt 
gf]S;fgL ?= #% s/f]8 &% nfv !% xhf/ /x]sf]df cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ;l~rt gf]S;fgL ?=@@ 
s/f]8 ( nfv $@ xhf/n] sdL eO{ ?=!# s/f]8 ^% nfv &# xhf/ ePsf] 5 . o;n] ;+:yfsf] 
gf]kmf÷gf]S;fg lx;fjdf ;'wf/ ePsf] b]vfpF5 .  

cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd ;+:yfn] s'n # nfv (( xhf/ &@# u|fxs ;b:odWo] ! nfv 
*& xhf/ ))! pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ ?=@% ca{ *) s/f]8 ^# nfv && xhf/ shf{ nufgL tyf ?= @) 
ca{ !* s/f]8 %# nfv $# xhf/ lgIf]k tyf art kl/rfng u/]sf] 5 . nufgL ul/Psf shf{sf] 
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;b'kof]lutf u/L shf{sf] lgoldt ls:tf c;'nLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpFb} pTkfbgzLn If]qdf shf{ 
nufgLdf hf]8 lbO{Psf] 5 .    

k|:t't cfly{s jif{sf] ;'¿jftb]lv g} n3'ljQ If]qx¿df C0fLn] a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lnPsf] shf{ 
ldgfxf nufotsf dfux¿ /fvL u/]sf] ljleGg k|sf/sf cfGbf]ngsf sf/0f ljQLo ;+:yfsf] shf{ 
c;'nLdf ;d:of b]lvPsf] 5 . h;sf] c;/ ;du| cf}Bf]lus, Joj;flos nufot ljQLo If]q k|efljt 
x'g hfFbf a}lsË sf/f]jf/df ;d]t o;sf] k|ToIf k|efj k¥of] . rfn' cfly{s jif{df ;d]t o;sf] k|efj 
/xg] cg'dfg ul/Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfn]  nfO{ :t/f]GgtL u/L sd ;dodf cfjZos ljj/0fx¿ kfpg ;lsg] 
Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . h;sf] sf/0f sd{rf/Lsf] bIftf / k|efjsf/Ltfdf a[lå x'g]5 egL ljZjf; 
lnPsf 5f}+ . o;af6 ;DalGwt zLif{ssf vr{x¿df sdL cfpg] / pTkfbsTjdf klg a[lå x'g] ljZjf; 
lnO{Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfsf] ;'zf;g kfngf ug]{ ;DaGwdf lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 k|fKt x'g] lgb]{zgx¿nfO{ k"0f{¿kdf 
;+:yfn] kfngf u/]sf] 5 . ;~rfns tyf sd{rf/Lx¿n] kfngf ug'{ kg]{ cfrf/;+lxtf k"0f{¿kdf kfngf 
ul/Psf] 5 . ;+:yfnfO{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;g kfngf ug]{÷u/fpg] ;Gbe{df ;~rfnsx¿sf] ;+of]hsTjdf 
ul7t ljleGg ;ldltx¿af6 k|fKt x'g] k|ltj]bgpk/ ;~rfns ;ldltdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L ;DalGwt 
lgsfonfO{ ;dodf g} hfgsf/L u/fpg] tyf Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] ul/Psf] 5 . cfGtl/s lgoGq0f 
k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg ljleGg ljlgod, gLlt, lgb]{lzsf tyf sfo{ljlwx¿ ;d]t th'{df u/L 
nfu" ul/Psf] 5 .  

u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ shf{ nufgL ug{ ;+:yfnfO{ shf{ tyf ;fk6 pknAw u/fO{ ;xof]u ug'{ x'g] a}+s 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ ;fy} bft[ ;+:yfx¿k|lt cfef/ k|s6 ub}{ cfufdL lbgdf klg ;x'lnot b/df 
cfjZos shf{ /sd pknAw x'+b} hfg] s'/fdf ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' . 

;efdf pkl:yt z]o/wgL Pj+ cltlyHo"x¿k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub}{ oxfFx¿af6 k|fKt lg/Gt/ 
;xof]u tyf ;b\efjsf nflu cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt cd'No dfu{bz{gsf nflu 
g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h nufotsf 
;Dk"0f{ lgofds lgsfox¿ Pjd\ shf{ ;fk6 pknAw u/fpg] ;Dk"0f{ a}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ wGoafb 
lbg rfxG5' . ;fy}, ;~rfns ;ldltsf] dfu{bz{g, sd{rf/Lx¿sf] cys k|of;, ldlxg]t / nugzLntf, 
z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, cGo z'elrGts Pj+ ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿af6 k|fKt ljZjf; Pj+ ;'emfjx¿ lg/Gt/ 
/ oyfjt /xg]df ljZj:t 5' . o; ;+:yfsf] ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿  
nufotsf ;+:yfx¿nfO{ wGoafb lbg rfxG5' .  

cGTodf, o; ul/dfdo @^ cf} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf oxfFx¿nfO{ k'gM :jfut ub}{ ;j}sf] pQ/f]Q/ 
k|ultsf] sfdgf ub{5' .  

 

wGojfb Û                                                                      -xl/ s[i0f kGt_ 

ldltM @)*!÷)(÷@^ ut] z'j|maf/ .                                                 cWoIf                                                        
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;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg 

ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{  @@))**))÷÷**!!    
cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,  

lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] o; 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt 
cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, cfdlGqt cltlyHo"x¿, ljleGg ;+:yfx¿af6 k|ltlglwTj ub}{ 
kfNg' ePsf dxfg'efjx¿, kqsf/ Pj+ cGo cfdlGqt dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
tkm{af6 xflb{s :jfut ub{5' .   

;+:yfks :juL{o 8f= xl/x/b]j kGtsf] g]t[Tj / cu|;/tfdf lj=;+= @)$& df ælgw{gÆ gfds 
u}/;/sf/L ;+:yfsf] dfWodaf6 g]kfnsf] u/LaL x6fpg] p2]Zon] g]kfnd} ;j{k|yd lagflwtf] n3'ljQ 
;]jf k|bfg ug{ z'¿ ul/Psf]df, u}/;/sf/L ;+:yfsf] dfWodjf6 ljQLo ;]jf lbuf]¿kdf k|bfg ug{ 
g;lsg] cg'ej eO{ lj=;+= @)%% sflt{s !@ ut] ljQLo ;+:yfdf kl/0ft ePsf] o; ;+:yfsf] d'Vo 
p2]Zo n3'ljQLo ;]jf dfkm{t ;dfhdf /x]sf ljkGg tyf u/La ju{sf] hLjg:t/ dfly p7fpg' 
/x]sf] 5 . g]kfndf o; sfo{qmdsf] ;'¿jft ug{] JolQmTj n3'ljQsf lktf :juL{o 8f= kGtn] lng' 
ePsf] ;f]radf]lhd g} xfd|f lqmofsnfkx¿ cufl8 a9fO{g] k|ltj4tf JoQm ub}{ ;+:yfsf] Joj;flos 
of]hgfcg';f/ ;+:yfsf] ;Ifdtf / lbuf]kgnfO{ cem alnof] agfpFb} u/LaLsf] /]vfd'lg /x]sf 
clwstd\ 3/kl/jf/nfO{ lbuf]¿kdf n3'ljQLo ;]jf k'¥ofpg] bL3{sfnLg nIo lnOPsf] 5 .  

ljut jif{b]lv sf]le8 kl5sf] ljZjJofkL¿kdf z'¿ ePsf] cfly{s dlGbsf] c;/ g]kfnsf] 
cy{tGqdf klg k/]sf] 5 . cfly{s dlGbsf] sf/0f C0fL ;+Vof tyf nufgLdf ;+s'rg h:tf 
cj:yfsf] ;fdgf ug'{sf ;fy} s]xL ;d"x tyf JolQmx¿n] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lj/f]wL sfo{qmd 
;~rfng u/L n3'ljQ sfo{qmddf cj/f]w >[hgf u/L u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ ljQLo ;]jf pkof]u ug{ 
afwf k'¥ofPsf] x'Fbf n3'ljQ sfo{qmddf g} k|ToIf k|efj kfg]{ sfo{x¿ e}/x]sf] / ;f]af6 o; ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] clwsf+z sfof{nox¿df shf{ k|jfx tyf c;'nL / lgIf]k ;+sng nufotsf ;]jf lj:tf/df 
k|ToIf c;/ kl//x]sf] 5 .  

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] g]kfn ljQLo k|ltj]bgdfg  cg';f/ 
k]z ul/Psf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgsf] ;fy} cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Ddsf] jf;nft, 
gfkmf–gf]S;fg lx;fa, gub k|jfx ljj/0f, lj:t[t cfDbfgL ljj/0f, :jMk"FhL  df ePsf] 
kl/jt{gsf] ljj/0f tyf ;f]xL cjlwsf] ljj/0fx¿ ;f];Fu ;DalGwt cg';"rLx¿ tyf ;+:yfsf] 
ljleGg lqmofsnfkx¿ cg'df]bgsf nflu of] ;fwf/0f ;ef ;dIf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .  

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, o; ;Ddflgt ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf]tkm{af6 ut cfly{s jif{ 
@)*)÷*! df ;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf pknAwL, ;fdgf ug'{ k/]sf r'gf}tL / rfn' cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ sf] nflu lnOPsf /0fgLlt tyf sfo{qmd nufotsf ljljw ljifox¿ k]z ub{5f}+ .  

--ss__  lljjuutt  jjiiff{{ssff]]  ssff//ff]]jjff//ssff]]  ll;;++xxffjjnnff]]ssggMM    

cfkm\gf] :yfkgfsfnb]lv g} ;+:yf u/La tyf ljkGg dlxnfx¿sf] 3/b}nf]df k'u]/ n3'ljQ 
sfo{qmd dfkm{t pgLx¿sf] hLjg:t/ psf:g] sfo{df cgj/t ¿kdf k|of;/t 5 . ;+:yfn] 
cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] cGt;Dddf b]zsf] && lhNnfsf !*% zfvf sfof{nox¿sf @@ 

2 
 

;b'kof]lutf u/L shf{sf] lgoldt ls:tf c;'nLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpFb} pTkfbgzLn If]qdf shf{ 
nufgLdf hf]8 lbO{Psf] 5 .    

k|:t't cfly{s jif{sf] ;'¿jftb]lv g} n3'ljQ If]qx¿df C0fLn] a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lnPsf] shf{ 
ldgfxf nufotsf dfux¿ /fvL u/]sf] ljleGg k|sf/sf cfGbf]ngsf sf/0f ljQLo ;+:yfsf] shf{ 
c;'nLdf ;d:of b]lvPsf] 5 . h;sf] c;/ ;du| cf}Bf]lus, Joj;flos nufot ljQLo If]q k|efljt 
x'g hfFbf a}lsË sf/f]jf/df ;d]t o;sf] k|ToIf k|efj k¥of] . rfn' cfly{s jif{df ;d]t o;sf] k|efj 
/xg] cg'dfg ul/Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfn]  nfO{ :t/f]GgtL u/L sd ;dodf cfjZos ljj/0fx¿ kfpg ;lsg] 
Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . h;sf] sf/0f sd{rf/Lsf] bIftf / k|efjsf/Ltfdf a[lå x'g]5 egL ljZjf; 
lnPsf 5f}+ . o;af6 ;DalGwt zLif{ssf vr{x¿df sdL cfpg] / pTkfbsTjdf klg a[lå x'g] ljZjf; 
lnO{Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfsf] ;'zf;g kfngf ug]{ ;DaGwdf lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 k|fKt x'g] lgb]{zgx¿nfO{ k"0f{¿kdf 
;+:yfn] kfngf u/]sf] 5 . ;~rfns tyf sd{rf/Lx¿n] kfngf ug'{ kg]{ cfrf/;+lxtf k"0f{¿kdf kfngf 
ul/Psf] 5 . ;+:yfnfO{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;g kfngf ug]{÷u/fpg] ;Gbe{df ;~rfnsx¿sf] ;+of]hsTjdf 
ul7t ljleGg ;ldltx¿af6 k|fKt x'g] k|ltj]bgpk/ ;~rfns ;ldltdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L ;DalGwt 
lgsfonfO{ ;dodf g} hfgsf/L u/fpg] tyf Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] ul/Psf] 5 . cfGtl/s lgoGq0f 
k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg ljleGg ljlgod, gLlt, lgb]{lzsf tyf sfo{ljlwx¿ ;d]t th'{df u/L 
nfu" ul/Psf] 5 .  

u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ shf{ nufgL ug{ ;+:yfnfO{ shf{ tyf ;fk6 pknAw u/fO{ ;xof]u ug'{ x'g] a}+s 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ ;fy} bft[ ;+:yfx¿k|lt cfef/ k|s6 ub}{ cfufdL lbgdf klg ;x'lnot b/df 
cfjZos shf{ /sd pknAw x'+b} hfg] s'/fdf ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' . 

;efdf pkl:yt z]o/wgL Pj+ cltlyHo"x¿k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub}{ oxfFx¿af6 k|fKt lg/Gt/ 
;xof]u tyf ;b\efjsf nflu cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt cd'No dfu{bz{gsf nflu 
g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h nufotsf 
;Dk"0f{ lgofds lgsfox¿ Pjd\ shf{ ;fk6 pknAw u/fpg] ;Dk"0f{ a}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ wGoafb 
lbg rfxG5' . ;fy}, ;~rfns ;ldltsf] dfu{bz{g, sd{rf/Lx¿sf] cys k|of;, ldlxg]t / nugzLntf, 
z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, cGo z'elrGts Pj+ ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿af6 k|fKt ljZjf; Pj+ ;'emfjx¿ lg/Gt/ 
/ oyfjt /xg]df ljZj:t 5' . o; ;+:yfsf] ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿  
nufotsf ;+:yfx¿nfO{ wGoafb lbg rfxG5' .  

cGTodf, o; ul/dfdo @^ cf} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf oxfFx¿nfO{ k'gM :jfut ub}{ ;j}sf] pQ/f]Q/ 
k|ultsf] sfdgf ub{5' .  

 

wGojfb Û                                                                      -xl/ s[i0f kGt_ 

ldltM @)*!÷)(÷@^ ut] z'j|maf/ .                                                 cWoIf                                                        
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xhf/ &#* s]Gb| dfkm{t\ # nfv (( xhf/ &@# kl/jf/nfO{ 3/b}nf]df ;/n / ;xh lsl;dn] 
ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] 5 .   

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ljQLo ;+:yfsf pknlAwx¿ a'Fbfut¿kdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .  

--!!__  kk""FFhhLLMM    

;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?=@ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ &%) /x]sf] 5 .  

--@@__  ssffoo{{qqmmdd  ttyyff  ssff//ff]]jjff//  lljj::ttff//MM  

;+:yfsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df u|fxs ;+Vof # xhf/ ( ;o ^# n] sdL eO{ jiff{Gtdf 
s'n u|fxs ;+Vof # nfv (( xhf/ &@# k'u]sf] 5 .   

cl3Nnf] jif{ nufgLdf /x]sf] s'n shf{ ?=@% ca{ &$ s/f]8 (! nfv $$ xhf/ /x]sf]df 
;dLIff jif{df ?=% s/f]8 &@ nfv #@ xhf/n] a[l4 eO{ s'n shf{ ?=@% ca{ *) s/f]8 
^# nfv && xhf/ k'u]sf] 5 .    

cl3Nnf] cfly{s jif{;Dd lgIf]k tyf art ?= !( ca{ !! s/f]8 $@ nfv (# xhf/ 
/x]sf]df ;dLIff jif{df ?= ! ca{ ^ s/f]8 (* nfv & xhf/n] j[l4 eO{ ?= @) ca{ !* 
s/f]8 %@ nfv $# xhf/ k'u]sf]5 .    

  --##__    ssdd{{rrff//LL  ttffllnndd  ttyyff  jj[[llQQ  lljjssff;;MM    

;+:yfdf @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf s'n !,!@@ hgf -:yfoL ^@# hgf / s/f/sf $(( hgf 
;lxt_ sd{rf/Lx¿ ;]jf/t 5g\ . ;+:yfsf] ;kmntf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;]jfsf] 
u'0f:t/df lge{/ /xg] x'Fbf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 5gf}6, ;¿jf, a9'jf Pjd\ c:yfoL 
sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ qmdzM :yfoL u/fpFb} n}hfg] / sd{rf/Lx?sf] j[lQ ljsf;df ;+:yfn] 
pko'Qm gLlt agfO{ k|efjsf/L 9Fun] sfof{Gjog ub{} cfO{/x]sf] 5 .   

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d]¿b08sf] ¿kdf /x]sf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] j[lQ ljsf;sf] nflu 
tflndsf] dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf /x]sf] x'G5 . ;Ifd Pj+ of]Uo sd{rf/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
dxTjk"0f{ ;DklQ ePsf]n] k|ljlwdf cfPsf] kl/jt{g, sfo{If]qsf] dfucg'¿k tflndsf] 
Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . tflndsf pknlAwnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg ;+:yfdf sfo{/t cg'ejL 
/ jl/i7 sd{rf/Laf6 cfGtl/s tflnd ;~rfngsf] Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . 
cfjZostfcg';f/ sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ afXo tflnddf ;d]t ;xefuL u/fO{Psf] 5 . cfly{s 
jif{ @)*)÷*! df cfkm}n] cfof]hgf u/]sf] / /fli6«o tyf cGt{/fli6«o :t/df cfof]lht 
;d]t u/L s'n !,^$& hgf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ tflnddf ;xefuL u/fPsf] 5 . rfn' 
cf=j=df klg sd{rf/L tflndnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /flvPsf] 5 .  

--$$__  ;;++::yyffuutt  ;;''zzff;;ggMM    

;+:yfdf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g  sfod /fVg] ljifodf ;~rfns 
;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg ;b}j k|ltj¢ /x]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿ tyf 
sd{rf/Lx¿n] g]kfn /fi6« a}+s tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 tf]lsPsf cfr/0f;DaGwL 
Joj:yfx¿sf] k"0f{ kl/kfngf u/]sf 5g\ . ;~rfns ;ldltsf sfd sf/jfxLx¿ tyf 
;+:yfsf cGo lqmofsnfkx¿ kf/bzL{¿kdf ;~rfng u/L ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] ljsf; 
ug{ Pj+ ;f]sf] cg'e"lt u/fpg ;+:yf lqmofzLn 5 . 
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xhf/ &#* s]Gb| dfkm{t\ # nfv (( xhf/ &@# kl/jf/nfO{ 3/b}nf]df ;/n / ;xh lsl;dn] 
ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] 5 .   

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ljQLo ;+:yfsf pknlAwx¿ a'Fbfut¿kdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .  

--!!__  kk""FFhhLLMM    

;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?=@ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ &%) /x]sf] 5 .  

--@@__  ssffoo{{qqmmdd  ttyyff  ssff//ff]]jjff//  lljj::ttff//MM  

;+:yfsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df u|fxs ;+Vof # xhf/ ( ;o ^# n] sdL eO{ jiff{Gtdf 
s'n u|fxs ;+Vof # nfv (( xhf/ &@# k'u]sf] 5 .   

cl3Nnf] jif{ nufgLdf /x]sf] s'n shf{ ?=@% ca{ &$ s/f]8 (! nfv $$ xhf/ /x]sf]df 
;dLIff jif{df ?=% s/f]8 &@ nfv #@ xhf/n] a[l4 eO{ s'n shf{ ?=@% ca{ *) s/f]8 
^# nfv && xhf/ k'u]sf] 5 .    

cl3Nnf] cfly{s jif{;Dd lgIf]k tyf art ?= !( ca{ !! s/f]8 $@ nfv (# xhf/ 
/x]sf]df ;dLIff jif{df ?= ! ca{ ^ s/f]8 (* nfv & xhf/n] j[l4 eO{ ?= @) ca{ !* 
s/f]8 %@ nfv $# xhf/ k'u]sf]5 .    

  --##__    ssdd{{rrff//LL  ttffllnndd  ttyyff  jj[[llQQ  lljjssff;;MM    

;+:yfdf @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf s'n !,!@@ hgf -:yfoL ^@# hgf / s/f/sf $(( hgf 
;lxt_ sd{rf/Lx¿ ;]jf/t 5g\ . ;+:yfsf] ;kmntf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;]jfsf] 
u'0f:t/df lge{/ /xg] x'Fbf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 5gf}6, ;¿jf, a9'jf Pjd\ c:yfoL 
sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ qmdzM :yfoL u/fpFb} n}hfg] / sd{rf/Lx?sf] j[lQ ljsf;df ;+:yfn] 
pko'Qm gLlt agfO{ k|efjsf/L 9Fun] sfof{Gjog ub{} cfO{/x]sf] 5 .   

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d]¿b08sf] ¿kdf /x]sf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] j[lQ ljsf;sf] nflu 
tflndsf] dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf /x]sf] x'G5 . ;Ifd Pj+ of]Uo sd{rf/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
dxTjk"0f{ ;DklQ ePsf]n] k|ljlwdf cfPsf] kl/jt{g, sfo{If]qsf] dfucg'¿k tflndsf] 
Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . tflndsf pknlAwnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg ;+:yfdf sfo{/t cg'ejL 
/ jl/i7 sd{rf/Laf6 cfGtl/s tflnd ;~rfngsf] Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . 
cfjZostfcg';f/ sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ afXo tflnddf ;d]t ;xefuL u/fO{Psf] 5 . cfly{s 
jif{ @)*)÷*! df cfkm}n] cfof]hgf u/]sf] / /fli6«o tyf cGt{/fli6«o :t/df cfof]lht 
;d]t u/L s'n !,^$& hgf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ tflnddf ;xefuL u/fPsf] 5 . rfn' 
cf=j=df klg sd{rf/L tflndnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /flvPsf] 5 .  

--$$__  ;;++::yyffuutt  ;;''zzff;;ggMM    

;+:yfdf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g  sfod /fVg] ljifodf ;~rfns 
;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg ;b}j k|ltj¢ /x]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿ tyf 
sd{rf/Lx¿n] g]kfn /fi6« a}+s tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 tf]lsPsf cfr/0f;DaGwL 
Joj:yfx¿sf] k"0f{ kl/kfngf u/]sf 5g\ . ;~rfns ;ldltsf sfd sf/jfxLx¿ tyf 
;+:yfsf cGo lqmofsnfkx¿ kf/bzL{¿kdf ;~rfng u/L ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] ljsf; 
ug{ Pj+ ;f]sf] cg'e"lt u/fpg ;+:yf lqmofzLn 5 . 
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--%%__  uu||ffxxss  ;;++//IIff00ff,,  ;;ffddffllhhss  hhjjffkkmmbb]]llxxttff  ttyyff  nn33''ppBBddzzLLnnttff  lljjssff;;  //  lljj::ttff//MM  

;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:ox¿sf] lbuf]kgfnfO{ Wofgdf /fvL ;b:ox¿nfO{ n3' pBdLaf6 ;fgf 
pBdL agfpg] p2]Zosf ;fy ljleGg zfvf sfof{nox¿df ;DalGwt ljz]if1x¿af6 
;Lk÷pBdzLntf ljsf; tflnd k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df u|fxsx¿sf] u'0f:t/Lo Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu ;ft} 
k|b]zdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] ;Lk ljsf; tflnddf %!! hgf u|fxs ;b:ox¿ nfeflGjt 
ePsf 5g\ . tflndaf6 ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox¿nfO{ pBdzLntf ljsf;df d2t k'u]sf] 
5 . 

;+:yfn] k|fs[lts, b}jL k|sf]k tyf ;d:ofdf k/]sf pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ Joj;fo 
k'g{:yfkgf ug{ cf=j= @)*)÷*! df k|fs[lts÷b}jL k|sf]k, cfunflu, af9L, klx/f] 
xfjfx'/L cflbaf6 k|efljt &!$ hgf pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ Joj;fo k'g{:yfkgfsf] nflu 
?=@,^#$,))).– -cIf¿kL 5lAa; nfv rf}lt; xhf/_ /sd /fxt÷cg'bfg k|bfg ul/Psf] 
5 .   

;+:yfn] u|fxs÷;b:ox¿ ;'Ts]/L x'Fbf kf]if0fo'Qm vfgfsf] nflu cf=j= @)*)÷*! df 
!,%(# hgf ;'Ts]/L ePsf u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ s'n ?=#,!*^,))).- -cIf¿kL PstL; 
nfv 5of;L xhf/_ k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] ;dfhk|ltsf] hjfkmb]lxtfnfO{ dgg u/L pRr lzIffdf lg/Gt/tf tyf ;kmntfsf] 
nflu yk k|f]T;fxg, xf};nf ldNg] ck]Iff;lxt ;ft} k|b]zsf !*% j6f zfvf 
sfof{nox¿dfkm{t\ ;+:yfdf cfj4 u|fxs ;b:ox¿sf 5f]/f / 5f]/LdWo]jf6 k|To]s jif{ !@ 
sIff plQ0f{ u/]sf 5fq / 5fqfnfO{ 5fqj[lQ k|bfg ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! 
df ##% hgf 5fq÷5fqfx¿nfO{ o:tf] 5fqj[lQ:j¿k ?=#,#%),))).– -cIf¿kL t]QL; 
nfv krf; xhf/_  k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

;+:yfn] cfkm\gf u|fxs÷;b:o, u|fxs÷;b:osf klt tyf 5f]/f5f]/LnfO{ SofG;/, d[uf}nf 
km]n eO{ 8fonfOl;;, d'6'sf] eNjsf] ;Nolj|mof, nfdf] ;dob]lv sf]dfdf pkrf//t, 
x[bo3ftsf sf/0f cfhLjg czQm, jf]gDof/f] k|Tof/f]k0f, Kof/fnfO{l;; eO{ :yfoL 
czQmtf, b'j} cfFvfsf] Hof]lt u'd]sf] / kf7]3/sf] ;d:of eO{ zNolqmof ug'{ k/]sf u|fxs 
;b:ox¿nfO{ :jf:Yo pkrf/df ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] p2]Zon] cfly{s ;xfotf /sd pknAw 
u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df pNn]lvt k|s[ltsf] /f]u nfu]sf @(# hgf 
u|fxs÷;b:o, klt, tyf 5f]/f5f]/LnfO{ uDeL/ k|s[ltsf] /f]u nfu]sf]n] ?=@,(@),))).–    
-cIf¿kL pgfGtL; nfv aL; xhf/_ pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] pBdL ;b:o tyf kltsf] d[To' x'bfF aLdf sDkgL;Fu ;xsfo{ u/L shf{sf] 
cltef/af6 d'Qm u/fO{ kl/jf/sf] cfly{s cj:yfdf ;Gt'ng sfod ug{ aLdf Ifltk"lt{ 
/sd k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . cf=j @)*)÷*! df !,*&$ hgf pBdL -klt;d]t_ sf] d[To' 
ePsf]n] o; k|sf/sf] aLdf Ifltk"lt{ jfkt s'n ?= @@^,(@!,%*^.– -cIf¿kL afO; s/f]8 
pgfG;Q/L nfv PssfO; xhf/ kfFr ;o 5of;L_  k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .   

--^̂__  lljjQQLLoo  ;;ffIIff//ttff  cclleeooffggMM  

;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:osf] cfjZostf tyf rfxgfcg';f/sf ljQLo tyf u}/ljQLo ;]jf 
pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;ft} k|b]zsf !,$#$ hgf 
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xhf/ &#* s]Gb| dfkm{t\ # nfv (( xhf/ &@# kl/jf/nfO{ 3/b}nf]df ;/n / ;xh lsl;dn] 
ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] 5 .   

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ljQLo ;+:yfsf pknlAwx¿ a'Fbfut¿kdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .  

--!!__  kk""FFhhLLMM    

;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?=@ ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ &%) /x]sf] 5 .  

--@@__  ssffoo{{qqmmdd  ttyyff  ssff//ff]]jjff//  lljj::ttff//MM  

;+:yfsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df u|fxs ;+Vof # xhf/ ( ;o ^# n] sdL eO{ jiff{Gtdf 
s'n u|fxs ;+Vof # nfv (( xhf/ &@# k'u]sf] 5 .   

cl3Nnf] jif{ nufgLdf /x]sf] s'n shf{ ?=@% ca{ &$ s/f]8 (! nfv $$ xhf/ /x]sf]df 
;dLIff jif{df ?=% s/f]8 &@ nfv #@ xhf/n] a[l4 eO{ s'n shf{ ?=@% ca{ *) s/f]8 
^# nfv && xhf/ k'u]sf] 5 .    

cl3Nnf] cfly{s jif{;Dd lgIf]k tyf art ?= !( ca{ !! s/f]8 $@ nfv (# xhf/ 
/x]sf]df ;dLIff jif{df ?= ! ca{ ^ s/f]8 (* nfv & xhf/n] j[l4 eO{ ?= @) ca{ !* 
s/f]8 %@ nfv $# xhf/ k'u]sf]5 .    

  --##__    ssdd{{rrff//LL  ttffllnndd  ttyyff  jj[[llQQ  lljjssff;;MM    

;+:yfdf @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf s'n !,!@@ hgf -:yfoL ^@# hgf / s/f/sf $(( hgf 
;lxt_ sd{rf/Lx¿ ;]jf/t 5g\ . ;+:yfsf] ;kmntf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;]jfsf] 
u'0f:t/df lge{/ /xg] x'Fbf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 5gf}6, ;¿jf, a9'jf Pjd\ c:yfoL 
sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ qmdzM :yfoL u/fpFb} n}hfg] / sd{rf/Lx?sf] j[lQ ljsf;df ;+:yfn] 
pko'Qm gLlt agfO{ k|efjsf/L 9Fun] sfof{Gjog ub{} cfO{/x]sf] 5 .   

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d]¿b08sf] ¿kdf /x]sf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] j[lQ ljsf;sf] nflu 
tflndsf] dxTjk"0f{ e"ldsf /x]sf] x'G5 . ;Ifd Pj+ of]Uo sd{rf/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
dxTjk"0f{ ;DklQ ePsf]n] k|ljlwdf cfPsf] kl/jt{g, sfo{If]qsf] dfucg'¿k tflndsf] 
Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . tflndsf pknlAwnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg ;+:yfdf sfo{/t cg'ejL 
/ jl/i7 sd{rf/Laf6 cfGtl/s tflnd ;~rfngsf] Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . 
cfjZostfcg';f/ sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ afXo tflnddf ;d]t ;xefuL u/fO{Psf] 5 . cfly{s 
jif{ @)*)÷*! df cfkm}n] cfof]hgf u/]sf] / /fli6«o tyf cGt{/fli6«o :t/df cfof]lht 
;d]t u/L s'n !,^$& hgf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ tflnddf ;xefuL u/fPsf] 5 . rfn' 
cf=j=df klg sd{rf/L tflndnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /flvPsf] 5 .  

--$$__  ;;++::yyffuutt  ;;''zzff;;ggMM    

;+:yfdf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g  sfod /fVg] ljifodf ;~rfns 
;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg ;b}j k|ltj¢ /x]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿ tyf 
sd{rf/Lx¿n] g]kfn /fi6« a}+s tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 tf]lsPsf cfr/0f;DaGwL 
Joj:yfx¿sf] k"0f{ kl/kfngf u/]sf 5g\ . ;~rfns ;ldltsf sfd sf/jfxLx¿ tyf 
;+:yfsf cGo lqmofsnfkx¿ kf/bzL{¿kdf ;~rfng u/L ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] ljsf; 
ug{ Pj+ ;f]sf] cg'e"lt u/fpg ;+:yf lqmofzLn 5 . 

  

  

 33÷1122 
 

--%%__  uu||ffxxss  ;;++//IIff00ff,,  ;;ffddffllhhss  hhjjffkkmmbb]]llxxttff  ttyyff  nn33''ppBBddzzLLnnttff  lljjssff;;  //  lljj::ttff//MM  

;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:ox¿sf] lbuf]kgfnfO{ Wofgdf /fvL ;b:ox¿nfO{ n3' pBdLaf6 ;fgf 
pBdL agfpg] p2]Zosf ;fy ljleGg zfvf sfof{nox¿df ;DalGwt ljz]if1x¿af6 
;Lk÷pBdzLntf ljsf; tflnd k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df u|fxsx¿sf] u'0f:t/Lo Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu ;ft} 
k|b]zdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] ;Lk ljsf; tflnddf %!! hgf u|fxs ;b:ox¿ nfeflGjt 
ePsf 5g\ . tflndaf6 ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox¿nfO{ pBdzLntf ljsf;df d2t k'u]sf] 
5 . 

;+:yfn] k|fs[lts, b}jL k|sf]k tyf ;d:ofdf k/]sf pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ Joj;fo 
k'g{:yfkgf ug{ cf=j= @)*)÷*! df k|fs[lts÷b}jL k|sf]k, cfunflu, af9L, klx/f] 
xfjfx'/L cflbaf6 k|efljt &!$ hgf pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ Joj;fo k'g{:yfkgfsf] nflu 
?=@,^#$,))).– -cIf¿kL 5lAa; nfv rf}lt; xhf/_ /sd /fxt÷cg'bfg k|bfg ul/Psf] 
5 .   

;+:yfn] u|fxs÷;b:ox¿ ;'Ts]/L x'Fbf kf]if0fo'Qm vfgfsf] nflu cf=j= @)*)÷*! df 
!,%(# hgf ;'Ts]/L ePsf u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ s'n ?=#,!*^,))).- -cIf¿kL PstL; 
nfv 5of;L xhf/_ k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] ;dfhk|ltsf] hjfkmb]lxtfnfO{ dgg u/L pRr lzIffdf lg/Gt/tf tyf ;kmntfsf] 
nflu yk k|f]T;fxg, xf};nf ldNg] ck]Iff;lxt ;ft} k|b]zsf !*% j6f zfvf 
sfof{nox¿dfkm{t\ ;+:yfdf cfj4 u|fxs ;b:ox¿sf 5f]/f / 5f]/LdWo]jf6 k|To]s jif{ !@ 
sIff plQ0f{ u/]sf 5fq / 5fqfnfO{ 5fqj[lQ k|bfg ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! 
df ##% hgf 5fq÷5fqfx¿nfO{ o:tf] 5fqj[lQ:j¿k ?=#,#%),))).– -cIf¿kL t]QL; 
nfv krf; xhf/_  k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

;+:yfn] cfkm\gf u|fxs÷;b:o, u|fxs÷;b:osf klt tyf 5f]/f5f]/LnfO{ SofG;/, d[uf}nf 
km]n eO{ 8fonfOl;;, d'6'sf] eNjsf] ;Nolj|mof, nfdf] ;dob]lv sf]dfdf pkrf//t, 
x[bo3ftsf sf/0f cfhLjg czQm, jf]gDof/f] k|Tof/f]k0f, Kof/fnfO{l;; eO{ :yfoL 
czQmtf, b'j} cfFvfsf] Hof]lt u'd]sf] / kf7]3/sf] ;d:of eO{ zNolqmof ug'{ k/]sf u|fxs 
;b:ox¿nfO{ :jf:Yo pkrf/df ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] p2]Zon] cfly{s ;xfotf /sd pknAw 
u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df pNn]lvt k|s[ltsf] /f]u nfu]sf @(# hgf 
u|fxs÷;b:o, klt, tyf 5f]/f5f]/LnfO{ uDeL/ k|s[ltsf] /f]u nfu]sf]n] ?=@,(@),))).–    
-cIf¿kL pgfGtL; nfv aL; xhf/_ pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] pBdL ;b:o tyf kltsf] d[To' x'bfF aLdf sDkgL;Fu ;xsfo{ u/L shf{sf] 
cltef/af6 d'Qm u/fO{ kl/jf/sf] cfly{s cj:yfdf ;Gt'ng sfod ug{ aLdf Ifltk"lt{ 
/sd k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . cf=j @)*)÷*! df !,*&$ hgf pBdL -klt;d]t_ sf] d[To' 
ePsf]n] o; k|sf/sf] aLdf Ifltk"lt{ jfkt s'n ?= @@^,(@!,%*^.– -cIf¿kL afO; s/f]8 
pgfG;Q/L nfv PssfO; xhf/ kfFr ;o 5of;L_  k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .   

--^̂__  lljjQQLLoo  ;;ffIIff//ttff  cclleeooffggMM  

;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:osf] cfjZostf tyf rfxgfcg';f/sf ljQLo tyf u}/ljQLo ;]jf 
pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;ft} k|b]zsf !,$#$ hgf  33÷1122 

 

--%%__  uu||ffxxss  ;;++//IIff00ff,,  ;;ffddffllhhss  hhjjffkkmmbb]]llxxttff  ttyyff  nn33''ppBBddzzLLnnttff  lljjssff;;  //  lljj::ttff//MM  

;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:ox¿sf] lbuf]kgfnfO{ Wofgdf /fvL ;b:ox¿nfO{ n3' pBdLaf6 ;fgf 
pBdL agfpg] p2]Zosf ;fy ljleGg zfvf sfof{nox¿df ;DalGwt ljz]if1x¿af6 
;Lk÷pBdzLntf ljsf; tflnd k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df u|fxsx¿sf] u'0f:t/Lo Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu ;ft} 
k|b]zdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] ;Lk ljsf; tflnddf %!! hgf u|fxs ;b:ox¿ nfeflGjt 
ePsf 5g\ . tflndaf6 ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox¿nfO{ pBdzLntf ljsf;df d2t k'u]sf] 
5 . 

;+:yfn] k|fs[lts, b}jL k|sf]k tyf ;d:ofdf k/]sf pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ Joj;fo 
k'g{:yfkgf ug{ cf=j= @)*)÷*! df k|fs[lts÷b}jL k|sf]k, cfunflu, af9L, klx/f] 
xfjfx'/L cflbaf6 k|efljt &!$ hgf pBdL ;b:ox¿nfO{ Joj;fo k'g{:yfkgfsf] nflu 
?=@,^#$,))).– -cIf¿kL 5lAa; nfv rf}lt; xhf/_ /sd /fxt÷cg'bfg k|bfg ul/Psf] 
5 .   

;+:yfn] u|fxs÷;b:ox¿ ;'Ts]/L x'Fbf kf]if0fo'Qm vfgfsf] nflu cf=j= @)*)÷*! df 
!,%(# hgf ;'Ts]/L ePsf u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ s'n ?=#,!*^,))).- -cIf¿kL PstL; 
nfv 5of;L xhf/_ k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] ;dfhk|ltsf] hjfkmb]lxtfnfO{ dgg u/L pRr lzIffdf lg/Gt/tf tyf ;kmntfsf] 
nflu yk k|f]T;fxg, xf};nf ldNg] ck]Iff;lxt ;ft} k|b]zsf !*% j6f zfvf 
sfof{nox¿dfkm{t\ ;+:yfdf cfj4 u|fxs ;b:ox¿sf 5f]/f / 5f]/LdWo]jf6 k|To]s jif{ !@ 
sIff plQ0f{ u/]sf 5fq / 5fqfnfO{ 5fqj[lQ k|bfg ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! 
df ##% hgf 5fq÷5fqfx¿nfO{ o:tf] 5fqj[lQ:j¿k ?=#,#%),))).– -cIf¿kL t]QL; 
nfv krf; xhf/_  k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

;+:yfn] cfkm\gf u|fxs÷;b:o, u|fxs÷;b:osf klt tyf 5f]/f5f]/LnfO{ SofG;/, d[uf}nf 
km]n eO{ 8fonfOl;;, d'6'sf] eNjsf] ;Nolj|mof, nfdf] ;dob]lv sf]dfdf pkrf//t, 
x[bo3ftsf sf/0f cfhLjg czQm, jf]gDof/f] k|Tof/f]k0f, Kof/fnfO{l;; eO{ :yfoL 
czQmtf, b'j} cfFvfsf] Hof]lt u'd]sf] / kf7]3/sf] ;d:of eO{ zNolqmof ug'{ k/]sf u|fxs 
;b:ox¿nfO{ :jf:Yo pkrf/df ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] p2]Zon] cfly{s ;xfotf /sd pknAw 
u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df pNn]lvt k|s[ltsf] /f]u nfu]sf @(# hgf 
u|fxs÷;b:o, klt, tyf 5f]/f5f]/LnfO{ uDeL/ k|s[ltsf] /f]u nfu]sf]n] ?=@,(@),))).–    
-cIf¿kL pgfGtL; nfv aL; xhf/_ pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 .  

;+:yfn] pBdL ;b:o tyf kltsf] d[To' x'bfF aLdf sDkgL;Fu ;xsfo{ u/L shf{sf] 
cltef/af6 d'Qm u/fO{ kl/jf/sf] cfly{s cj:yfdf ;Gt'ng sfod ug{ aLdf Ifltk"lt{ 
/sd k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . cf=j @)*)÷*! df !,*&$ hgf pBdL -klt;d]t_ sf] d[To' 
ePsf]n] o; k|sf/sf] aLdf Ifltk"lt{ jfkt s'n ?= @@^,(@!,%*^.– -cIf¿kL afO; s/f]8 
pgfG;Q/L nfv PssfO; xhf/ kfFr ;o 5of;L_  k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .   

--^̂__  lljjQQLLoo  ;;ffIIff//ttff  cclleeooffggMM  

;+:yfn] u|fxs ;b:osf] cfjZostf tyf rfxgfcg';f/sf ljQLo tyf u}/ljQLo ;]jf 
pknAw u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;ft} k|b]zsf !,$#$ hgf 



lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

10 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

 44÷1122 
 

u|fxs ;b:o tyf cleefjsx¿nfO{ cfjZostf tyf rfxgfx¿, ljQLo nIo, shf{, C0f 
lng], art ug]{, ljQLo cg'zf;g, kfl/jfl/s ah]6 / of]hgf, artsf] dxTj, shf{ 
;b'kof]lutf, ;kmf gf]6 gLlt, ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f, ljk|]if0f, Jofhb/, cfo pTkfbgsf 
pkfox¿, u|fxs ;+/If0fsf ;fy} ljB'tLo ljQLo ;]jfx¿sf] af/]df hfgsf/L u/fpg] 
p2]Zon] ljQLo ;fIf/tf clea[l4 tflnd k|bfg u/]sf] 5 . rfn' cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df klg 
o; sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbO{g]5 .  

--&&__  //ffhhZZjjddff  ooff]]uubbffggMM  

;+:yfn] cf=j= @)*)÷*! df g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ ;+:yfut cfos/ jfkt ?= 
#*),%%#,$(*.– -cIf¿kL c8\tL; s/f]8 kfFr nfv lqkGg xhf/ rf/ ;o cG7fgJj]_, 
art tyf lgIf]kstf{x¿sf] Aofhs/ jfkt ?= %&,@%&,)*^.– -cIf¿kL kfr s/f]8 axQ/ 
nfv ;GtfpGg xhf/ 5of;L_ / sd{rf/Lx¿sf] kfl/>lds cfos/ jfkt ?= 
!*,)%(,##^.– -cIf¿kL Ps s/f]8 c;L nfv pgfG;f7L xhf/ tLg ;o 5lQ;_ u/L s'n 
?=$%%,*%!,*!(.– -cIf¿kL k}tfln; s/f]8 cG7fpGg nfv PsfpGg xhf/ cf7 ;o 
pGgfO;_ /fhZjdf of]ubfg u/]sf]] 5 . sfof{no ;~rfng ug{ ;+:yfn] ef8fdf lnPsf 
3/sf] 3/axfn s/ :yfgLo lgsfon] tf]s]sf] b/df ;DalGwt :yfgLo lgsfodf bflvnf 
ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .  

--**__  ppTTkkffbbssTTjj  ttyyff  ssffoo{{ss''zznnttff  cclleejj[[ll44ssff]]  nnfflluu  ;;""rrggff  kk||lljjllwwssff]]  ppRRrrttdd  kk||ooff]]uuMM    

;+:yfn] ;b:ox¿nfO{ ;dofg's"n / u'0f:t/Lo ;]jf k|bfg ug{ k|ljlwd"ns ;]jfx¿sf] 
ljsf; / lj:tf/df hf]8 lbb+} cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yfsf ;a} sfof{nox¿ 

 sf] dfWodaf6 ;~rfngdf cfPsf 5g\ . ;+:yfn] ljsf; u/L ;~rfngdf 
NofPsf]  nfO{ ;dofg's'n  ub}{ u|fdL0f b"/b/fhsf 
ljkGg ;d'bfo÷JolQmx¿nfO{ k|ljlwdf cfwfl/t a}+lsË ;]jfx¿ k|bfg ug{] nIosf ;fy 

 sf] dfWodaf6 s]Gb|df ls:tf tyf lgIf]k art ;+sng ug]{ sfo{ eO{/x]sf] 5 . 
;+:yfn] l8lh6n dfWodx¿   sf] dfWodaf6 ls:tf tyf 
art sf/f]jf/ ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] 5 . cfufdL lbgdf k|ljlwdf cfwfl/t a}+lsË ;]jf 
k|jfx u/L b"/b/fhsf ljkGg ju{nfO{ clwstd\ ;]jf k|jfx ug{] sfo{nfO{ hf]8 lbO{g]5 .  

--((__  ccff==jj==  @@))**))÷÷**!!  ddff  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  lljjQQLLoo  ssff//ff]]]]jjff//;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ffMM  

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] ljQLo sf/f]jf/ ;DaGwL k|ult ljj/0f b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 
5 .  

rr''QQmmff  kkFF""hhLL  ttyyff  kkFF""hhLL  kkooff{{KKttttff  ccgg''kkfftt  MM  ;+:yfsf] @)*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Ddsf] r'Qmf k"FhL   
?= @ cj{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ &%) /x]sf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] @)*! cfiff9df k"FhL 
kof{Kttf cg'kft !#=%# k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . ;f] cg'kft lgodgsf/L lgsfo -g]kfn /fi6« 
a}+s_n] tf]s]sf] Go"gtd\ k"FhL kof{Kttf cg'kft * k|ltzteGbf %=%# k|ltztn] al9 xf] .   

hhuu]]88ff  ssff]]iiff  MM  ;+:yfsf] @)*! cfiff9df ?= @ cj{ $& s/f]8 (% nfv (% xhf/ !$) 
hu]8f sf]ifdf /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf hu]8f sf]ifdf ?= @ cj{ $# s/f]8 ^^ 
nfv (( xhf/ (%! df}Hbft /x]sf] lyof] . hu]8f sf]ifx¿df ;dLIff cjlwdf !=&^ 
k|ltztsf] a[l4 ePsf] 5 . 

Connect IPS
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llggIIff]]kk  ;;++ssnngg  MM  @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf ;+:yfsf] s'n lgIf]k bfloTj ?= @) cj{ !* 
s/f]8 %# nfv $# xhf/ *)( /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf ;+:yfsf] s'n lgIf]k 
bfloTj ?= !( cj{ !! s/f]8 $@ nfv (# xhf/ #!% /x]sf] lyof] . h'g ;dLIff cjlwdf 
%=^) k|ltztsf] a[l4 ePsf] 5 .  

sshhff{{  ttyyff  sshhff{{  ggff]]SS;;ffggLL  JJoojj::yyff  MM  @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf ;+:yfsf] s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] 
shf{ ?= @% cj{ *) s/f]8 ^# nfv && xhf/ $)& /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf 
nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ ?= @% cj{ &$ s/f]8 (! nfv $$ xhf/ ($) /x]sf] lyof] . h'g 
;dLIff cjlwdf )=@@ k|ltztsf] a[l4 xf] . @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf shf{ hf]lvd Joj:yf 
?= @ cj{ ^@ s/f]8 @& nfv (! xhf/ $!( /x]sf] 5 . s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{df shf{ 
hf]lvd Joj:yfsf] cg'kft !)=!^ k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 .  

;;ffkk66LL  MM  ;+:yfn] ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lnPsf] ;fk6L @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf  
?= @ cj{ *& s/f]8 ^ nfv !# xhf/ ()$ /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf pQm 
;fk6L ?= # cj{ ($ s/f]8 ^& nfv @! xhf/ *#( /x]sf] lyof] . ;dLIff cjlwdf s'n 
;fk6L @&=@& k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 .  

vv''bb  JJooffhh  ccffDDbbffggLL  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf v'b Aofh cfDbfgL ?= ! cj{ (! s/f]8 *@ nfv 
*@ xhf/ ^@% ePsf] 5 . cf=j= @)&(÷*) df ;+:yfsf] v'b Jofh cfDbfgL ?= ! cj{ 
($ s/f]8 $* nfv %@ xhf/ $^% ePsf] lyof] . ;dLIff cjlwdf Aofh cfDbfgLtkm{  
@=(& k|ltztn] 36]sf]] / Jofh vr{tkm{ $=%! k|ltztn] 3]6]sf] 5 . Jofh cfDbfgL vr{sf] 
t'ngfdf clws 36]sf sf/0f v'b Jofh cfDbfgL !=#& k|ltztn] 36]sf] xf] .   

vv''bb  zz''NNss  ttyyff  ssllddzzgg  ccffDDbbffggLL  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf v'b z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL ?= 
#$ s/f]8 *) nfv ( xhf/ &^ /x]sf] 5 . ut cf=j=df pQm cfDbfgL ?= !@ s/f]8 (( 
nfv * xhf/ ### /x]sf] lyof] . z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL !%^=%) k|ltztn] a9]sf] 
tyf z'Ns tyf sldzg vr{ ^*=^# k|ltztn] 36]sf]n] ;dLIff cjlwdf v'b z'Ns tyf 
sldzg cfDbfgL !^^=%) k|ltztn] a9]sf] xf] .  

ssdd{{rrff//LL  vvrr{{  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf sd{rf/L af]g; ?=* s/f]8 (% nfv &^ xhf/ ((! 
;lxt sd{rf/L vr{ ?= (@ s/f]8 &% nfv (% xhf/ @() ePsf] 5 h'g cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) sf] t'ngfdf !!=@$ k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5  . cf=j= @)&(÷*) df sd{rf/L 
vr{ ? *# s/f]8 #* nfv *& xhf/ !)) ePsf] lyof] .   

ccGGoo  ;;~~rrffnngg  vvrr{{  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf cGo ;+rfng vr{ ?= & s/f]8 #* nfv #) xhf/ 
(!% ePsf] 5 h'g cf=j= @)&(÷*) sf] t'ngfdf )=!@ k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 . cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) df sfof{no ;~rfng vr{ ?=& s/f]8 #( nfv !* xhf/ #)% ePsf] lyof] .  

xx||ff;;  vvrr{{  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf x|f; vr{ ?= % s/f]8 #( nfv (* xhf/ %) ePsf] 5 h'g 
cf=j= @)&(÷*) sf] t'ngfdf %=!& k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)&(÷*) df Xf; 
vr{ ?= % s/f]8 !# nfv $# xhf/ $)$ ePsf] lyof] .  

sshhff{{  cckknn]]vvgg  ttyyff  cc;;''nnLL  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf  shf{ ckn]vg ePsf] 5}g eg] ;f]xL 
cjlwdf ?= %% nfv !) xhf/ ^($ ckn]vg ePsf] shf{ c;"nL ePsf] 5 . cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) df shf{ ckn]vg tyf c;'nL qmdzM ? $& nfv %$ xhf/ *%( / ?= & 
nfv *@ xhf/ ((@ ePsf] lyof] .   
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llggIIff]]kk  ;;++ssnngg  MM  @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf ;+:yfsf] s'n lgIf]k bfloTj ?= @) cj{ !* 
s/f]8 %# nfv $# xhf/ *)( /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf ;+:yfsf] s'n lgIf]k 
bfloTj ?= !( cj{ !! s/f]8 $@ nfv (# xhf/ #!% /x]sf] lyof] . h'g ;dLIff cjlwdf 
%=^) k|ltztsf] a[l4 ePsf] 5 .  

sshhff{{  ttyyff  sshhff{{  ggff]]SS;;ffggLL  JJoojj::yyff  MM  @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf ;+:yfsf] s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] 
shf{ ?= @% cj{ *) s/f]8 ^# nfv && xhf/ $)& /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf 
nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ ?= @% cj{ &$ s/f]8 (! nfv $$ xhf/ ($) /x]sf] lyof] . h'g 
;dLIff cjlwdf )=@@ k|ltztsf] a[l4 xf] . @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf shf{ hf]lvd Joj:yf 
?= @ cj{ ^@ s/f]8 @& nfv (! xhf/ $!( /x]sf] 5 . s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{df shf{ 
hf]lvd Joj:yfsf] cg'kft !)=!^ k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 .  

;;ffkk66LL  MM  ;+:yfn] ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lnPsf] ;fk6L @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf  
?= @ cj{ *& s/f]8 ^ nfv !# xhf/ ()$ /x]sf] 5 . @)*) cfiff9 d;fGtdf pQm 
;fk6L ?= # cj{ ($ s/f]8 ^& nfv @! xhf/ *#( /x]sf] lyof] . ;dLIff cjlwdf s'n 
;fk6L @&=@& k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 .  

vv''bb  JJooffhh  ccffDDbbffggLL  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf v'b Aofh cfDbfgL ?= ! cj{ (! s/f]8 *@ nfv 
*@ xhf/ ^@% ePsf] 5 . cf=j= @)&(÷*) df ;+:yfsf] v'b Jofh cfDbfgL ?= ! cj{ 
($ s/f]8 $* nfv %@ xhf/ $^% ePsf] lyof] . ;dLIff cjlwdf Aofh cfDbfgLtkm{  
@=(& k|ltztn] 36]sf]] / Jofh vr{tkm{ $=%! k|ltztn] 3]6]sf] 5 . Jofh cfDbfgL vr{sf] 
t'ngfdf clws 36]sf sf/0f v'b Jofh cfDbfgL !=#& k|ltztn] 36]sf] xf] .   

vv''bb  zz''NNss  ttyyff  ssllddzzgg  ccffDDbbffggLL  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf v'b z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL ?= 
#$ s/f]8 *) nfv ( xhf/ &^ /x]sf] 5 . ut cf=j=df pQm cfDbfgL ?= !@ s/f]8 (( 
nfv * xhf/ ### /x]sf] lyof] . z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL !%^=%) k|ltztn] a9]sf] 
tyf z'Ns tyf sldzg vr{ ^*=^# k|ltztn] 36]sf]n] ;dLIff cjlwdf v'b z'Ns tyf 
sldzg cfDbfgL !^^=%) k|ltztn] a9]sf] xf] .  

ssdd{{rrff//LL  vvrr{{  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf sd{rf/L af]g; ?=* s/f]8 (% nfv &^ xhf/ ((! 
;lxt sd{rf/L vr{ ?= (@ s/f]8 &% nfv (% xhf/ @() ePsf] 5 h'g cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) sf] t'ngfdf !!=@$ k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5  . cf=j= @)&(÷*) df sd{rf/L 
vr{ ? *# s/f]8 #* nfv *& xhf/ !)) ePsf] lyof] .   

ccGGoo  ;;~~rrffnngg  vvrr{{  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf cGo ;+rfng vr{ ?= & s/f]8 #* nfv #) xhf/ 
(!% ePsf] 5 h'g cf=j= @)&(÷*) sf] t'ngfdf )=!@ k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 . cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) df sfof{no ;~rfng vr{ ?=& s/f]8 #( nfv !* xhf/ #)% ePsf] lyof] .  

xx||ff;;  vvrr{{  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf x|f; vr{ ?= % s/f]8 #( nfv (* xhf/ %) ePsf] 5 h'g 
cf=j= @)&(÷*) sf] t'ngfdf %=!& k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)&(÷*) df Xf; 
vr{ ?= % s/f]8 !# nfv $# xhf/ $)$ ePsf] lyof] .  

sshhff{{  cckknn]]vvgg  ttyyff  cc;;''nnLL  MM  ;dLIff cjlwdf  shf{ ckn]vg ePsf] 5}g eg] ;f]xL 
cjlwdf ?= %% nfv !) xhf/ ^($ ckn]vg ePsf] shf{ c;"nL ePsf] 5 . cf=j= 
@)&(÷*) df shf{ ckn]vg tyf c;'nL qmdzM ? $& nfv %$ xhf/ *%( / ?= & 
nfv *@ xhf/ ((@ ePsf] lyof] .   
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--vv__  //ffllii66««oo  ttyyff  ccGGtt//ff{{llii66««oo  kkll//ll::yyllttaaff66  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  ssff//ff]]jjff//nnffOO{{  ss''gg}}  cc;;//  kk//]]ssff]]  eePP  ;;ff]]  cc;;//MM  

nfdf] ;dob]lv sfod /x]sf] ljZjJofkL cfly{s dlGbsf] k|efjsf sf/0f ljZj cfly{s 
ultljlwdf cfPsf] ;':ttfn] b]lvPsf] gsf/fTds k|efj xfn;Dd sfod 5 . cfly{s jif{ 
@)*)÷*! sf] z'?df b]zsf] Joj;flos jftfj/0f ;'wf/f]Gd'v /x]tfklg Jofkf/ Joj;fosf] 
If]qdf pNn]Vo k|ult x'g ;s]g . cfly{s dlGbsf] sf/0f n3'ljQ ljQLo If]qnfO{ ;d]t ljleGg 
axfgfdf cfqmd0f eO/x]sf] 5 . Pp6} u|fxs ;b:onfO{ cfjZostf / IfdtfeGbf j9L shf{ 
nufgL ePsfn] c;'nLdf ;d:of cfO{ ;+:yfx?n] nlIft k|ltkmn xfl;n ug{ ;s]sf 5}gg\ . 
kmn:j?k v/fa shf{ j[l4 / cfDbfgLdf lu/fj6 eO{ ;+:yfsf] ljQLo cj:yfdf ck]lIft ?kdf 
;'wf/ ug{ sl7gfO{ pTkGg ePsf] 5 . o; k|sf/sf hf]lvdaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ kg]{ c;/ 
;s];Dd sd ug{ ;dofg's"n cfkm\gf sfo{qmd tyf ;]jf k|jfxdf kl/dfh{g ub}{ nluPsf] 5 .  

--uu__  kk||llttjj]]bbgg  ttooff//  eePPssff]]  llddlltt;;DDdd  rrffnn''  jjiiff{{ssff]]  ppkknnAAwwLL  //  eelljjiiooddff  uugg''{{kkgg]]{{  ss''//ffssff]]  ;;DDaaGGwwddff  
;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttssff]]  wwff//00ffffMM 

rfn' cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] sflt{s dlxgfsf] cGt;Dd ;+:yfsf] k|ult ut jif{sf] ;f]xL 
ldltsf] t'ngfdf lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .  

lljjjj//00ff  @@))**!!  ssfflltt{{ss  dd;;ffGGtt  --??==__  @@))**))  ssfflltt{{ss  dd;;ffGGtt  --??==__  

u|fxs ;+Vof # nfv ((  xhf/ (( $ nfv ! xhf/ !*( 

C0fL ;+Vof ! nfv *@ xhf/ ^!$ @ nfv $ xhf/ $)) 

art tyf lgIf]k @) ca{ #( s/f]8 & nfv  
*) xhf/ 

!* ca{ (% s/f]8 %% nfv 
*% xhf/ 

nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ @% ca{ ^$ s/f]8 !% nfv 
(* xhf/ 

@$ ca{ (# s/f]8 () nfv 
&% xhf/ 

Jofh cfDbfgL ! ca{ #@ s/f]8 !# nfv @ 
xhf/ 

! ca{ !@ s/f]8 %& nfv &( 
xhf/ 

Jofh vr{ ^# s/f]8 ^^ nfv %@ xhf/ %* s/f]8 ^) nfv &$ xhf/ 

z'Ns tyf sldzg 
cfDbfgL 

!) s/f]8 $& nfv ^ xhf/ * s/f]8 (% nfv ^& xhf/ 

;~rfng vr{ ## s/f]8 ^* nfv &^ xhf/   #$ s/f]8 #( nfv ^# xhf/   

shf{ hf]lvd Joxf]g]{ vr{ %% s/f]8 (* nfv ^ xhf/ ^( s/f]8 %% nfv ^* xhf/ 

;~rfng gf]S;fg  !) s/f]8 &# nfv !^ xhf/  $) s/f]8 (* nfv !! xhf/   

;+:yfn] b]xfosf d'Vo ;/f]sf/jfnfx?  sf] cfjZostf, rfxgf / ck]IffnfO{ 
;d]6\g] k|of; u/]sf] 5 . 

-!_ u|fxsx?sf] rfxgf / cfjZostfcg';f/  plrt d'Nodf u'0f:t/Lo ;]jf k|jfx ug]{ . 

-@_ sd{rf/Lsf nflu ;do;fk]If Ifdtf clej[l4sf] sfo{qmd Nofpg] . 

-#_ u|fxs ;b:osf] gofF Joj;fo z'? ug{ tyf lj:tf/sf] nflu cfjZos Jofj;flos 
tflndnfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbOg] .  
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-$_ u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if  nfO{ ;b:ox?sf] ;fd"lxs lxt x'g] sfo{, 
;b:ox?sf] Joj;fosf] k|j4{g, u|fxsx?sf] lzIff / Ifdtf ljsf; tyf ;d:ofdf 
k/]sf C0fLx?sf] Joj;fosf] ;'/If0f P+j k'g:yf{kgf sfo{df k|efjsf/L?kn] kl/rfng 
ul/g] .  

-%_ ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjtkm{ ;r]t /xL ;Dej eP;Dd k"/f ug{ cu|;/ x'g] . 

--33__  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  ccff}}BBff]]lluuss  jjff  JJoojj;;ffllooss  ;;DDaaGGwwMM  

;+:yfn] cfkm\gf ;a} ;/f]sf/jfnf lgsfox¿;Fu ;'dw"/ Joj;flos ;DaGw :yflkt u/]sf] 5 . 
;a} ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿sf] Joj;flostf / kf/blz{tfsf] cfwf/df ljsl;t /x]sf] ;DaGw g} 
;+:yfsf] k|ultsf nflu Ps ;kmn dfWod x'g]5 eGg] ljZjf; /x]sf] 5 .  

--ªª__  ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttddff  eePPssff]]  xx]]//kkmm]]//  //  ;;ff]]ssff]]  ssff//00ffMM  

;+:yfdf ;~rfns >L xl/ s[i0f kGtsf] cWoIftfdf & ;b:oLo ;~rfns ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . 
cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ;a} ;~rfnsx¿ oyfjt /x]sf 5g\ .  

--rr__  ssff//ff]]jjff//nnffOO{{  cc;;//  kkffgg]]{{  dd''VVoo  ss''//ffxx¿¿MM  

;+:yfsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿ b]xfo adf]lhd 5g\ .   

-!_ kl5Nnf] ;do b]ze/L g} Jofkf/ Joj;fodf cfPsf] ;':ttfn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/ 
j[l4df klg c;/ k/]sfn] ck]Iffcg'?k sfo{qmd lj:tf/ x'g ;s]sf] 5}g . 

-@_  n3'ljQ la/f]wL ultljwLsf sf/0fn] shf{ nufgL / c;'nLdf k|lts'n k|efj k/]sf]5 .  

-#_ s]xL u|fxs ;b:ox¿df cfly{s cg'zf;gdf cfPsf] x|f; / sd{rf/Lx¿n] u|fxs 
;b:ox¿df ug]{ Jojxf/df ;dofg's'n ;'wf/ x'g g;Sbf ;+:yfsf] b}lgs sfo{df c;/ 
k/]sf] 5 .  

-$_ ;b:o bf]xf]/f]kgfsf sf/0f u|fxsaf6 eO/x]sf] ax'a}lsË sf/f]af/af6 shf{ nufgLdf 
hf]lvd a9]sf] 5 .  

--55__  nn]]vvffkk//LLIIff00ff  kk||llttjj]]bbggddff  ss''gg}}  ss}}llkkmmoott  ppNNnn]]vv  eePPssff]]  eePP  ;;ff]]ppkk//  ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttssff]]  kk||llttllqqmmooffMM  

;+:yfsf] klRr;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 lgo'Qm x'g'ePsf n]vfk/LIfs P= g]kfn P08 
P;f]l;P6\;, rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6\;n] n]vfk/LIf0f ug'{ ePsf] 5 . n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} 
gsf/fTds s'/f pNn]v ul/Psf] 5}g . o; k|ltj]bg;fy ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / n]vf 
ljj/0fx¿n] ;+:yfsf] oyfy{ l:yltsf] lrq0f u/]sf] 5 . n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bgdfly ;~rfns 
;ldltsf]tkm{af6 s'g} l6Kk0fL  g/x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f}+ .  

--hh__  nnffeeff++zz  aaffFF88kkmmffFF88  uugg{{  ll;;kkmmffll//zz  uull//PPssff]]  //ssddMM  

o; ;+:yfsf] 5lAa;f}+ ;fwf/0f ;efsf] nflu z]o/wgL lstfa aGb ubf{;Ddsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?=@ 
ca{ ^! s/f]8 @) nfv &( xhf/ &%) /x]sf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! sf] ljQLo 
ljj/0fsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgLx¿nfO{ nfe+fz ljt/0f gu/L ;f]xL adf]lhdsf] cfly{s ljj/0fx¿ 
;+:yfsf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k]z ul/Psf] 5 .  

--eemm__  zz]]oo//  hhkkmmtt  eePPssff]]  eePP  hhkkmmtt  eePPssff]]  zz]]oo//  ;;++VVooff,,  TToo::ttff]]  zz]]oo//ssff]]  ccllÍÍtt  dd''NNoo,,  TToo::ttff]]  zz]]oo//  
hhkkmmtt  xx''gg''eeGGbbff  ccuuffjj}}  ;;ff]]jjffkktt  ssDDkkggLLnn]]  kk||ffKKtt  uu//]]ssff]]  hhDDddff  //ssdd  //  TToo::ttff]]  zz]]oo//  hhkkmmtt  eePPkkll55  
;;ff]]  zz]]oo//  llaaqqmmLL  uu//LL  ssDDkkggLLnn]]  kk||ffKKtt  uu//]]ssff]]  //ssdd  ttyyff  hhkkmmtt  eePPssff]]  zz]]oo//jjffkktt  //ssdd  llkkmmttff{{  
uu//]]ssff]]  eePP  ;;ff]]ssff]]  lljjjj//00ffMM  
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;dLIff jif{df s'g} klg z]o/ hkmt ePsf] 5}g .  

--~~ff__  lljjuutt  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ddff  ssDDkkggLL  //  oo;;ssff]]  ;;xxffooss  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  ssff//ff]]jjff//ssff]]  kk||uulltt  //  ;;ff]]  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ssff]]  
ccGGTTooddff  //xx]]ssff]]  ll::yyllttssff]]  kk''gg//ffjjnnff]]ssgg  ..  

g/x]sf] . 

--66__  ssDDkkggLL  ttyyff  oo;;ssff]]  ;;xxffooss  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ddff  ;;DDkkGGgg  uu//]]ssff]]  kk||dd''vv  ssff//ff]]jjff//xx¿¿  //  ;;ff]]  
ccjjllwwddff    ssDDkkggLLssff]]  ssff//ff]]jjff//ddff  ccffPPssff]]  ss''gg}}  ddxxTTjjkk""00ff{{  kkll//jjtt{{gg  ..  

g/x]sf] . 
--77__  lljjuutt  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ddff  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  ccffwwff//ee""tt  zz]]oo//wwggLLxx¿¿nn]]  ssDDkkggLLnnffOO{{  ppkknnAAww  uu//ffPPssff]]  hhffggssff//LLMM  

s]lx gePsf] .  
--88__  lljjuutt  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ddff  ssDDkkggLLssff  ;;~~rrffnnss  ttyyff  kkbbffllwwssff//LLxx¿¿nn]]  llnnPPssff]]  zz]]oo//  ::jjffllddTTjjssff]]  

lljjjj//00ff  //  ssDDkkggLLssff]]  zz]]oo//  ssff//ff]]aaff//ddff  llgghhxx¿¿  ;;++nnUUgg  //xx]]ssff]]  eePP  ;;ff]]  ;;DDaaGGwwddff  llgghhxx¿¿aaff66  
ssDDkkggLLnn]]  kk||ffKKtt  uu//]]ssff]]  hhffggssff//LLMM    

sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Ln] lnPsf] z]o/ :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f -@)*! cfiff9 
d;fGtsf] cGTodf_ b]xfo cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .  

        --!!__  ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttssff  kkbbffllwwssff//LLxx¿¿MM  

qqmm==;;++==  ggffdd,,  kkbb  ;;++::yyffkkss  zz]]oo//  ;;jj{{;;ffwwff//00ff  zz]]oo//  ss''nn  zz]]oo//  ;;++VVooff  

!= >L xl/ s[i0f kGt, cWoIf !$,!$! !(,@!( ##,#^) 

@= >L b]a]Gb| axfb'/ /fpt, ;~rfns    &,%() #,%(^ !!,!*^ 

#= 
>L ;Gtf]if s'df/ e§/fO{, ;~rfns 

 -Pe/]i6 a}+s lnld6]8_ 
!,(**,(^*  !,(**,(^* 

$= 
>L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_, 
 ;~rfns -gljn a}+s lnld6]8_ 

@,$%#,%($  @,$%#,%($ 

%= >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL, ;~rfns – !*(,*@* !*(,*@* 

^= >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L, ;~rfns – #(! #(! 

&= >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg, ;~rfns – – – 
 

-@@__  JJoojj::yyffkkgg  kkbbffllwwssff//LLxx¿¿MM  

qqmm==;;++==  ggffdd,,  kkbb  ;;++::yyffkkss  zz]]oo//  ;;jj{{;;ffwwff//00ff  zz]]oo//  ss''nn  zz]]oo//  ;;++VVooff  

!= 
>L d's]z bxfn, 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 

– $^ $^ 

@= 
>L hUo k|;fb kGt, 
sDkgL ;lrj 

– – – 

;+:yfsf] ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿n] ;+:yfaf6 lgisfzg ul/Psf] z]o/ vl/b ug]{ / 
;fwf/0f ;efaf6 kfl/t af]g; z]o/ u|x0f ug]{ afx]s z]o/ sf/f]jf/df c¿ s'g} ;+nUgtf 
/x]sf] hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 5}g .  
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--99__  lljjuutt  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ddff  ssDDkkggLL;;FFuu  ;;DDaallGGwwtt  ;;DDeemmff}}ttffxx¿¿ddff  ss''gg}}  ;;~~rrffnnss  ttyyff  llgghhssff]]  ggllhhssssff]]  
ggfftt]]bbff//ssff]]  JJoollQQmmuutt  ::jjffyy{{ssff]]  aaff//]]ddff  ppkknnAAww  uu//ffOOPPssff]]  hhffggssff//LLssff]]  JJooxxff]]//ffMM  

o; k|sf/sf] s'g} ;Demf}tf gePsf] .  

--00ff__  ssDDkkggLLnn]]  ccffkkmm\\ggff]]  zz]]oo//  ccffkkmm}}nn]]  vvll//bb  uu//]]ssff]]  eePP  TToo;;//LL  ccffkkmm\\ggff]]  zz]]oo//  vvll//bb  uugg''{{ssff]]  ssff//00ff,,  
TToo::ttff]]  zz]]oo//ssff]]  ;;++VVooff  //  ccllÍÍtt  dd''NNoo  ttyyff  TToo;;//LL  zz]]oo//  vvll//bb  uu//]]aaffkktt  ssDDkkggLLnn]]  ee''QQmmffggLL  uu//]]ssff]]  
//ssddMM    

;dLIff jif{df sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b u/]sf] 5}g . 

--tt__  ccffGGttll//ss  llggooGGqq00ff  kk||00ffffnnLL  eePP  jjff  ggeePPssff]]  //  eePPssff]]  eePP  ;;ff]]  ssff]]  lljj::tt[[tt  lljjjj//00ff  MM  

;+:yfn] cfGtl/s lgoGq0fsf] nflu k|zf;lgs lgoGq0f, ah]6/L lgoGq0f, sDKo"6/s[t clen]v 
k|0ffnL, 6\ofa a}+lsËaf6 shf{÷art c;'nL, lgoldt cg'udg, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f h:tf 
k|of; ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;+:yf ;~rfng ug{] cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL, sd{rf/L ;]jf 
ljlgodfjnL, shf{ gLlt, sfo{ ;~rfng lgb]{lzsf, u|fxs cg'udg lgb]{lzsf, shf{ ckn]vg 
ljlgodfjnL nufotsf ljlgodfjnL, sfo{ljlw, gLlt lgb]{lzsfx¿ tof/ u/L ;f]xL adf]lhd 
lgoldt¿kdf sfo{ eO{/x]sf] 5 . 

;~rfns ;ldltn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zg tyf sDkgL P]gsf] k|fjwfgsf] clwgdf 
/xL n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt, ;DklQ 
z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . oL ;ldltx¿sf] a}7s cfjlws¿kdf a:g] ub{5 / 
lgb]{zgdf ePsf Joj:yfcg';f/ ;ldltx¿n] cfkm\gf] sfd / lhDd]jf/L k'/f ub{5g\ .    

--tt==!!__  nn]]vvffkk//LLIIff00ff  ;;llddllttMM  

;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfgsf] ;+of]hsTjdf  
;~rfns >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L ;b:o x'g]u/L n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . ;f] 
;ldltsf] ;b:o ;lrj cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu k|d'v /x]sf 5g\ . ;f] ;ldltn] 
;+:yfsf] cfly{s cj:yfsf] ;dLIff, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL sfo{qmd / 
n]vfk/LIf0fsf] kl/0ffd ;DaGwdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkgnfO{ 
cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

--tt==@@__  hhff]]llvvdd  JJoojj::yyffkkgg  ;;llddllttMM       

;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_sf] 
;+of]hsTjdf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf 
;+of]hs hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] kb]g ;b:o /xg] Joj:yf 5 . ;f] ;ldltsf] 
;b:o ;lrj shf{ ljefu k|d'v /x]sf 5g\ . ;f] ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] ljBdfg hf]lvd 
klxrfg, Joj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] kof{Kttf / pko'Qmtf, Joj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt 
hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, hf]lvd axgsf] nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt, 
gLltut Joj:yf cflb ;DaGwdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg 
lbg] sfo{ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .  

--tt==##__  ssdd{{rrff//LL  ;;]]jjff  ;;''lljjwwff  ;;llddllttMM    

;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L b]j]Gb| axfb'/ /fptsf] ;+of]hsTjdf 
sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . pQm ;ldltdf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t / 
n]vf, sf]if Joj:yfkg tyf of]hgf ljefu k|d'v ;b:o, hgzlQm Joj:yfkg tyf 
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tflnd ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj /x]sf 5g\ . ;f] ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] kfl/>lds 
lgwf{/0f gLlt th'{df ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;xof]u ug]{, ;do ;dodf 
sd{rf/Lx¿sf] kfl/>lds ;+/rgfsf] cWoog tyf ljZn]if0f ug]{, hgzlQm Joj:yfkg 
;DaGwL sfo{x¿, >d ;DaGw ;DaGwL of]hgf, gLlt, dfkb08 tof/ u/L ;~rfns 
;ldlt ;dIf k]z ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .  

  --tt==$$__  ;;DDkkllQQ  zz''44LLss//00ff  ccgg''uuddgg  ;;llddllttMM  

;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemLsf] ;+of]hsTjdf 
;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . pQm ;ldltdf shf{ ljefu k|d'v 
;b:o / ;~rfng tyf ;"rgf k|ljlw ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj /x]sf 5g\ . ;fy} 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t kb]g ;b:o /x]sf 5g\ . ;f] ;ldltn] ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f 
lgjf/0f ;DaGwdf g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] hf/L u/]sf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd ;+:yfdf eP u/]sf 
sfdx¿sf] cg'udg u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbb}F cfPsf] 5 .  

--yy__  lljjuutt  ccffllyy{{ss  jjiiff{{ssff]]  ss''nn  JJoojj::yyffkkgg  vvrr{{ssff]]  lljjjj//00ffMM  

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df ;+:yfsf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ lgDg adf]lhd ?=!,))!,$@^,@)%.–        
-cIf¿kL Ps cj{ rf}w nfv 5lJj; xhf/ b'O{ ;o kfFr_ /x]sf] 5 . 

qm=;+= ljj/0f /sd -?=_ 

!= sd{rf/L vr{ (@&,%(%,@().– 

@= ;~rfng vr{  &#,*#),(!%.– 
  

--bb__  nn]]vvffkk//LLIIff00ff  ;;llddllttssff  ;;bb::ooxx¿¿ssff]]  ggffddffjjnnLL,,  llgghhxx¿¿nn]]  kk||ffKKtt  uu//]]ssff]]  kkffll//>>llddss,,  eeQQff  ttyyff  
;;''lljjwwff,,  ;;ff]]  ;;llddllttnn]]  uu//]]ssff]]  ssffdd  ssff//jjffxxLLssff]]  lljjjj//00ff  //  ;;ff]]  ;;llddllttnn]]  ss''gg}}  ;;''eemmffjj  llbbPPssff]]  eePP  
;;ff]]ssff]]  lljjjj//00ff  ..  

;+:yfsf] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfgsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ul7t n]vfk/LIf0f 
;ldltdf ;~rfns >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L ;b:o tyf ;+:yfsf cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ljefu k|d'v 
>L nIdLklt sfkm\n] ;ldltsf] ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] ljQLo l:ylt, 
cfGtl/s lgoGq0f tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg k|0ffnL, a}wflgs tyf lgodgsf/L cg'kfngf / 
n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{qmd af/] lgoldt ;dLIff ug]{ ub{5 . cfGtl/s tyf afX||o n]vfk/LIf0f 
k|ltj]bg / g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lg/LIf0f k|ltj]bgx¿ dfly lj:t[t 5nkmn / ;dLIff u/L 
;ldltn] ljQLo ;+:yf ;~rfng ;DaGwL cfjZos ;'emfjx¿ lgoldt ¿kdf ;~rfns 
;ldltnfO{ k|bfg ug]{ ub{5 . ;dLIff cjlwdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] & j6f a}7sx¿ a;]sf 
lyP . ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf jfkt ?=(!,))).– -cIf¿kL PsfgAa] xhf/_ vr{ ul/Psf] 5 .  

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7sdf 5nkmn ul/Psf d'Vo ljifox¿ 
b]xfo cg';f/ /x]sf 5g\ . 

-!_ zfvf, If]qLo sfof{no / ljefuLo k|d'vsf] sfd sf/jfxL / cg'kfngf l:ylt af/]df 
cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgx¿ pk/ ;dLIff / 5nkmn .  

-@_ ;+:yfsf] q}dfl;s ljQLo cj:yfsf] ljZn]if0f . 

-#_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{k|ult ;DaGwdf ;dLIff Pjd\ 5nkmn . 
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-$_ sfof{nox¿df /x]sf gub tyf pks/0fx¿ / :yL/ ;DklQx¿sf] ef}lts hfFrsf] 
k|ltj]bg . 

-%_ afx\o n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] ;'kl/j]If0f k|ltj]bg dfly 
5nkmn / ;'wf/sf nflu cfjZos gLlt lgb]{zg . 

--ww__  ;;~~rrffnnss,,  kk||aaGGww  ;;~~rrffnnss,,  ssffoo{{ssff//LL  kk||dd''vv,,  ssDDkkggLLssff  ccffwwff//ee""tt  zz]]oo//wwggLL  jjff  llgghhssff]]  
ggllhhssssff    ggfftt]]bbff//  jjff  llgghh  ;;++nnUUgg  //xx]]ssff]]  kkmmdd{{,,  ssDDkkggLL  jjff  ;;++uull77tt  ;;++::yyffnn]]  ssDDkkggLLnnffOO{{  ss''gg}}  
//ssdd  aa''eemmffppgg  aaffFFssLL  eePP  ;;ff]]  ss''//ffMM  

;+:yfsf ;~rfns, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t, cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL / lghsf glhssf 
gft]bf/x¿ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] o; sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd 
a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 5}g . cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLsf]¿kdf /x]sf ;+:yfut z]o/wgLx¿ d'ntM 
lxdfnog a}+s ln=, glan a}+s ln= / Pe/]i6 a}+s ln= a}+lsË ;+:yf ePsf]n] tL ;+:yf;Fu 
lgoldt a}+lsË, shf{ ;fk6 sf/f]jf/sf] ;Gbe{df n]gfb]gf afFsL /x]sf] /sdaf/] o;};fy ;+nUg 
n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / n]vf ljj/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .  

--gg__  ;;~~rrffnnss,,  kk||aaGGww  ;;~~rrffnnss,,  ssffoo{{ssff//LL  kk||dd''vv  ttyyff  kkbbffllwwssff//LLxx¿¿nnffOO{{  ee''SSttffggLL  uull//PPssff]]  
kkffll//>>llddss,,  eeQQff  ttyyff  ;;''lljjwwffssff]]  //ssddMM  

        --!!__  ccWWooIIff  ttyyff  ;;~~rrffnnss  MM  

;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsx¿nfO{ lgodfjnLdf pNn]v ePadf]lhd s/ 
;lxt qmdzM ?=*,))).– -cIf¿kL cf7 xhf/_ / ?=&,))).– -cIf¿kL ;ft xhf/_ 
k|lt a}7s eQf k|bfg ul/Psf] / ;f] afx]s dfl;s ;~rf/ vr{ jfkt ?=!,%)).–       
-cIf¿kL Ps xhf/ kfFr ;o_ k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df a}7s 
eQfjfkt ;~rfnsx¿nfO{ hDdf ?=(#&,))).– -cIf¿kL gf} nfv ;}tL; xhf/_ 
;~rfns ;ldlt vr{df vr{ ePsf] 5 .  

--@@__  ssffoo{{ssff//LL  kk||dd''vv  ttyyff  kkbbffllwwssff//LLxx¿¿nnffOO{{  ee''QQmmffggLL  uull//PPssff]]  kkffll//>>llddss,,  eeQQff  ttyyff            
;;''lljjwwffssff]]  //ssddMM    

jj||mm==;;==  lljjjj//00ff  kk||dd''vv  ssffoo{{ssff//LL  ccllwwss[[tt  JJoojj::yyffkkggssff  ccGGoo  kkbbffllwwssff//LLxx??  
!= tna !,^(#,&^$=))               $#,^(!,@(%=))      
@= eQf !,%!),!()=))             #$,*@@,^$*=))       
#= labf jfktsf] e'QmfgL #(,$%@=))                %,^*%,#)#=))      
$= aLdf  vr{ !@),)))=))               @,(&*,#%)=))        
hhDDddff  ttnnaa  ttyyff  eeQQff  ##,^#,$)^=))                  *&,!&&,%(^=))    

o; afx]s k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ lgDg adf]lhdsf ;'ljwf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

-s_ ;~rosf]if / af]g; P]g cg';f/sf] af]g; ;'ljwf . 

-v_ ;jf/L ;fwg, OGwg, ;~rf/ vr{, OG6/g]6 / kqklqsf vr{ ;'ljwf . 

--kk__  zz]]oo//wwggLLxx¿¿nn]]  aa''lleemmllnngg  aaffFFssLL  //xx]]ssff]]  nnffeeff++zzssff]]  //ssddMM  

ljut jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 3f]if0ff ePsf] v'b nfef+z dWo]] @)*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Dddf  
z]o/wgLx¿n] a'lemlng afFsL /sd ?=!@,*^(,**%.– -cIf¿kL Ps s/f]8 c¶fO{; nfv 
pgfG;Q/L xhf/ cf7 ;o krf;L_ /x]sf] 5 .  
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--kkmm__  bbkkmmff  !!$$!!  aaddff]]llhhdd  ;;DDkkllQQ  vvll//bb  jjff  llaaqqmmLL  uu//]]ssff]]  ss''//ffssff]]  lljjjj//00ffMM  

;+:yfnfO{ cfjZos ;DklQx¿sf] vl/b ljj/0f ;+nUg jf;nftsf] cg';"rL $=!! df /x]sf] 5 . 

--aa__  bbkkmmff  !!&&%%  aaddff]]llhhdd  ;;DDaa44  ssDDkkggLL  aaLLrr  eePPssff]]  ssff//ff]]aaff//ssff]]  lljjjj//00ffMM  

cfkm\gf] sf/f]jf/ tyf Joj;fosf l;nl;nfdf ul/Psf sf/f]jf/ afx]s sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] 
bkmf !&% df pNn]v eP adf]lhd cGo s'g} sf/f]jf/ ePsf] 5}g . 

--ee__  ssDDkkggLL  PP]]gg,,  @@))^̂##  ttyyff  kk||rrllnntt  ssffgg''gg  aaddff]]llhhdd  ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbggddff  vv''nnffppgg''kkgg]]{{  
ccGGoo  ss''//ffMM  

o; jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;fGble{s 7fpFdf v'nfO{Psf] 5 .  

ss[[tt11ttff  11ffkkggMM  

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] pGglt tyf k|ultsf] nflu lg/Gt/ ;xof]u, k|f]T;fxg / dfu{bz{g k|bfg u/L 
;+:yfsf] dgf]jn pRr /fVg ;xof]u k'¥ofpg' x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf k|s6 
ub{5f} . To:t}, lg/Gt/ ;xof]u / lgb]{zgsf] nflu xfdL sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn /fi6« 
a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h lnld6]8, l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë lnld6]8, shf{ 
;"rgf s]Gb| lnld6]8 / lgIf]k tyf shf{ ;'/If0f sf]ifnfO{ ;d]t wGoafb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5f}+ . ;fy}, 
;+:yfsf] k|lti7f pRr /fVg ;xof]u ug'{x'g] kqsf/x¿, o; ;+:yfnfO{ shf{ tyf a}+lsË ;'ljwf 
pknJw u/fpg] ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ Pj+ cGo ;Dk"0f{ z'e]R5'sx¿k|lt ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub{5f}+ .  

;]jf ug{ cj;/ k|bfg ug]{ xfd|f ;j} u|fxs ju{k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf k|s6 ub{5f}+ . ;a} OdfGbf/, 
kl/>dL sd{rf/Lx¿sf] kl/>daf6 ;+:yfsf] pGglt / k|ult ;Dej ePsf]n] o; cj;/df ;+:yfsf 
;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb lbG5f}+ .  

cGTodf, ljutdf emF} ;+:yfsf] pGgltsf] nflu oxfFx¿ ;a}af6 cfufdL lbgdf klg ;Nnfx, ;'emfj 
/ xf};nf k|fKt x'g] ck]Iff /fv]sf 5f}+ .  

                                          ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf6, 

  

ldltM @)*!÷)(÷@^                  ==============================          ============================= 

                                       ;ld|tf ltjf/L                      xl/ s[i0f kGt 

                                          ;~rfns                         cWoIf 

llwwttff]]kkqq  bbttff{{  ttyyff  llggiissffzzgg  llggooddffjjnnLL,,  @@))&&##  ssff]]  llggoodd  @@^̂  ssff]]  ppkkllggoodd  --@@__  ;;FFuu  ;;DDaallGGwwtt  jjfflliiff{{ss  
kk||llttjj]]bbgg  ..  

!= ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbgg  MM o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 
@= nn]]vvffkk//LLIIffssssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbgg  MM o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 
#= nn]]vvffkk//LLIIff00ff  eePPssff]]  lljjQQLLoo  lljjjj//00ff  MM o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 
$= ssffgg""ggLL  ssff//jjffxxLL  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ffMM  

-s_  ;dLIff cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] jf ;+:yfsf] lj¿4 s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 
-v_  ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj¿4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf 

kmf}hbf/L ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 
-u_  s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj¿4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 

%= ;;++uull77tt  ;;++::yyffssff]]  zz]]oo//  ssff//ff]]aaff//  ttyyff  kk||uullttssff]]  lljjZZnn]]iiff00ffMM 
-s_  lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/0ff M g]kfn :6s 

PS;r]~h lnld6]8, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{sf] ;'kl/j]If0fdf ;~rflnt ePsf] x'gfn] o; ;DaGwdf 
Joj:yfkgsf] s'g} wf/0ff gePsf] . 

-v_ cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd / clGtd d'Nosf ;fy} s'n sf/f]af/ 
z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]af/ lbg . 

q}df; -dlxgf_ 
z]o/sf] 
clwstd 

d'No 

z]o/sf] 
Go"gtd d'No 

z]o/sf] 
clGtd 
d'No 

s'n sf/f]af/ 
;+Vof 

s'n 
sf/f]af/ 
lbg 

k|yd q}dfl;s -c;f]h 
d;fGt @)*)_ 

&*! %^$ ^)(    $,%%* ^! 

bf]>f] q}dfl;s -kf}if 
d;fGt @)*)_ 

&)(=^) %$$=$) ^&( #,(%* $( 

t]>f] q}dfl;s -r}q d;fGt 
@)*)_ 

&#$ %&*=#) ^%% $,^$^ %* 

rf}yf] q}dfl;s -cfiff9 
d;fGt @)*!_ 

&%) ^!# &!!=() &,!@* ^! 
 

^= ;;dd::ooff  ttyyff  rr''ggff}}ttLLMM  

ljut jif{df ljZjJofkL ¿kdf ePsf] cfly{s lzlyntfsf]] k|efjsf] sf/0f shf{ nufgL tyf c;'nLdf ;+s'rg 
h:tf cj:yfsf] ;fdgf ug'{sf ;fy} s]lx ;d"x tyf JolQmx¿n] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ nlIft lj/f]w sfo{qmd 
;~rfng u/L n3'ljQ sfo{qmddf cj/f]w >[hgf u/L u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ ljQLo ;]jf pkof]u ug{ afwf 
k'¥ofO{ n3'ljQ sfo{j|mddf g} ca/f]w ug]{ sfo{x¿ e}/x]sf]n] ;+:yfsf] C0fL a[l4, shf{ k|jfx tyf shf{ c;'nL 
nufotsf ;]jf lj:tf/df k|ToIf c;/ b]lvPsf] 5 . o; k|sf/sf hf]lvdaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ kg]{ c;/ 
;s];Dd sd ug{ ;dofg's"n cfkm\gf sfo{qmd tyf ;]jf k|jfxdf kl/dfh{g ub}{ nluPsf] 5 .  

&= ;;++::yyffuutt  ;;''zzff;;ggMM  
 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g clej[l4sf nflu Joj:yfkg4f/f rflnPsf sbd ;DaGwL ljj/0fM 

-s_ ;~rfns ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, ;DklQ tyf bfloTj ;ldlt, ;DklQ 
z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt nufot ljleGg ;ldltx¿ lqmofzLn /x]sf 5g\ . 

-v_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfsaf6 lgoldt ¿kdf n]vfk/LIf0f u/fO{ 
k|ltj]bgdf lbOPsf ;'emfjx¿ sfof{Gjog tyf ;dLIff ug{ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s lgoldt a:g] 
u/]sf] 5 . 

-u_ ;~rfng hf]lvdx¿ sd ug{ tyf sf/f]af/nfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ ljleGg cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod tyf 
lgb]{lzsfx¿sf] th'{df ul/ nfu" ul/Psf] 5 . 
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llwwttff]]kkqq  bbttff{{  ttyyff  llggiissffzzgg  llggooddffjjnnLL,,  @@))&&##  ssff]]  llggoodd  @@^̂  ssff]]  ppkkllggoodd  --@@__  ;;FFuu  ;;DDaallGGwwtt  jjfflliiff{{ss  
kk||llttjj]]bbgg  ..  

!= ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddllttssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbgg  MM o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 
@= nn]]vvffkk//LLIIffssssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbgg  MM o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 
#= nn]]vvffkk//LLIIff00ff  eePPssff]]  lljjQQLLoo  lljjjj//00ff  MM o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 
$= ssffgg""ggLL  ssff//jjffxxLL  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ffMM  

-s_  ;dLIff cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] jf ;+:yfsf] lj¿4 s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 
-v_  ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj¿4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf 

kmf}hbf/L ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 
-u_  s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj¿4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ gePsf] . 

%= ;;++uull77tt  ;;++::yyffssff]]  zz]]oo//  ssff//ff]]aaff//  ttyyff  kk||uullttssff]]  lljjZZnn]]iiff00ffMM 
-s_  lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/0ff M g]kfn :6s 

PS;r]~h lnld6]8, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{sf] ;'kl/j]If0fdf ;~rflnt ePsf] x'gfn] o; ;DaGwdf 
Joj:yfkgsf] s'g} wf/0ff gePsf] . 

-v_ cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd / clGtd d'Nosf ;fy} s'n sf/f]af/ 
z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]af/ lbg . 

q}df; -dlxgf_ 
z]o/sf] 
clwstd 

d'No 

z]o/sf] 
Go"gtd d'No 

z]o/sf] 
clGtd 
d'No 

s'n sf/f]af/ 
;+Vof 

s'n 
sf/f]af/ 
lbg 

k|yd q}dfl;s -c;f]h 
d;fGt @)*)_ 

&*! %^$ ^)(    $,%%* ^! 

bf]>f] q}dfl;s -kf}if 
d;fGt @)*)_ 

&)(=^) %$$=$) ^&( #,(%* $( 

t]>f] q}dfl;s -r}q d;fGt 
@)*)_ 

&#$ %&*=#) ^%% $,^$^ %* 

rf}yf] q}dfl;s -cfiff9 
d;fGt @)*!_ 

&%) ^!# &!!=() &,!@* ^! 
 

^= ;;dd::ooff  ttyyff  rr''ggff}}ttLLMM  

ljut jif{df ljZjJofkL ¿kdf ePsf] cfly{s lzlyntfsf]] k|efjsf] sf/0f shf{ nufgL tyf c;'nLdf ;+s'rg 
h:tf cj:yfsf] ;fdgf ug'{sf ;fy} s]lx ;d"x tyf JolQmx¿n] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ nlIft lj/f]w sfo{qmd 
;~rfng u/L n3'ljQ sfo{qmddf cj/f]w >[hgf u/L u|fxs ;b:ox¿nfO{ ljQLo ;]jf pkof]u ug{ afwf 
k'¥ofO{ n3'ljQ sfo{j|mddf g} ca/f]w ug]{ sfo{x¿ e}/x]sf]n] ;+:yfsf] C0fL a[l4, shf{ k|jfx tyf shf{ c;'nL 
nufotsf ;]jf lj:tf/df k|ToIf c;/ b]lvPsf] 5 . o; k|sf/sf hf]lvdaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ kg]{ c;/ 
;s];Dd sd ug{ ;dofg's"n cfkm\gf sfo{qmd tyf ;]jf k|jfxdf kl/dfh{g ub}{ nluPsf] 5 .  

&= ;;++::yyffuutt  ;;''zzff;;ggMM  
 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g clej[l4sf nflu Joj:yfkg4f/f rflnPsf sbd ;DaGwL ljj/0fM 

-s_ ;~rfns ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, ;DklQ tyf bfloTj ;ldlt, ;DklQ 
z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt nufot ljleGg ;ldltx¿ lqmofzLn /x]sf 5g\ . 

-v_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfsaf6 lgoldt ¿kdf n]vfk/LIf0f u/fO{ 
k|ltj]bgdf lbOPsf ;'emfjx¿ sfof{Gjog tyf ;dLIff ug{ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s lgoldt a:g] 
u/]sf] 5 . 

-u_ ;~rfng hf]lvdx¿ sd ug{ tyf sf/f]af/nfO{ Jojl:yt ug{ ljleGg cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod tyf 
lgb]{lzsfx¿sf] th'{df ul/ nfu" ul/Psf] 5 . 
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;;++::yyffuutt  ;;''zzff;;gg  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  jjfflliiff{{ss  ccgg''kkffnnggff  kk||llttjj]]bbgg  
-;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf @)&$ adf]lhd_ 

;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] gfd llggww{{gg  ppTTyyffgg  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  

7]ufgf O{d]n  / j]j;fO{6 ;lxt lgw{g ejg, eujtLaxfn, gS;fn, sf7df08f}, g]kfn 

O{d]n M  

j]j;fO{6 M  

kmf]g g= M (&&–!–$%!#*$), $%!#&($ 

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cf=j= @)*)÷*! 

!!==    ;;~~rrffnnss  ;;llddlltt  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff    

-s_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo'lQm ldlt M >L xl/ s[i0f kGt -@)*)÷)$÷!&_ 

-v_ ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f -;+:yfks, ;j{;fwf/0f tyf cGo_ M @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtsf] ljj/0f . 

qqmm==;;==  zz]]oo//  ::jjffllddTTjj    lljjjj//00ff  zz]]oo//  kk""FFhhLL  kk||llttzztt  

!!==  ::jjbb]]zzLL  ::jjffllddTTjj  @@,,##&&$$,,$$))**,,####((..––  (())==(())  

 
æsÆ ju{sf O{hfht k|fKt ;+:yfx? ^$#,#@$,%$&.–– @$=^# 

 
cGo ;+:yfx? ^%),^&#,*&*.–– @$=(! 

 
;j{;fwf/0f !,)*),$)(,(!$.–– $!=#^ 

@@==  aa}}bb]]llzzss  ::jjffllddTTjj      @@##&&,,^̂&&!!,,$$!!!!..––    ((==!!))  

    hhDDddff    @@,,^̂!!@@,,))&&((,,&&%%))..    !!))))  

-u_ ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f -xfn sfod_ 

qqmm==;;==  
;;~~rrffnnssxx??ssff]]  ggffdd  ttyyff  

77]]uuffggff  
kk||llttllggllwwTTjj  
eePPssff]]  ;;dd''xx  

zz]]oo//  ;;++VVooff  
llggoo''llQQmm  eePPssff]]  

llddlltt  

kkbb  ttyyff  
uuff]]kkllggoottffssff]]  
zzkkyy  llnnPPssff]]  

llddlltt  

;;~~rrffnnss  
llggoo''llQQmmssff]]  
tt//LLssff              

! >L xl/ s[i0f kGt ;+:yfks ##,#^) @)&(.!!.!@ @)&(.!!.!@ lgjf{lrt 
@ >L  b]j]Gb|  axfb'/ /fpt ;+:yfks !!,!*^ @)&(.!!.!@ @)&(.!!.!@ lgjf{lrt 
# >L ;Gtf]if  s'df/ e§/fO{ 

-Pe/]i6 a}+s lnld6]8_ 
;+:yfks !,(**,(^* @)&*.)#.)$ @)&*.)#.)$ dgf]gog 

$ >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t    
-8lgn_ -gljn a}+s ln=_ 

;+:yfks @,$%#,%($ @)*).)#.@@ @)*).)#.@@ dgf]gog 

% >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL ;j{;fwf/0f 
z]o/wgL 

!*(,*@* @)&(.!!.!@ @)&(.!!.!@ lgjf{lrt 

^ >L ;ld|tf  ltjf/L ;j{;fwf/0f 
z]o/wgL 

#(! @)&(.!!.!@ @)&(.!!.!@ lgjf{lrt 

&= >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg  :jtGq  – @)*).)$.!* @)*).)$.!* :jtGq 
;~rfns 
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-3_  ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s 

 ;~rfns  ;ldltsf] a}7s ;~rfng ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 
qm=;= cf=j=@)*).*! df a;]sf] 

;~rfns ;ldltsf]  a}7ssf] 
ldlt 

pkl:yt  
;~rfnssf]  

;+Vof 

a}7ssf] lg0f{odf  leGg  
dt  /fvL x:tfIf/  ug{] 

;~rfnssf] ;+Vof 

ut cf=j=df a;]sf] 
a}7ssf] ldlt 

! @)*).)$.!& % — @)&(.)%.!@ 
@ @)*).)$.!* ^ — @)&(.)^.)& 
# @)*).)$.@@ ^ — @)&(.)^.@& 
$ @)*).)%.@^ ^ — @)&(.)*.@! 
% @)*).)&.@! & — @)&(.)(.!( 
^ @)*).)*.!! & — @)&(.!).!& 
& @)*).(*.!% & — @)&(.!!.!@ 
* @)*).)(.@^ & — @)&(.!@.)@ 
( @)*).!).!& ^ — @)*).)!.!% 
!) @)*).!!.!& ^ — @)*).)@.!$ 
!! @)*!.)!.)@ & — @)*).)#.)& 
!@ @)*!.)!.)# & — @)*).)#.@@ 
!# @)*!.)@.!# &   
!$ @)*!.)#.@^ &   

s'g} ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  a}7s  cfjZos u0fk'/s ;+Vof gk'uL :ylut  ePsf]  eP  ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 5}g . 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;DaGwL  cGo ljj/0f M 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;~rfns jf j}slNks ;~rfns pkl:yt eP gePsf] -gePsf] 
cj:yfdf a}7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg]_ M 

nfu' gx'g] 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?, 5nkmn ePsf] ljifo / tT;DaGwdf ePsf] 
lg0f{osf] ljj/0f -dfO{Go'6_ sf] 5'§} clen]v /fv] g/fv]sf] M 

/fv]sf]  

;~rfns ;ldltsf] b'O{ nuftf/ a;]sf] a}7ssf] clwstd cGt/ -lbgdf_ M  %%  lbg 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ldlt M @$ cf} 
jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef 

@)&(.!!.!@ 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt a}7s eQf -qmdz_ cWoIf÷;~rfns  ?= 
?=*,))).–, 
?=&,))).– 

cf=j=sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'n a}7s vr{ ?=  ?=(,#&,))).– 

@@==  ;;~~rrffnnssssff]]  ccffrr//00ff  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  ttyyff  ccGGoo  lljjjj//00ff  

;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] 
Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] Ps eGbf a9L ;~rfns eP ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/0f  M gePsf] 
;~rfnsx?sf] jflif{s ?kdf l;sfO{ tyf k'gtf{huL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 
qm=;= ljifo ldlt ;xeflu 

;~rfnssf] 
;+Vof 

tflnd ;+rfng 
ePsf] :yfg 

!= 
 
 

  @= 

;+:yfut ;'zf;g, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg 
tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL 

 

@)*).)(.@@ 
 

@)*).!).!@–
!# ;Dd 

! 
 
 
@ 

sf]xnk'/, afFs] 
 
 

kf]v/f, sf:sL 
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k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm" ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kGw| lbg leq b]xfosf s'/fsf] 
lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

 ;+:yf;+u lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf 
ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f, 

 lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos 
sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8j]Gr/sf] ljj/0f 

 lgh  cGo s'g} ;Îl7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f, 
 lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd 

ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf]  ljj/0f . 
 ;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] pb]Zo ePsf] ;"rLs[t ;+:yfsf]] ;~rfns, tnjL kbflwsf/L, 

sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 
 ;~rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] 

ljj/0f M 

 
 
 
 
 
u/fPsf] . 
 
 

  

##==  ;;++::yyffssff]]  hhff]]llvvdd  JJoojj::yyffkkgg  ttyyff  ccffGGttll//ss  llggooGGqq00ff  kk||00ffffnnLL  ;;DDjjGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff  

-s_ hf]lvd Aoj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt 
u7g ePsf] 5 . 

-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L 

    -c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ M 

!= ;+of]hs    M >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ 
@= ;b:o ;~rfns    M >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg  
#= ;b:o    M >L hUo k|;fb kGt  
$ ;b:o ;lrj   M  >L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ 

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof  M cf=j= @)*)÷*! df a}7s ;+Vof M & j6f  

-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M ;+:yfsf] ljwdfg hf]lvd klxrfg, Aoj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] 
k|ofKttf / pko'Qmtf, Aoj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, hf]lvd 
axgsf] nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt, gLltut Joj:yf cflb ;DaGwdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{ ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .  

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] . 

-3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M ePsf] . 

-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_  

!= ;~rfns ;ldlt M  >L xl/ s[i0f kGt -cWoIf_, >L b]j]Gb| axfb'/ /fpt -;~rfns_, >L ;Gtf]if s'df/ 
e§/fO{ -;~rfns_, >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ -;~rfns_, >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL -;~rfns_, 
>L ;ld|tf ltjf/L -;~rfns_, >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;~rfns_  

@= hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt M >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ -;++of]hs_, >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;b:o 
;~rfns_, >L hUo k|;fb kGt -;b:o_, >L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ -;b:o ;lrj_    

#= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;++of]hs_, >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L -;b:o ;~rfns_, >L 
nIdLklt sfkm\n] -;b:o ;lrj_    

$= ;Dklt z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M  >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL -;++of]hs_, >L d's]z bxfn -;b:o_, 
>L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ -;b:o_, >L hUo k|;fb kGt -;b:o ;lrj_  

3 

 

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm" ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kGw| lbg leq b]xfosf s'/fsf] 
lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

 ;+:yf;+u lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf 
ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f, 

 lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos 
sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8j]Gr/sf] ljj/0f 

 lgh  cGo s'g} ;Îl7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f, 
 lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd 

ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf]  ljj/0f . 
 ;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] pb]Zo ePsf] ;"rLs[t ;+:yfsf]] ;~rfns, tnjL kbflwsf/L, 

sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 
 ;~rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] 

ljj/0f M 

 
 
 
 
 
u/fPsf] . 
 
 

  

##==  ;;++::yyffssff]]  hhff]]llvvdd  JJoojj::yyffkkgg  ttyyff  ccffGGttll//ss  llggooGGqq00ff  kk||00ffffnnLL  ;;DDjjGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff  

-s_ hf]lvd Aoj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt 
u7g ePsf] 5 . 

-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L 

    -c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ M 

!= ;+of]hs    M >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ 
@= ;b:o ;~rfns    M >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg  
#= ;b:o    M >L hUo k|;fb kGt  
$ ;b:o ;lrj   M  >L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ 

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof  M cf=j= @)*)÷*! df a}7s ;+Vof M & j6f  

-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M ;+:yfsf] ljwdfg hf]lvd klxrfg, Aoj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] 
k|ofKttf / pko'Qmtf, Aoj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, hf]lvd 
axgsf] nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt, gLltut Joj:yf cflb ;DaGwdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{ ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .  

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] . 

-3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M ePsf] . 

-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_  

!= ;~rfns ;ldlt M  >L xl/ s[i0f kGt -cWoIf_, >L b]j]Gb| axfb'/ /fpt -;~rfns_, >L ;Gtf]if s'df/ 
e§/fO{ -;~rfns_, >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ -;~rfns_, >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL -;~rfns_, 
>L ;ld|tf ltjf/L -;~rfns_, >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;~rfns_  

@= hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt M >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ -;++of]hs_, >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;b:o 
;~rfns_, >L hUo k|;fb kGt -;b:o_, >L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ -;b:o ;lrj_    

#= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;++of]hs_, >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L -;b:o ;~rfns_, >L 
nIdLklt sfkm\n] -;b:o ;lrj_    

$= ;Dklt z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M  >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL -;++of]hs_, >L d's]z bxfn -;b:o_, 
>L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ -;b:o_, >L hUo k|;fb kGt -;b:o ;lrj_  

3 

 

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm" ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kGw| lbg leq b]xfosf s'/fsf] 
lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

 ;+:yf;+u lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf 
ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f, 

 lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos 
sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8j]Gr/sf] ljj/0f 

 lgh  cGo s'g} ;Îl7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f, 
 lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd 

ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf]  ljj/0f . 
 ;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] pb]Zo ePsf] ;"rLs[t ;+:yfsf]] ;~rfns, tnjL kbflwsf/L, 

sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 
 ;~rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] 

ljj/0f M 

 
 
 
 
 
u/fPsf] . 
 
 

  

##==  ;;++::yyffssff]]  hhff]]llvvdd  JJoojj::yyffkkgg  ttyyff  ccffGGttll//ss  llggooGGqq00ff  kk||00ffffnnLL  ;;DDjjGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff  

-s_ hf]lvd Aoj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt 
u7g ePsf] 5 . 

-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L 

    -c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ M 

!= ;+of]hs    M >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ 
@= ;b:o ;~rfns    M >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg  
#= ;b:o    M >L hUo k|;fb kGt  
$ ;b:o ;lrj   M  >L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ 

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof  M cf=j= @)*)÷*! df a}7s ;+Vof M & j6f  

-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M ;+:yfsf] ljwdfg hf]lvd klxrfg, Aoj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] 
k|ofKttf / pko'Qmtf, Aoj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd axg Ifdtf, hf]lvd 
axgsf] nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt, gLltut Joj:yf cflb ;DaGwdf lj:t[t 5nkmn u/L 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{ ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .  

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] . 

-3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M ePsf] . 

-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_  

!= ;~rfns ;ldlt M  >L xl/ s[i0f kGt -cWoIf_, >L b]j]Gb| axfb'/ /fpt -;~rfns_, >L ;Gtf]if s'df/ 
e§/fO{ -;~rfns_, >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ -;~rfns_, >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL -;~rfns_, 
>L ;ld|tf ltjf/L -;~rfns_, >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;~rfns_  

@= hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt M >L lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_ -;++of]hs_, >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;b:o 
;~rfns_, >L hUo k|;fb kGt -;b:o_, >L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ -;b:o ;lrj_    

#= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg -;++of]hs_, >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L -;b:o ;~rfns_, >L 
nIdLklt sfkm\n] -;b:o ;lrj_    

$= ;Dklt z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M  >L 6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL -;++of]hs_, >L d's]z bxfn -;b:o_, 
>L gf/fo0f axfb'/ sfsL{ -;b:o_, >L hUo k|;fb kGt -;b:o ;lrj_  



lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

235lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!
4 

 

%=  sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt M >L b]j]Gb| axfb'/ /fpt -;++of]hs_, >L d's]z bxfn -;b:o_, >L uf]s0f{ 
k|;fb pkfWofo -;b:o_, >L gf/fo0f k|;fb Gof}kfg] -;b:o ;lrj_  

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M  

qm=;= ;ldlt a}7s ;+Vof 
! ;~rfns ;ldlt !$ 
@ hf]lvd Aoj:yfkg ;ldlt & 
# n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt & 
$ ;DklQ  z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt $ 
% sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt # 

-O_  ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M  

 ;+:yfdf laBdfg ahf/, ;+rfng / shf{ hf]lvdsf] ;dLIff u/L To:tf] hf]lvd Go"gLs/0fsf nflu 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ pko'Qm ;Nnfx ;'emfj lbg] .  

 g]kfn /fi6« a}+s nufotsf lgofds lgsfo4f/f hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{zg÷dfu{lgb]{zg÷kl/kq pk/ 
;dLIff u/L ;+:yfn] lgwf{/0f u/]sf] cfGtl/s ;Ldf, pko'Qm k|rng cg'?k cfjZos gLlt tyf 
sfo{ljlwsf] kl/dfh{g u/L sfof{Gjog ug]{ .  

 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] k'g/fjnf]sg ug'{sf] ;fy} Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfj k|bfg ug]{, 
cflb . 

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf] M  ePsf] .  

$$==  ;;""rrggff  ttyyff  hhffggssff//LL  kk||jjffxx  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff    

-s_ ;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0fM 

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt 
@% cf} Afflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] 
;"rgf -k|yd k6s_ 
@% cf} Afflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] 
;"rgf -bf];|f] k6s_ 

cleofg cfly{s /fli6«o b}lgs 
 
cleofg cfly{s /fli6«o b}lgs 
 

@)*).!).!* 
 
@)*).!).@! 

ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf  gePsf] 
cf=j= @)&(.*) sf] aflif{s 
k|ltj]bg  
cf=j= @)&(.*) sf] jflif{s 
k|ltj]bg k|sflzt ul/Psf]  

k':tssf] ?kdf k|sfzg ;fy} ;+:yfsf] j]j;fO{6df ;d]t k|sflzt 
 
cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs klqsfdf ldlt @)*).!@.@* a'waf/ . 

q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg /fli6«o  b}lgs klqsf 

@)*).)&.@#, cfly{s /fli6«o b}lgs 

@)*).!).@(, cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs  

@)*!.)!.@^, cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs 
@)*!.)$.#), cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs 

lwtf]kqsf] d"Nodf k|efj kfg]{ d"No ;+j]bgzLn ;"rgf  gePsf] 
cGo gePsf] 

-v_ ;"rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/jfxLdf k/]sf] eP ;f] 
;DaGwL hfgsf/L M sf/jfxLdf gk/]sf] .  

-u_  kl5Nnf] jflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef ;GkGg ePsf] ldlt M ut cf=j= @)&(÷*) sf] @)*).!!.!! 
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%%==  ;;++::yyffuutt  ;;++//rrggff  //  ssdd{{rrff//LL  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff  

-s_  sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lt ljsf;, tflnd, tnj, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf, cfrf/ 
;+lxtf nufotsf s'/fx? ;d]l6Psf] sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj:yf eP gePsf] M ePsf] .   

-v_ ;+fu7flgs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{ M o;};fy cg';"lr–! df ;+nUg /x]sf] .  

-u_ pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  

qm=; gfd  y/ kb z}lIfs of]Uotf cg'ej 
! >L d's]z bxfn k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t :gftsf]Q/ n3'ljQdf @* jif{ 
@ >L gf/fo0f axfb'/  sfsL{ ;xfos dxfk|aGws :gftsf]Q/ n3'ljQdf @* jif{ 
# >L uf]s0f{ k|;fb pkfWofo sf=d'= ;= dxfk|jGws :gftsf]Q/ n3'ljQdf @* jif{ 

$ >L gf/fo0f k|;fb Gof}kfg] d'Vo Aoj:yfks :gftsf]Q/ n3'ljQdf @& jif{ 

% >L nIdLklt sfkm\n]  d'Vo Joj:yfks :gftsf]Q/ n3'ljQdf @* jif{ 

^ >L hUo k|;fb kGt jl/i7 Joj:yfks :gftsf]Q/ n3'ljQdf !^ jif{ 

-3_ sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f 

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk"lt{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] M  u/]sf] .  
gofF sd{rf/Lx?sf] kbk"lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf] k|s[of M  sd{rf/L ;]jf ljlgodfjnL cg';f/ ePsf]  
Joj:yfkg :t/sf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof M  ^& hgf  
s'n sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof M  !,!@@ hgf  
sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] M  5 . 
cf=j=@)*)÷*! df sd{rf/L tflnd vr{ ?= ?=!%,@!#,*^%.#^ 
cf=j=@)*)÷*! df sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ lbOPsf] tflnd ;+Vof tyf 
;lDdlnt sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM  

^% j6f÷!,^$& hgf  -sd{rf/L PseGbf 
al9 tflnddf ;xefuL_ 

s'n vr{df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt M !^=($Ü  
^̂==  ;;++::yyffssff]]  nn]]vvff  ttyyff  nn]]vvffkk//LLIIff00ff  ;;DDaaGGwwLL  lljjjj//00ff    

-s_ n]vf ;DaGwL ljj/0f 

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf= j= sf] ljQLo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/ tof/ u/]÷gu/]sf], 
gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M  

tof/ u/]sf] .  

;~rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt M   #@! cf} 
a}7sn] 

@)*!.)*.!$ 

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt M  klxnf]  M @)*).)&.@# 
bf];|f]   M @)*).!).@(  
t];|f]   M @)*!.)!.@^ 
rf}yf]  M @)*!.)$.#) 

clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M  @)*!.)*.!@ 
;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt M  ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g afFsL 

/x]sf] . 
;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  
-c_  cfGtl/s?kdf n]vfk/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] jf jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ug]{ ul/Psf]  
-cf_ jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f  
-O_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ ul/Psf] -q}dfl;s, rf}dfl;s jf 
cw{jflif{s_  

-c_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f  
ug]{ u/]sf] . 
-cf_ gePsf]] .  
-O_ rf}dfl;s ?kdf ug]{ 
u/]sf] . 



lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

255lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

6 

 

-v_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd, kb tyf of]Uotf M  
                                              ;+of]hs         M      >L s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg, :gftsf]Q/ 

        ;b:o ;~rfns M      >L ;ld|tf ltjf/L, :gftsf]Q/ 
                       ;b:o ;lrj     M      >L nIdLklt sfkm\n], :gftsf]Q/ 

j}7s a;]sf] ldlt tyf pkl:yt ;b:o ;+Vof  
l;=g= a}7s g= a}7s ldlt pkl:ylt ;+Vof 
!= (@ @)*).)$.!& # 
@= (# @)*).)&.!^ # 
#= ($ @)*).)(.@^ # 
$= (% @)*).!).!& # 
%= (^ @)*).!).@$ # 
^= (& @)*).!@.@% # 
&= (* @)*!.)!.@$ @ 

 

 

k|lt j}7s eQf ?= M  ?=&,))).)) 
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfkm\gf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] 
ldlt M  

@)*!.)*.!@ 

&&==  ccGGoo  lljjjj//00ff  

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] JolQm, a}Í tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 C0f jf ;fk6L jf cGo s'g} ¿kdf /sd lnP÷glnPsf]  

glnPsf] . 

k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/, k/fdz{bftfsf] 
x}l;otdf kfpg] ;'ljwf jf nfe afx]s ;"lrs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s'g} 
JolQm, kmd{, sDkgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/ jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;DklQ s'g} lsl;dn] 
ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf]  

gu/]sf] . 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf] zt{x?sf] kfngf eP÷gePsf]  Kffngf ePsf] . 
lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbOPsf] lgb]{zg 
kfngf eP÷gePsf]  

Kffngf ePsf] . 

;+:yf jf ;~rfns lj?4 cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f  gePsf] . 

  

  
cg'kfngf clws[tsf]                                                               k|dfl0ft ug]{M 
gfd M lhtf/fd uf}td                                                          cg'k g]kfn, Pkm=l;=P=                                                      
kb M jl/i7 Joj:yfks                                                          P= g]kfn P;f]l;P6\;                                                                                                       
ldlt M @)*!.)(.)!                                                            rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6;\ 
                                                                        gofF afg]Zj/, sf7df08f}+ g]kfn   

 
;+:yfsf] 5fk M  
k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t ldlt M @)*!.)(.)!  
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ccgg''kkffnnggff  ccllwwss[[ttssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbggssff]]  ;;ff//  ;;++IIff]]kk  

;dLIff cjlwdf d]/f] dftxtdf /x]sf] ;+:yfsf] cg'kfngf ljefun] ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/jfxLx¿sf] 
;'Id cjnf]sg / ;+k/LIf0f ug]{ u/]sf] lyof] . o:tf] cg'udg ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod, 
ljlgod, lgb]{zg Pj+ ;Da4 P]g, lgod, lgodgsf/L lgsfosf] gLlt, lgb]{zg, kl/kq, sfo{ljwLsf] 
kl/k|]Ifdf ug]{ ul/Psf]] 5 . tb\cfwf/df ;+:yfn] ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 Jojl:yt tyf gLlt lgb]{zg 
k'0f{¿kdf kfngf ug'{sf cltl/Qm M 

-s_ ;Dk'0f{ ;Da4 P]g, lgodfjnL tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;do ;dodf hf/L ePsf] gLlt 
tyf lgb]{zg adf]lhd ug'{kg]{ s'/f, 

-v_ lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{sf avt tf]s]sf zt{x¿, 

-u_ lgodgsf/L lgsfon]] ;+:yfsf] lgodg, lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] lgb]{zg 
;d]t cBfjlws¿kdf k"0f{ kfngf tyf ;dLIff cjlwdf u}/cg'kfngf ePsf] elg s'g} klg 
lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;+:yf lj¿4 s'g} cg'zf:tL -Sanction_ k|o'Qm ePsf] 5}g egL 
k|ltj]bg ub{5' . 

lhtf/fd uf}td 
cg'kfngf clws[t  

 

ccff==jj==  @@))**))÷÷))**!!  ddff  kk||ffKKtt  uu''ggff;;ff]]ssff  ;;DDaaGGwwddff  

 

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! df lnlvt tyf df}lvs÷kmf]]g dfkm{t ;]jf k|jfx nufotsf ljifodf #*    
-c8\tL;_ hgf ;]jfu|fxLx¿n] u|fxs u'gf;f] tyf ;DaGw Joj:yfkg O{sfO{ ;dIf u'gf;f] ug'{ ePsf] 
/ pQm u'gf;f]sf ;DaGwdf u'gf;f]sf] k|s[ltsf cfwf/df ;Dej eP;Dd tTsfn} tyf ;dodf g} 
;dfwfg ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] .  

lhtf/fd uf}td 
cg'kfngf clws[t 
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ccgg''kkffnnggff  ccllwwss[[ttssff]]  kk||llttjj]]bbggssff]]  ;;ff//  ;;++IIff]]kk  

;dLIff cjlwdf d]/f] dftxtdf /x]sf] ;+:yfsf] cg'kfngf ljefun] ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/jfxLx¿sf] 
;'Id cjnf]sg / ;+k/LIf0f ug]{ u/]sf] lyof] . o:tf] cg'udg ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod, 
ljlgod, lgb]{zg Pj+ ;Da4 P]g, lgod, lgodgsf/L lgsfosf] gLlt, lgb]{zg, kl/kq, sfo{ljwLsf] 
kl/k|]Ifdf ug]{ ul/Psf]] 5 . tb\cfwf/df ;+:yfn] ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 Jojl:yt tyf gLlt lgb]{zg 
k'0f{¿kdf kfngf ug'{sf cltl/Qm M 

-s_ ;Dk'0f{ ;Da4 P]g, lgodfjnL tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;do ;dodf hf/L ePsf] gLlt 
tyf lgb]{zg adf]lhd ug'{kg]{ s'/f, 

-v_ lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{sf avt tf]s]sf zt{x¿, 

-u_ lgodgsf/L lgsfon]] ;+:yfsf] lgodg, lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] lgb]{zg 
;d]t cBfjlws¿kdf k"0f{ kfngf tyf ;dLIff cjlwdf u}/cg'kfngf ePsf] elg s'g} klg 
lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;+:yf lj¿4 s'g} cg'zf:tL -Sanction_ k|o'Qm ePsf] 5}g egL 
k|ltj]bg ub{5' . 

lhtf/fd uf}td 
cg'kfngf clws[t  

 

ccff==jj==  @@))**))÷÷))**!!  ddff  kk||ffKKtt  uu''ggff;;ff]]ssff  ;;DDaaGGwwddff  

 

cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! df lnlvt tyf df}lvs÷kmf]]g dfkm{t ;]jf k|jfx nufotsf ljifodf #*    
-c8\tL;_ hgf ;]jfu|fxLx¿n] u|fxs u'gf;f] tyf ;DaGw Joj:yfkg O{sfO{ ;dIf u'gf;f] ug'{ ePsf] 
/ pQm u'gf;f]sf ;DaGwdf u'gf;f]sf] k|s[ltsf cfwf/df ;Dej eP;Dd tTsfn} tyf ;dodf g} 
;dfwfg ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf] .  

lhtf/fd uf}td 
cg'kfngf clws[t 

 

cg'kfngf clws[tsf] k|ltj]bgsf] ;f/ ;+If]k

;dLIff cjlwdf d]/f] dftxtdf /x]sf] ;+:yfsf] cg'kfngf ljefun] ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/jfxLx¿sf] ;"Id 
cjnf]sg / ;'k/LIf0f ug]{ u/]sf] lyof] . o:tf] cg'udg ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod, ljlgod, 
lgb]{zg Pj+ ;Da4 P]g, lgod, lgodgsf/L lgsfosf] gLlt, lgb]{zg, kl/kq, sfo{ljlwsf] kl/k|]Ifdf 
ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . tb\cfwf/df ;+:yfn] ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 Jojl:yt tyf gLlt, lgb]{zg k"0f{¿kdf 
kfngf ug'{sf cltl/Qm M

-s_	;Dk"0f{ ;Da4 P]g, lgodfjnL tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;do ;dodf hf/L ePsf] gLlt tyf 
lgb]{zg adf]lhd ug'{kg]{ s'/f,

-v_ 	lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{sf avt tf]s]sf zt{x¿,

-u_ 	lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg, lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] lgb]{zg 
;d]t cBfjlws¿kdf k"0f{ kfngf tyf ;dLIff cjlwdf u}/cg'kfngf ePsf] elg s'g} klg 
lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;+:yf lj¿4 s'g} cg'zf:tL -Sanction_ k|o'Qm ePsf] 5}g egL k|ltj]bg 
ub{5' .

lhtf/fd uf}td
cg'kfngf clws[t
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Statement of Financial Position 

As on 31 Ashad 2081 
 

Assets  Note      Current Year                                Previous Year 
Cash and Cash equivalent  4.1 2,076,026,449                               1,822,432,593 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 576,720,625                                          433,404,153 
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 450,000,000 - 
Derivative Financial Instruments  4.4 - - 
Other Trading Assets  4.5 - - 
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - - 
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 24,126,806,408                               24,312,643,330 
Investment Securities  4.8 194,552,557 296,998,306 
Current Tax Assets  4.9 24,680,645 75,125,183 
Investment Property  4.10 - - 
Property and Equipment  4.11 231,998,067 259,752,436 
Goodwill and Intangible assets  4.12 891,077 822,873 
Deferred Tax Assets  4.13 303,651,708 416,371,749 
Other Assets  4.14 324,081,735 308,900,138 
Total Assets   28,309,409,271                                27,926,450,761 
     

Liabilities  Note       Current Year       Previous Year 
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - - 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  4.16 - - 
Derivative Financial Instrument  4.17 - - 
Deposits from Customers  4.18 20,185,243,809    19,114,293,315 
Borrowing  4.19 2,870,613,904                                3,946,721,839 
Current Tax Liabilities  4.9 - - 
Provisions  4.20 14,590,860 14,590,102 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  4.13 - - 
Other Liabilities  4.21 283,348,846 159,071,130 
Debt Securities Issued  4.22 - - 
Subordinated Liabilities  4.23 - - 
Total Liabilities   23,353,797,419 23,234,676,386 
     

Equity     

Share Capital  4.24 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
Share Premium   510,111 510,111
Retained Earnings   (136,573,150) (357,515,437)
Reserves  4.25 2,479,595,140 2,436,699,951 
Total Equity   4,955,611,852 4,691,774,375 
Total Liabilities and Equity   28,309,409,271                                 27,926,450,761 

 
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 

 
4.26 

 
4,998,540 

 
4,998,540 

Net Assets Value per Share   189.72 179.62 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut           Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)             (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                  A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                 (Manager)                                                               Chartered Accountants. 
 
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                        Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                   (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                        Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
                                                                                             Statement of Profit or Loss  
                                            For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 
 
Particulars Note      Current Year                  Previous Year 
Interest Income 4.27 3,843,295,104 3,960,779,572 
Interest Expense 4.28 1,925,012,451 2,015,927,106 
Net Interest Income  1,918,282,652 1,944,852,465 
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 348,009,076 135,677,411 
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 1,809,783 5,769,078 
Net Fee and Commission Income  346,199,294 129,908,333 
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income  2,264,481,946 2,074,760,798 
Net Trading Income 4.31 - - 
Other Operating Income 4.32 9,359,370 2,413,995 
Total Operating Income  2,273,841,316 2,077,174,793 
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 433,460,509 875,980,527 
Net Operating Income  1,840,380,807 1,201,194,266 
Operating Expense    

Personnel Expenses 4.34 927,595,290 833,887,100 
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 73,830,915 73,918,305 
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 53,998,050 51,343,404 
Operating Profit  784,956,552 242,045,458 
Non Operating Income 4.37 21,354,839 6,612,731 
Non Operating Expense 4.38                                   -    4,754,859 
Profit before Income Tax  806,311,391 243,903,330 
Income Tax Expense 4.39 540,062,831 73,945,216 

Current Tax  430,987,314 362,153,786 
Deferred Tax  109,075,517 (288,208,570) 

Profit for the year  266,248,560 169,958,114 
Profit attributable to :    

Equity holders of the Financial Institution  266,248,560 169,958,114 
Profit for the year  266,248,560 169,958,114 

 
Earnings per share 

   

Basic earnings per share  10.19 6.51 
Diluted earnings per share  10.19 6.51 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                    A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                                Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                           Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                          Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
                                                                                             Statement of Profit or Loss  
                                            For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 
 
Particulars Note      Current Year                  Previous Year 
Interest Income 4.27 3,843,295,104 3,960,779,572 
Interest Expense 4.28 1,925,012,451 2,015,927,106 
Net Interest Income  1,918,282,652 1,944,852,465 
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 348,009,076 135,677,411 
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 1,809,783 5,769,078 
Net Fee and Commission Income  346,199,294 129,908,333 
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income  2,264,481,946 2,074,760,798 
Net Trading Income 4.31 - - 
Other Operating Income 4.32 9,359,370 2,413,995 
Total Operating Income  2,273,841,316 2,077,174,793 
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 433,460,509 875,980,527 
Net Operating Income  1,840,380,807 1,201,194,266 
Operating Expense    

Personnel Expenses 4.34 927,595,290 833,887,100 
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 73,830,915 73,918,305 
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 53,998,050 51,343,404 
Operating Profit  784,956,552 242,045,458 
Non Operating Income 4.37 21,354,839 6,612,731 
Non Operating Expense 4.38                                   -    4,754,859 
Profit before Income Tax  806,311,391 243,903,330 
Income Tax Expense 4.39 540,062,831 73,945,216 

Current Tax  430,987,314 362,153,786 
Deferred Tax  109,075,517 (288,208,570) 

Profit for the year  266,248,560 169,958,114 
Profit attributable to :    

Equity holders of the Financial Institution  266,248,560 169,958,114 
Profit for the year  266,248,560 169,958,114 

 
Earnings per share 

   

Basic earnings per share  10.19 6.51 
Diluted earnings per share  10.19 6.51 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                    A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                                Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                           Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                          Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 
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          Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
                                                                                                    Statement of Comprehensive Income  

                                                  For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 

 Particulars Note Current Year             Previous   Year 
Profit for the year  266,248,560 169,958,114 
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax    

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value  - - 
Gains/(losses) on Revaluation    

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  12,148,407 116,854,517 
Income tax relating to above items  (3,644,522) (35,056,355) 
 Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss       8,503,885 81,798,162 
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss    

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge  - - 
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)  - - 
Income tax relating to above items  - - 
Reclassify to profit or loss  - - 
 Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 
 

8,503,885 81,798,162 
Total comprehensive income for the year  274,752,445 251,756,276 
Total comprehensive income for the period  274,752,445 251,756,276 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                    A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                                Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                          Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                         Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 

  

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Statement of Change in Equity 

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Institution 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Ashad 2081 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Share Share General Exchange Regulatory Fair Value Revalutation Reschedule & Restructure Retained Other 
Capital Premium Reserve Equalization Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Reserves

Balance at Asar end 2079 2,195,025,000 510,111 1,137,198,688 709,566                      488,948,193   -          -               487,303,543      317,926,968 4,627,622,068 
Balance at Shrawan 1 2079 2,195,025,000 510,111 1,137,198,688 709,566                      488,948,193   -          -               487,303,543      317,926,968 4,627,622,069 
Adjustment/Restatement -                   -         -                   -                             (117,019,889) -          -               -                                      204,438,919      -                -                   
Restatement of Regulatory Reserve (117,019,889) 204,438,919      (87,419,030)  

Adjusted/Restated balance at Shrawan 1 2079 2,195,025,000 510,111 1,137,198,688 709,566                      371,928,303   -          -               691,742,461      230,507,939 4,627,622,069 
Comprehensive income for the year -                   

Profit for the year 169,958,114      169,958,114    
Other comprehensive income, net of tax -                   

> Gains/(losses) from investments in equity -                   
 instruments measured at fair value -                   

> Gains/(losses) on revaluation -                   
> Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans -                 81,798,162        81,798,162      
> Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge -                   
> Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating -                   
   financial assets of foreign operation) -                   

Total comprehensive income for the year -                   -         -                   -                             -                 -          -               251,756,276      -                251,756,276    
Transfer to reserve during the year (3,399,162)        97,835,848   94,436,686      
Transfer from reserve during the year 33,991,623      302,644,502   298,403,345                        (729,476,156)    (36,519,864)  (130,956,550)   

Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity -                -                   
Share issued -                -                   
Share based payments -                -                   
Transfer to Employees' training fund -                -                   

Previous Year Adjustment of Housing Loan (129,133,856)    -                (129,133,856)   
Dividends to equity holders -                -                   

> Bonus shares issued 417,054,750    (417,054,750)    -                -                   
> Cash dividend paid (21,950,250)      -                (21,950,250)     

Other -                    -                -                   
Total contributions by and distributions 417,054,750    -         33,991,623      -                             302,644,502   -          -               298,403,345                        (1,301,014,175) 61,315,984   (187,603,970)   
Balance at Asar end 2080 2,612,079,750 510,111 1,171,190,311 709,566                      674,572,806   -          -               298,403,345                        (357,515,437)    291,823,923 4,691,774,375 

Particulars Total

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                                A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                                            Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                                      Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                                     Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Statement of Change in Equity 

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Institution 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Ashad 2081 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Share Share General Exchange Regulatory Fair Value Revalutation Reschedule & Restructure Retained Other 
Capital Premium Reserve Equalization Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Reserves

Balance at Asar end 2079 2,195,025,000 510,111 1,137,198,688 709,566                      488,948,193   -          -               487,303,543      317,926,968 4,627,622,068 
Balance at Shrawan 1 2079 2,195,025,000 510,111 1,137,198,688 709,566                      488,948,193   -          -               487,303,543      317,926,968 4,627,622,069 
Adjustment/Restatement -                   -         -                   -                             (117,019,889) -          -               -                                      204,438,919      -                -                   
Restatement of Regulatory Reserve (117,019,889) 204,438,919      (87,419,030)  

Adjusted/Restated balance at Shrawan 1 2079 2,195,025,000 510,111 1,137,198,688 709,566                      371,928,303   -          -               691,742,461      230,507,939 4,627,622,069 
Comprehensive income for the year -                   

Profit for the year 169,958,114      169,958,114    
Other comprehensive income, net of tax -                   

> Gains/(losses) from investments in equity -                   
 instruments measured at fair value -                   

> Gains/(losses) on revaluation -                   
> Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans -                 81,798,162        81,798,162      
> Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge -                   
> Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating -                   
   financial assets of foreign operation) -                   

Total comprehensive income for the year -                   -         -                   -                             -                 -          -               251,756,276      -                251,756,276    
Transfer to reserve during the year (3,399,162)        97,835,848   94,436,686      
Transfer from reserve during the year 33,991,623      302,644,502   298,403,345                        (729,476,156)    (36,519,864)  (130,956,550)   

Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity -                -                   
Share issued -                -                   
Share based payments -                -                   
Transfer to Employees' training fund -                -                   

Previous Year Adjustment of Housing Loan (129,133,856)    -                (129,133,856)   
Dividends to equity holders -                -                   

> Bonus shares issued 417,054,750    (417,054,750)    -                -                   
> Cash dividend paid (21,950,250)      -                (21,950,250)     

Other -                    -                -                   
Total contributions by and distributions 417,054,750    -         33,991,623      -                             302,644,502   -          -               298,403,345                        (1,301,014,175) 61,315,984   (187,603,970)   
Balance at Asar end 2080 2,612,079,750 510,111 1,171,190,311 709,566                      674,572,806   -          -               298,403,345                        (357,515,437)    291,823,923 4,691,774,375 

Particulars Total

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                                A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                                            Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                                      Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                                     Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 
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 Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Statement of Change in Equity 

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Institution 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Ashad 2081 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Share Share General Exchange Regulatory Fair Value Revalutation Reschedule & Restructure Retained Other 
Capital Premium Reserve Equalization Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Reserves

Balance at Shrawan 1 2080 2,612,079,750 510,111 1,171,190,311 709,566                      674,572,806   -          -               298,403,345                        (357,515,437)    291,823,923 4,691,774,375 
Comprehensive income for the year -                   

Profit for the year 266,248,560      266,248,560    
Other comprehensive income, net of tax -                   

> Gains/(losses) from investments in equity -                   
 instruments measured at fair value -                   

> Gains/(losses) on revaluation -                   
> Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 8,503,885          8,503,885        
> Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge -                   
> Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating -                   
   financial assets of foreign operation) -                   

Total comprehensive income for the year -                   -         -                   -                             -                 -          -               274,752,445      -                274,752,445    
Transfer to reserve due to Adjustment/Restatement (1,101,209)        -                -                   
Transfer to reserve during the year 53,249,712      24,256,082        23,715,319   101,221,113    
Transfer from reserve during the year (14,422,015)   (9,834,067)                          (76,965,031)      (10,914,968)  (112,136,081)   

Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity -                -                   
Share issued -                -                   
Share based payments -                -                   
Transfer to Employees' training fund -                -                   

Previous Year Adjustment of Housing Loan -                    -                -                   
Dividends to equity holders -                -                   

> Bonus shares issued -                   -                    -                -                   
> Cash dividend paid -                    -                -                   

Other -                    -                -                   
Total contributions by and distributions -                   -         53,249,712      -                             (14,422,015)   -          -               (9,834,067)                          (53,810,157)      13,901,559   (10,914,968)     
Balance at Asar end 2081 2,612,079,750 510,111 1,224,440,023 709,566                      660,150,791   -          -               288,569,278                        (136,573,150)    305,725,482 4,955,611,852 

TotalParticulars

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                              A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                                          Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                                    Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                                   Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 

  

 
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Interest received 3,827,424,380 3,943,289,568 
Fees and other income received 348,009,076 141,507,149 
Divided received - - 
Receipts from other operating activities 8,980,975 2,253,855 
Interest paid (1,925,012,451) (2,001,935,036) 
Commission and fees paid (1,809,783) (5,769,078) 
Cash payment to employees (927,595,290) (847,879,170) 
Other expense paid (542,345,718) (1,005,214,103) 
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 787,651,189 226,253,186 
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets   

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (143,316,473) (40,490,004) 
Placement with bank and financial institutions (450,000,000) - 
Other trading assets - - 
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - - 
Loans and advances to customers 185,836,922 2,856,350,862 
Other assets 147,982,982 (207,371,830) 

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 
  

Due to bank and financial institutions - - 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - 
Deposit from customers 1,070,950,494 931,463,793 
Borrowings (1,076,107,935) (2,342,617,161) 
Other liabilities                                                                   87,618,841 (351,807,745) 
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid    610,616,021 1,071,781,101 
Income taxes paid (540,062,831) (73,945,216) 
Net cash flow from operating activities 70,553,190 997,835,885 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  

Purchase of investment securities     102,445,749 - 
Receipts from sale of investment securities - - 
Purchase of property and equipment 27,495,973 (117,850,733) 
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment 450,115 - 
Purchase of intangible assets - - 
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets - - 
Purchase of investment properties - - 
Receipt from the sale of investment properties - - 
Interest received 15,870,724 17,490,004 
Dividend received 118,472 168,822 
Net cash used in investing activities 146,381,033 (100,191,907) 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

Receipt from issue of debt securities - - 
Repayment of debt securities - - 
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - - 
Repayment of subordinated liabilities - - 
Receipt from issue of shares - - 
Dividends paid 36,659,633 (105,805,808) 
Interest paid - - 
Other receipt/payment - - 
Net cash from financing activities 36,659,633 (105,805,808) 

 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

 
253,593,856 

 
791,838,170 

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1 2080 1,822,432,593 1,030,594,424 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - - 
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2081 2,076,026,449 1,822,432,593 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                  A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                              Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                        Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                       Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 31 Ashad 2081 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Interest received 3,827,424,380 3,943,289,568 
Fees and other income received 348,009,076 141,507,149 
Divided received - - 
Receipts from other operating activities 8,980,975 2,253,855 
Interest paid (1,925,012,451) (2,001,935,036) 
Commission and fees paid (1,809,783) (5,769,078) 
Cash payment to employees (927,595,290) (847,879,170) 
Other expense paid (542,345,718) (1,005,214,103) 
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 787,651,189 226,253,186 
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets   

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (143,316,473) (40,490,004) 
Placement with bank and financial institutions (450,000,000) - 
Other trading assets - - 
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - - 
Loans and advances to customers 185,836,922 2,856,350,862 
Other assets 147,982,982 (207,371,830) 

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 
  

Due to bank and financial institutions - - 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - 
Deposit from customers 1,070,950,494 931,463,793 
Borrowings (1,076,107,935) (2,342,617,161) 
Other liabilities                                                                   87,618,841 (351,807,745) 
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid    610,616,021 1,071,781,101 
Income taxes paid (540,062,831) (73,945,216) 
Net cash flow from operating activities 70,553,190 997,835,885 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  

Purchase of investment securities     102,445,749 - 
Receipts from sale of investment securities - - 
Purchase of property and equipment 27,495,973 (117,850,733) 
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment 450,115 - 
Purchase of intangible assets - - 
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets - - 
Purchase of investment properties - - 
Receipt from the sale of investment properties - - 
Interest received 15,870,724 17,490,004 
Dividend received 118,472 168,822 
Net cash used in investing activities 146,381,033 (100,191,907) 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

Receipt from issue of debt securities - - 
Repayment of debt securities - - 
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - - 
Repayment of subordinated liabilities - - 
Receipt from issue of shares - - 
Dividends paid 36,659,633 (105,805,808) 
Interest paid - - 
Other receipt/payment - - 
Net cash from financing activities 36,659,633 (105,805,808) 

 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

 
253,593,856 

 
791,838,170 

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1 2080 1,822,432,593 1,030,594,424 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - - 
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2081 2,076,026,449 1,822,432,593 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      As per our report of even date. 

Hari Krishna Pant                                       Santosh Kumar Bhattarai                            Niraj Kumar Basnet (Danil) 
(Chairman)                                                  (Director)                                          (Director)     
 

 

Devendra Bahadur Raut            Top Bahadur Rayamajhi                       Samrita Tiwari 
(Director)               (Director)                        (Director) 
 

 

Krishna Kumar Pradhan                             Puskar Raj Subedi                                                                                                                  A. Nepal & Associates, 
(Director)                                                  (Manager)                                                              Chartered Accountants. 
     
 

 
Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya                         Mukesh Dahal                                                                                                                        Date: 29th Nov 2024 
(Act. Asst. General Manager)                    (Chief Executive Officer)                                                                                                       Place: Kathmandu. Nepal. 
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Asar 2081 
 
1 Reporting Entity 
1.1 Corporate Information 
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (NULBSL or "the Financial Institution") has been in operation since 
1998. It is a public limited company, registered under The Companies Act, 1997 (now The Companies Act, 2006), carrying 
micro-finance activities. The Financial Institution is licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) in April 1999 to undertake 
banking activities under the Development Bank Act, 1996, and started its formal operation in July 1999. Now, operating 
under the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2017 (BAFIA) as a "D" Class Financial Institution. 

1.2 Principal Activities of the Financial Institution 
The Financial Institution provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance 
services to low-income families of Nepal. NULBSL follows group lending based on Grameen Bank, Bangladesh model 
as well as group lending based on NULBSL developed Self-Reliant model through a network of 185 branch offices spread 
over all 77 districts of Nepal. 
 
The Head Office of the Financial Institution is located at Naxal-01, Kathmandu, Nepal. Its ordinary shares are listed with 
Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd and its stock symbol is "NUBL". 

2 Basis of Preparation 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as prescribed by Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRSs), as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). 
 
The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of format issued by Nepal 
Rastra Bank via Unified Directives to Microfinance FIs, 2079. 
 
The Financial Statements comprise of: 

 Statement of Financial Position stating the financial position of the financial institution as at the end of reporting 
period; 

 Statement of Profit and Loss stating the financial performance of the financial institution for the reported period 
ended; 

 Statement of Comprehensive Income for the reported period ended; 
 Statement of Changes in Equity stating all the changes in equity of the financial institution during the reporting 

period; 
 Statement of Cash Flows stating the ability of the financial institution to generate cash and cash equivalents; and  
 Notes to the Financial Statements comprising summary of principal accounting policies and explanatory notes 

that are of significant importance to the stakeholders. 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors following Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRSs) with allowed carve-outs as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation 
of financial statements are set out in Note - 3. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented 
except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically. 
 

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements 
The Financial Institution follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar starting from the first day 
of Shrawan (Mid July) of each year to the last day of Asar (Mid July) of the next year. Comparative reporting period 

figures have been restated/reclassified wherever necessary by the standards/regulations and/or for better presentation which 
has been disclosed separately, wherever necessary. 
 
The accompanied Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its 321st meeting held on 14th 
Mangsir,2081. The Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the Financial 
Institution and has been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 26th Annual General Meeting. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the functional and presentation currency of the 
Financial Institution. There was no change in the presentation and functional currency during the year under review. The 
figures are rounded to nearest rupee unless otherwise indicated. 

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgments 
As a result of the uncertainties inherent in business activities, many items in Financial Statements cannot be measured with 
precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest available, reliable information. 
An estimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimate was based or as a result of 
new information or more experience. During the preparation of the financial statements, NFRS requires the management 
to make critical accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that have a material 
impact on the financial statements. 
 
The underlying assumption made while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision is 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively. Change in estimates is not the 
correction of an error. Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes 
of accounting estimates in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied. 

2.5 Changes in Accounting policies 
Generally accepted accounting policies are followed consistently throughout the accounting period, so as to present the 
general-purpose financial statements ensuring comparability both with the entity’s financial statements of previous periods 
and with the financial statements of other comparable entities. However, the changes when required by NFRS or due to 
the requirement that results in the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant information about the 
effects of the transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows 
are made and the changes are applied retrospectively. 
 
2.6 New standards in issue but not yet effective 
As per the guidelines of the ICAN, When International Accounting Standard Board revises, amends or withdraws 
International Accounting Standards, IFRSs, IFRIC or SIC, such revisions, amendments and withdrawals shall accordingly 
be treated as effected with immediate revision, amendment and withdrawal in NFRS by ASB as well, to the extent not in 
conflict with existing national laws. Few carve outs on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the financial institution. Further, a number of new standards and 
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting Standard Board 
after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when Accounting Standard 
Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. 
 
2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted 
In preparing financial statements, Standards and pronouncements issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal has been 
adopted. Management has used its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of financial statements under 
compliance with NFRS, however certain interpretations might vary regarding the recognition, measurement, and other 
related provisions where the standards are not specific and not clear. 
 
2.8 Discounting 
When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Financial Institution considers 
the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been 
considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the Cash Flows of the Financial Institution. Market Interest 
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Financial Year Ended 31 Asar 2081 
 
1 Reporting Entity 
1.1 Corporate Information 
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (NULBSL or "the Financial Institution") has been in operation since 
1998. It is a public limited company, registered under The Companies Act, 1997 (now The Companies Act, 2006), carrying 
micro-finance activities. The Financial Institution is licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) in April 1999 to undertake 
banking activities under the Development Bank Act, 1996, and started its formal operation in July 1999. Now, operating 
under the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2017 (BAFIA) as a "D" Class Financial Institution. 

1.2 Principal Activities of the Financial Institution 
The Financial Institution provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance 
services to low-income families of Nepal. NULBSL follows group lending based on Grameen Bank, Bangladesh model 
as well as group lending based on NULBSL developed Self-Reliant model through a network of 185 branch offices spread 
over all 77 districts of Nepal. 
 
The Head Office of the Financial Institution is located at Naxal-01, Kathmandu, Nepal. Its ordinary shares are listed with 
Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd and its stock symbol is "NUBL". 

2 Basis of Preparation 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as prescribed by Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRSs), as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). 
 
The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of format issued by Nepal 
Rastra Bank via Unified Directives to Microfinance FIs, 2079. 
 
The Financial Statements comprise of: 

 Statement of Financial Position stating the financial position of the financial institution as at the end of reporting 
period; 

 Statement of Profit and Loss stating the financial performance of the financial institution for the reported period 
ended; 

 Statement of Comprehensive Income for the reported period ended; 
 Statement of Changes in Equity stating all the changes in equity of the financial institution during the reporting 

period; 
 Statement of Cash Flows stating the ability of the financial institution to generate cash and cash equivalents; and  
 Notes to the Financial Statements comprising summary of principal accounting policies and explanatory notes 

that are of significant importance to the stakeholders. 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors following Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRSs) with allowed carve-outs as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation 
of financial statements are set out in Note - 3. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented 
except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically. 
 

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements 
The Financial Institution follows the Nepalese Financial Year based on the Nepalese Calendar starting from the first day 
of Shrawan (Mid July) of each year to the last day of Asar (Mid July) of the next year. Comparative reporting period 

figures have been restated/reclassified wherever necessary by the standards/regulations and/or for better presentation which 
has been disclosed separately, wherever necessary. 
 
The accompanied Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its 321st meeting held on 14th 
Mangsir,2081. The Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the Financial 
Institution and has been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 26th Annual General Meeting. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
Financial Statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the functional and presentation currency of the 
Financial Institution. There was no change in the presentation and functional currency during the year under review. The 
figures are rounded to nearest rupee unless otherwise indicated. 

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgments 
As a result of the uncertainties inherent in business activities, many items in Financial Statements cannot be measured with 
precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest available, reliable information. 
An estimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimate was based or as a result of 
new information or more experience. During the preparation of the financial statements, NFRS requires the management 
to make critical accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that have a material 
impact on the financial statements. 
 
The underlying assumption made while making accounting estimates are periodically reviewed and such revision is 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively. Change in estimates is not the 
correction of an error. Disclosures of the accounting estimate have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes 
of accounting estimates in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied. 

2.5 Changes in Accounting policies 
Generally accepted accounting policies are followed consistently throughout the accounting period, so as to present the 
general-purpose financial statements ensuring comparability both with the entity’s financial statements of previous periods 
and with the financial statements of other comparable entities. However, the changes when required by NFRS or due to 
the requirement that results in the financial statements providing more reliable and more relevant information about the 
effects of the transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows 
are made and the changes are applied retrospectively. 
 
2.6 New standards in issue but not yet effective 
As per the guidelines of the ICAN, When International Accounting Standard Board revises, amends or withdraws 
International Accounting Standards, IFRSs, IFRIC or SIC, such revisions, amendments and withdrawals shall accordingly 
be treated as effected with immediate revision, amendment and withdrawal in NFRS by ASB as well, to the extent not in 
conflict with existing national laws. Few carve outs on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the financial institution. Further, a number of new standards and 
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting Standard Board 
after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when Accounting Standard 
Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. 
 
2.7 New Standards and interpretation not adopted 
In preparing financial statements, Standards and pronouncements issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal has been 
adopted. Management has used its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of financial statements under 
compliance with NFRS, however certain interpretations might vary regarding the recognition, measurement, and other 
related provisions where the standards are not specific and not clear. 
 
2.8 Discounting 
When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Financial Institution considers 
the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been 
considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the Cash Flows of the Financial Institution. Market Interest 
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Rate on Staff loans except housing loan has been precluded from discounting as management considers the current interest 
rate as market rate under the same class of loans. Housing loan has been considered under EIR method. Management 
considers Lease payments under an operating lease to be recognised as an expense when accrued as the payments to the 
lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary 
cost increases. 
 
3 Significant Accounting Policies 
The principal accounting policies applied by the Financial Institution in the preparation of these financial statements are 
presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.   
 
3.1 Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in the statement 
of financial position:  
 

 Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.  
 Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less 

the fair value of the plan assets.  
 Investment securities has been measured at fair value under NFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", wherever 

applicable. 
 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income are measured at 

fair value. 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost at measured using a rate that is a close 

approximation of effective interest rate. 
  
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes. 
 
Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are netted off only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 
 
Materiality and Aggregation 
In compliance with NFRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented 
separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they are 
material. Such presentation of line items is consistent with the format issued by NRB. 
 
3.2 Cash and cash equivalent 
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, 
money at call, short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the 
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the management of 
its short-term commitments.  
 
3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements that result in future cash inflows or from owning 
equity instruments of another entity. Since financial assets derive their value from a contractual claim. These are non-
physical in form and are usually regarded as more liquid than other tangible assets. Common examples of financial assets 
are cash, cash equivalents, bank balances, placements, investments in debt and equity instruments, derivative assets and 
loans and advances. 

 
Financial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual agreements and that require settlement by way of delivering 
cash or another financial asset. Settlement could also require exchanging other financial assets or financial liabilities under 
potentially unfavourable conditions. Settlement may also be made by issuing own equity instruments. Common examples 
of financial liabilities are due to banks, derivative liabilities, deposit accounts, money market borrowings and debt capital 
instruments. 
 
Recognition 
The Financial Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position 
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Financial Institution initially 
recognize loans and advances, deposits, and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are 
originated which is the date that the Financial Institution becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debentures, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, 
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Financial Institution commits to purchase/acquire the financial 
assets. Regular purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are 
initially recognized at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification. 
 
Classification  
i. Financial Assets  
The Financial Institution classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the 
basis of the Financial Institution’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows: 
 
1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost  
The Financial Institution classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:  

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows, and  

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of 
Principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

 
2. Financial asset measured at fair value  
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured at fair 
value are further classified into two categories as below: 

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable 
to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value 
and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 
b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Financial 
Institution makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be 
recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other 
comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 
ii. Financial Liabilities  
The Financial Institution classifies the financial liabilities as follows:  

a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to 
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Rate on Staff loans except housing loan has been precluded from discounting as management considers the current interest 
rate as market rate under the same class of loans. Housing loan has been considered under EIR method. Management 
considers Lease payments under an operating lease to be recognised as an expense when accrued as the payments to the 
lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary 
cost increases. 
 
3 Significant Accounting Policies 
The principal accounting policies applied by the Financial Institution in the preparation of these financial statements are 
presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.   
 
3.1 Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in the statement 
of financial position:  
 

 Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.  
 Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less 

the fair value of the plan assets.  
 Investment securities has been measured at fair value under NFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", wherever 

applicable. 
 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income are measured at 

fair value. 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost at measured using a rate that is a close 

approximation of effective interest rate. 
  
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes. 
 
Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are netted off only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 
 
Materiality and Aggregation 
In compliance with NFRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented 
separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they are 
material. Such presentation of line items is consistent with the format issued by NRB. 
 
3.2 Cash and cash equivalent 
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, 
money at call, short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the 
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the management of 
its short-term commitments.  
 
3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements that result in future cash inflows or from owning 
equity instruments of another entity. Since financial assets derive their value from a contractual claim. These are non-
physical in form and are usually regarded as more liquid than other tangible assets. Common examples of financial assets 
are cash, cash equivalents, bank balances, placements, investments in debt and equity instruments, derivative assets and 
loans and advances. 

 
Financial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual agreements and that require settlement by way of delivering 
cash or another financial asset. Settlement could also require exchanging other financial assets or financial liabilities under 
potentially unfavourable conditions. Settlement may also be made by issuing own equity instruments. Common examples 
of financial liabilities are due to banks, derivative liabilities, deposit accounts, money market borrowings and debt capital 
instruments. 
 
Recognition 
The Financial Institution initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position 
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Financial Institution initially 
recognize loans and advances, deposits, and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are 
originated which is the date that the Financial Institution becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debentures, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, 
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Financial Institution commits to purchase/acquire the financial 
assets. Regular purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and liabilities are 
initially recognized at their cost value and are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification. 
 
Classification  
i. Financial Assets  
The Financial Institution classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the 
basis of the Financial Institution’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows: 
 
1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost  
The Financial Institution classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:  

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows, and  

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of 
Principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

 
2. Financial asset measured at fair value  
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured at fair 
value are further classified into two categories as below: 

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable 
to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value 
and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 
b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Financial 
Institution makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be 
recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other 
comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 
ii. Financial Liabilities  
The Financial Institution classifies the financial liabilities as follows:  

a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to 
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the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are 
recognized at profit or loss.  

 
b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost  

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. 

 
Measurement  
i. Financial assets at FVTOCI  
On initial recognition, the Financial Institution can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are 
initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The cumulative gain 
or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.  
 
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Financial 
Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the 
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.  
 
ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL unless the Financial Institution irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading. Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria 
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are 
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.  
 
A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated 
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different 
bases.  
 
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising 
on re-measurement recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized 
when the Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the 
amount of dividend can be measured reliably. 
 
iii. Financial liabilities at FVTPL  
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL.  
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid 
on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other Income’ line item.  
 
However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair 
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other 
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive 
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit 
risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are 

recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently 
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 
iv. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost  
Financial liabilities that are non-held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the 
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amount of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of 
costs of an asset is incorporated in the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item.  
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the 
net carrying amount on initial recognition.  
 
 De-recognition  
De-recognition of financial assets  
The Financial Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Institution neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.  
 
Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the Financial 
Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the 
carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of; 
(i) The consideration received, and  
(ii) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in retained 

earnings.  
 
The Financial Institution enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial 
Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If 
all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets 
with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.  
 
 
De-recognition of financial liabilities  
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial 
liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.  
 
Determination of fair value  
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Financial Institution has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance 
risk.  
 
When available, the Financial Institution measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market 
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient 
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, 
then the Financial Institution uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize 
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the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are 
recognized at profit or loss.  

 
b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost  

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. 

 
Measurement  
i. Financial assets at FVTOCI  
On initial recognition, the Financial Institution can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are 
initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The cumulative gain 
or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.  
 
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Financial 
Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the 
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.  
 
ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL unless the Financial Institution irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading. Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria 
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are 
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.  
 
A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated 
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different 
bases.  
 
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising 
on re-measurement recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized 
when the Institution’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment and the 
amount of dividend can be measured reliably. 
 
iii. Financial liabilities at FVTPL  
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL.  
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid 
on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other Income’ line item.  
 
However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair 
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other 
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive 
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit 
risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are 

recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently 
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 
iv. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost  
Financial liabilities that are non-held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the 
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amount of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of 
costs of an asset is incorporated in the ‘Finance Expenses’ line item.  
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the 
net carrying amount on initial recognition.  
 
 De-recognition  
De-recognition of financial assets  
The Financial Institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Institution neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.  
 
Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the Financial 
Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the 
carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of; 
(i) The consideration received, and  
(ii) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in retained 

earnings.  
 
The Financial Institution enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial 
Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If 
all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets 
with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.  
 
 
De-recognition of financial liabilities  
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial 
liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.  
 
Determination of fair value  
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Financial Institution has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance 
risk.  
 
When available, the Financial Institution measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market 
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient 
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, 
then the Financial Institution uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize 
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the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants 
would take into account in pricing a transaction.  
 
The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:  
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 
 
Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or 
similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are 
observable. 
 
Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on observable 
market data.  
 
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the 
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Financial Institution determines that the fair value at initial 
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market 
for an identical asset or liability (Level-1 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable 
markets (Level-2 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference 
between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit 
or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by 
observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability (Level-1 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value is 
recognized in profit or loss immediately.  
 
Impairment  
At each reporting date, the Financial Institution assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or the 
group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or the group of 
financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition 
of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.  
 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, 
default or delinquency by a borrower, project of the borrower having negative cash flows or negative net worth, 
restructuring of a loan or advance by the Financial Institution on terms that the Financial Institution would not otherwise 
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, 
or other observable data relating to the group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or 
issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Financial Institution. In addition, for an 
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of 
impairment.  
 
In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Financial Institution considers to restructure loans rather than take 
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. 
Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR method and the loan is no longer 
considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future 
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, 
calculated using the loan’s original EIR.  
 
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Financial Institution considers evidence of impairment for 
loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Financial Institution first 
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant 
and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively. 
 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest 
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.  
 
Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio behaviour. In 
assessing collective impairment, the Financial Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of 
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic 
adjustment are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Probability of 
default pattern and loss given default pattern are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain 
appropriate. Impairment has been considered as per carve-out issued by ICAN where impairment as per NFRS or as per 
NRB Directive whichever is higher. 
 
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Financial Institution. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the 
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the 
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later 
recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘non-operating income’. 
 
3.4 Trading assets 
There were no trading assets held by the Financial Institution during the year. 
 
3.5 Property and Equipment 
a) Recognition and Measurement 
Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow 
to the Financial Institution and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:  
 Cost of materials and direct labour;  
 Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and  
 Capitalized borrowing cost. 
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. 
Neither class of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the 
reporting date. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure 
will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred. 
Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
b) Grant Assets 
The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital reserve of equal 
amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful life of assets. The balance of capital 
reserve depicts at the same proportion of the depreciation.  
 
c) Depreciation 
Property and Equipment's are depreciated from the date they are available for use on Straight Line method over the 
estimated useful life as determined by the Management. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. 
Charging of depreciation is ceased from earlier of: the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or from the 
date of derecognition. The estimated useful life of significant items of property and equipment for current year and 
comparative period are as follows:  
 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Building 30 Years 
Computer and Accessories 5 Years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment's 10 Years 

  
Assets costing less than NPR 3,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.  
 
The additional information on gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated 
impairment loss, if any) is presented in the Note-4 separately. 
 
3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets 
There is no Goodwill held by the Financial Institution during the year. Intangible Assets are amortized from the date they 
are available for use on Straight Line method over estimated useful Life as determined by the Management. Amortization 
is charged to profit or loss. The estimated useful life of Intangible assets is considered for 5 years. 
 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Intangible Assets 5 Years 

 
 
3.7 Investment Property 
There is no Investment Property held by the Financial Institution during the year.  
 
3.8 Income tax 
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and 
deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 – “Income Taxes” for the accounting of Income Tax. Income tax 
expense is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or directly in 
other comprehensive income. Tax expense relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is 
recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
Current Tax 
Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or tax loss) for 
the reporting period, and any amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. It is measured 
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  
 
The Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit for that period, 
and incorporating the effects of adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the Income Tax Act, 2058 and 
amendments thereto, using a corporate tax rate of 30%.  
Current tax for current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as liability. If the amount already paid 
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess shall be recognized as an asset. 
Moreover, the benefit relating to a tax loss can be carried back to recover current tax of a previous period shall be 
recognized as an asset. Explanatory information on current tax calculation is stated in Note-4.9. 
 
Deferred Tax  
Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary 
differences.  
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:  
(a) deductible temporary differences;  
(b) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and  
(c) the carry forward of unused tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.  
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the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants 
would take into account in pricing a transaction.  
 
The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:  
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 
 
Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or 
similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are 
observable. 
 
Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on observable 
market data.  
 
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the 
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Financial Institution determines that the fair value at initial 
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market 
for an identical asset or liability (Level-1 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable 
markets (Level-2 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference 
between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit 
or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by 
observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability (Level-1 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value is 
recognized in profit or loss immediately.  
 
Impairment  
At each reporting date, the Financial Institution assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or the 
group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or the group of 
financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition 
of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.  
 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, 
default or delinquency by a borrower, project of the borrower having negative cash flows or negative net worth, 
restructuring of a loan or advance by the Financial Institution on terms that the Financial Institution would not otherwise 
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, 
or other observable data relating to the group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or 
issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Financial Institution. In addition, for an 
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of 
impairment.  
 
In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Financial Institution considers to restructure loans rather than take 
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. 
Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR method and the loan is no longer 
considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future 
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, 
calculated using the loan’s original EIR.  
 
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Financial Institution considers evidence of impairment for 
loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Financial Institution first 
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant 
and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively. 
 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest 
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.  
 
Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio behaviour. In 
assessing collective impairment, the Financial Institution uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of 
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic 
adjustment are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Probability of 
default pattern and loss given default pattern are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain 
appropriate. Impairment has been considered as per carve-out issued by ICAN where impairment as per NFRS or as per 
NRB Directive whichever is higher. 
 
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Financial Institution. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the 
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the 
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later 
recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘non-operating income’. 
 
3.4 Trading assets 
There were no trading assets held by the Financial Institution during the year. 
 
3.5 Property and Equipment 
a) Recognition and Measurement 
Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow 
to the Financial Institution and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:  
 Cost of materials and direct labour;  
 Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and  
 Capitalized borrowing cost. 
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. 
Neither class of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the 
reporting date. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure 
will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred. 
Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
b) Grant Assets 
The assets received under grant has been booked under Property and Equipment by creating a capital reserve of equal 
amount. The annual depreciation is deducted every year from this reserve till the useful life of assets. The balance of capital 
reserve depicts at the same proportion of the depreciation.  
 
c) Depreciation 
Property and Equipment's are depreciated from the date they are available for use on Straight Line method over the 
estimated useful life as determined by the Management. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. 
Charging of depreciation is ceased from earlier of: the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or from the 
date of derecognition. The estimated useful life of significant items of property and equipment for current year and 
comparative period are as follows:  
 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Building 30 Years 
Computer and Accessories 5 Years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment's 10 Years 

  
Assets costing less than NPR 3,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.  
 
The additional information on gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated 
impairment loss, if any) is presented in the Note-4 separately. 
 
3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets 
There is no Goodwill held by the Financial Institution during the year. Intangible Assets are amortized from the date they 
are available for use on Straight Line method over estimated useful Life as determined by the Management. Amortization 
is charged to profit or loss. The estimated useful life of Intangible assets is considered for 5 years. 
 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Intangible Assets 5 Years 

 
 
3.7 Investment Property 
There is no Investment Property held by the Financial Institution during the year.  
 
3.8 Income tax 
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and 
deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 – “Income Taxes” for the accounting of Income Tax. Income tax 
expense is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or directly in 
other comprehensive income. Tax expense relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is 
recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
Current Tax 
Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or tax loss) for 
the reporting period, and any amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. It is measured 
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  
 
The Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit for that period, 
and incorporating the effects of adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the Income Tax Act, 2058 and 
amendments thereto, using a corporate tax rate of 30%.  
Current tax for current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as liability. If the amount already paid 
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess shall be recognized as an asset. 
Moreover, the benefit relating to a tax loss can be carried back to recover current tax of a previous period shall be 
recognized as an asset. Explanatory information on current tax calculation is stated in Note-4.9. 
 
Deferred Tax  
Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary 
differences.  
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:  
(a) deductible temporary differences;  
(b) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and  
(c) the carry forward of unused tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.  
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Vehicles 5 years 
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment's 10 Years 

  
Assets costing less than NPR 3,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.  
 
The additional information on gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated 
impairment loss, if any) is presented in the Note-4 separately. 
 
3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets 
There is no Goodwill held by the Financial Institution during the year. Intangible Assets are amortized from the date they 
are available for use on Straight Line method over estimated useful Life as determined by the Management. Amortization 
is charged to profit or loss. The estimated useful life of Intangible assets is considered for 5 years. 
 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Intangible Assets 5 Years 

 
 
3.7 Investment Property 
There is no Investment Property held by the Financial Institution during the year.  
 
3.8 Income tax 
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and 
deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 – “Income Taxes” for the accounting of Income Tax. Income tax 
expense is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or directly in 
other comprehensive income. Tax expense relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is 
recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
Current Tax 
Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or tax loss) for 
the reporting period, and any amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. It is measured 
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  
 
The Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit for that period, 
and incorporating the effects of adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the Income Tax Act, 2058 and 
amendments thereto, using a corporate tax rate of 30%.  
Current tax for current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as liability. If the amount already paid 
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess shall be recognized as an asset. 
Moreover, the benefit relating to a tax loss can be carried back to recover current tax of a previous period shall be 
recognized as an asset. Explanatory information on current tax calculation is stated in Note-4.9. 
 
Deferred Tax  
Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary 
differences.  
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:  
(a) deductible temporary differences;  
(b) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and  
(c) the carry forward of unused tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.  
 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and carried 
forward unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be claimed. Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable 
temporary differences.  
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they will be reversed, using tax rates enacted, or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred tax income or expense relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized 
in Other Comprehensive Income.  
 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets shall reflect the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 
its assets and liabilities. 

The income taxes levied to the Financial Institution relates to the same taxation authority and the taxation laws permit the 
entity to make or receive a single net payment. Therefore, the Financial Institution has legally enforceable right to set off 
a current tax asset against a current tax liability. Explanatory information on deferred tax calculation is stated in Note - 
4.13. 

 
3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued, and subordinated liabilities 
The Financial Institution's deposits consist of money placed into the Financial Institution by its customers and members. 
These deposits are made to deposit accounts such as term deposit accounts, savings deposit accounts. 
 
3.10 Provisions 
The Financial Institution applies NAS 37 – “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets” in the accounting of 
provisions. 
 
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision shall be recognized when:  
(a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;  
(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to   settle the obligation; and  
(c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision shall be 

recognized. 
 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision 
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those 
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 
 
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is: 
 a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or  
 present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because: 

o It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; or  

o The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.  
 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 
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Vehicles 5 years 
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment's 10 Years 

  
Assets costing less than NPR 3,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.  
 
The additional information on gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated 
impairment loss, if any) is presented in the Note-4 separately. 
 
3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets 
There is no Goodwill held by the Financial Institution during the year. Intangible Assets are amortized from the date they 
are available for use on Straight Line method over estimated useful Life as determined by the Management. Amortization 
is charged to profit or loss. The estimated useful life of Intangible assets is considered for 5 years. 
 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Intangible Assets 5 Years 

 
 
3.7 Investment Property 
There is no Investment Property held by the Financial Institution during the year.  
 
3.8 Income tax 
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and 
deferred taxes. The Financial Institution applies NAS 12 – “Income Taxes” for the accounting of Income Tax. Income tax 
expense is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or directly in 
other comprehensive income. Tax expense relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is 
recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. 
 
Current Tax 
Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or tax loss) for 
the reporting period, and any amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous years. It is measured 
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  
 
The Financial Institution has determined tax provision for the reported period based on its accounting profit for that period, 
and incorporating the effects of adjustments for taxation purpose as required under the Income Tax Act, 2058 and 
amendments thereto, using a corporate tax rate of 30%.  
Current tax for current and prior periods shall, to the extent unpaid, be recognized as liability. If the amount already paid 
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess shall be recognized as an asset. 
Moreover, the benefit relating to a tax loss can be carried back to recover current tax of a previous period shall be 
recognized as an asset. Explanatory information on current tax calculation is stated in Note-4.9. 
 
Deferred Tax  
Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary 
differences.  
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:  
(a) deductible temporary differences;  
(b) the carry forward of unused tax losses; and  
(c) the carry forward of unused tax credits. 
 
Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.  
 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and carried 
forward unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be claimed. Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable 
temporary differences.  
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they will be reversed, using tax rates enacted, or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred tax income or expense relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized 
in Other Comprehensive Income.  
 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets shall reflect the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 
its assets and liabilities. 

The income taxes levied to the Financial Institution relates to the same taxation authority and the taxation laws permit the 
entity to make or receive a single net payment. Therefore, the Financial Institution has legally enforceable right to set off 
a current tax asset against a current tax liability. Explanatory information on deferred tax calculation is stated in Note - 
4.13. 

 
3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued, and subordinated liabilities 
The Financial Institution's deposits consist of money placed into the Financial Institution by its customers and members. 
These deposits are made to deposit accounts such as term deposit accounts, savings deposit accounts. 
 
3.10 Provisions 
The Financial Institution applies NAS 37 – “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets” in the accounting of 
provisions. 
 
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision shall be recognized when:  
(a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;  
(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to   settle the obligation; and  
(c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision shall be 

recognized. 
 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision 
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those 
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 
 
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is: 
 a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or  
 present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because: 

o It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; or  

o The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.  
 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 
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3.11 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Financial Institution and can 
be measured reliably. The Financial Institution applies NAS 18 – “Revenue” in the accounting of revenue unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
The basis of income recognition is mentioned below: 
i. Interest income  
Interest income is recognized under an accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in the profit or loss for all 
interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad loans measured at amortized cost. Effective Interest Rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash payments through the expected life of a financial 
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating the 
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income and service income over the relevant period. 
 
NFRS Requirement  
NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those classified at fair value 
through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and 
of allocating the interest income and service income over the expected life of the financial instrument. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 
The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by estimating the future cash 
flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes all 
amounts expected to be paid or received by the Financial Institution including expected penalties that are an integral part 
of the overall return. Direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue, or disposal of financial 
instruments are also taken into account in the calculation. Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has 
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows to measure the impairment loss. 
 
Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method 
The Financial Institution has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on 
individual loan products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the Financial Institution charges 
on the loans and applying the EIR method would not be practical. Hence, initial service fees have been recognized during 
the period when such income accrues rather than being included within the component of interest income under the EIR 
method.  
 
Accrued Interest has been accounted as per "Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019" issued by Nepal Rastra 
Bank, in July 2019. Interest from Loans where contractual payments of principal and /or interest are not more than 3 
months in arrears are considered as Performing loans and Interest Income has been booked accordingly. Remaining Interest 
Income, in relation to Non-Performing Loans, has been treated as Interest Suspense and accounted accordingly.  
Out of Total Interest Accrued of Rs.1,162,041,519 during the financial year, Interest Accrued from Performing Loan is 
Rs. 503,435,919 and from Non-Performing Loan is Rs. 658,605,600. 
 
ii. Fee and commission income  
Fees and commission income that is integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset is included in the measurement 
of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fees and service charges are recognized 
as and when the related services are performed. 
 
iii. Dividend income  
A dividend on investment in a resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend 
income is presented in other operating income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss, or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.  
 
 

iv. Net Trading Income 
The Financial Institution does not have Net Trading Income. 
 
v. Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
The Financial Institution presents income other than those presented under interest income, fees and commission income 
under this heading. Income recognized here includes items such as foreign exchange revaluation gain or loss; dividend on 
equity investments that are measured at FVTOCI; gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment; gain and loss on 
disposal of investment property; and gain or loss on disposal of investment securities except for equity investments 
measured at FVTOCI. 
 
3.12 Interest expense 
Interest expenses on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest 
rate method. Interest expenses on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Financial Institution’s trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading 
income. 
 
3.13 Employees Benefits 
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. The 
Financial Institution’s remuneration package includes both short term and long-term benefits and comprises of: salary, 
allowances, paid leave, accumulated leave, gratuity, provident fund and annual statutory bonus. The Financial Institution 
applies NAS 19 – “Employee Benefits” in accounting of all employee benefits and recognizes the followings in its financial 
statements:  

 a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and 
 an expense when the Financial Institution consumes the economic benefit arising from service provided by an 

employee in exchange for employee benefits.  
 

Explanatory information on personnel expense is stated in Note-4.34. 
 

a) Short Term Employee Benefits  
Short term employee benefit obligations are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected 
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of annual reporting period in which the employees render 
the related service. This includes all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period): 
    wages, salaries and social security contributions;  
 paid annual leave and paid sick leave;  
 non-monetary benefits 

The Financial Institution shall recognize the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for that service. 
 
A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus 
Act, pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably under short term employee benefits.  

 
b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan  

Post-employment benefit plan includes followings: 
 
i. Defined Contribution Plan  
Under defined contribution plans the Financial Institution’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the 
amount that it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are 
recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered by 
employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future 
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3.11 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Financial Institution and can 
be measured reliably. The Financial Institution applies NAS 18 – “Revenue” in the accounting of revenue unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
The basis of income recognition is mentioned below: 
i. Interest income  
Interest income is recognized under an accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in the profit or loss for all 
interest-bearing financial assets except loans categorized as bad loans measured at amortized cost. Effective Interest Rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash payments through the expected life of a financial 
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating the 
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income and service income over the relevant period. 
 
NFRS Requirement  
NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those classified at fair value 
through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and 
of allocating the interest income and service income over the expected life of the financial instrument. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 
The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by estimating the future cash 
flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes all 
amounts expected to be paid or received by the Financial Institution including expected penalties that are an integral part 
of the overall return. Direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition, issue, or disposal of financial 
instruments are also taken into account in the calculation. Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has 
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows to measure the impairment loss. 
 
Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method 
The Financial Institution has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on 
individual loan products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the Financial Institution charges 
on the loans and applying the EIR method would not be practical. Hence, initial service fees have been recognized during 
the period when such income accrues rather than being included within the component of interest income under the EIR 
method.  
 
Accrued Interest has been accounted as per "Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019" issued by Nepal Rastra 
Bank, in July 2019. Interest from Loans where contractual payments of principal and /or interest are not more than 3 
months in arrears are considered as Performing loans and Interest Income has been booked accordingly. Remaining Interest 
Income, in relation to Non-Performing Loans, has been treated as Interest Suspense and accounted accordingly.  
Out of Total Interest Accrued of Rs.1,162,041,519 during the financial year, Interest Accrued from Performing Loan is 
Rs. 503,435,919 and from Non-Performing Loan is Rs. 658,605,600. 
 
ii. Fee and commission income  
Fees and commission income that is integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset is included in the measurement 
of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fees and service charges are recognized 
as and when the related services are performed. 
 
iii. Dividend income  
A dividend on investment in a resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend 
income is presented in other operating income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss, or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.  
 
 

iv. Net Trading Income 
The Financial Institution does not have Net Trading Income. 
 
v. Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
The Financial Institution presents income other than those presented under interest income, fees and commission income 
under this heading. Income recognized here includes items such as foreign exchange revaluation gain or loss; dividend on 
equity investments that are measured at FVTOCI; gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment; gain and loss on 
disposal of investment property; and gain or loss on disposal of investment securities except for equity investments 
measured at FVTOCI. 
 
3.12 Interest expense 
Interest expenses on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest 
rate method. Interest expenses on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Financial Institution’s trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading 
income. 
 
3.13 Employees Benefits 
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. The 
Financial Institution’s remuneration package includes both short term and long-term benefits and comprises of: salary, 
allowances, paid leave, accumulated leave, gratuity, provident fund and annual statutory bonus. The Financial Institution 
applies NAS 19 – “Employee Benefits” in accounting of all employee benefits and recognizes the followings in its financial 
statements:  

 a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and 
 an expense when the Financial Institution consumes the economic benefit arising from service provided by an 

employee in exchange for employee benefits.  
 

Explanatory information on personnel expense is stated in Note-4.34. 
 

a) Short Term Employee Benefits  
Short term employee benefit obligations are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected 
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of annual reporting period in which the employees render 
the related service. This includes all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period): 
    wages, salaries and social security contributions;  
 paid annual leave and paid sick leave;  
 non-monetary benefits 

The Financial Institution shall recognize the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for that service. 
 
A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus 
Act, pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably under short term employee benefits.  

 
b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan  

Post-employment benefit plan includes followings: 
 
i. Defined Contribution Plan  
Under defined contribution plans the Financial Institution’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the 
amount that it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are 
recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered by 
employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future 
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payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the 
end of the period in which the employee render the service are discounted at their present value.  

 
Financial Institution provides “Employees Provident Fund” to the employees entitled to receive benefits under 
the provident fund act, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Financial Institution 
contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grade). Financial Institution 
does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution. 
 
ii. Defined Benefit Plan  
The Financial Institution provides Gratuity Plan as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-
employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are funded whereas the 
Financial Institution makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments 
to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an 
amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.  
 
Gratuity  
The Financial Institution provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee 
Service Byelaws of the Financial Institution. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at 
retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined 
days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years of service. The Financial Institution accounts for the 
liability for gratuity as per the actuarial valuation.  

 
c) Termination Benefits  

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Financial Institution is demonstrably committed, 
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a 
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Financial 
Institutions made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number 
of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting 
date, they are discounted to their present value. 
 

d) Other Long-Term Benefits 
The Financial Institution’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits, other than gratuity, is the 
amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. 
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The 
Financial Institution has recognized accumulated leave liability as other long term employee benefits. The 
discount rate is the average yield at the reporting date on current government bonds. 
 

3.14 Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in 
an arrangement.  
Right-of-use asset and resulting lease liability has been created as per NFRS 16. 
Consequently, depreciation on right-of-use asset and finance cost on lease liability is charged to statement of profit and 
loss. 
 The financial Institution has adopted the lease treatment as per NFRS 16-Leases. 
 
3.15 Share capital and reserves 
The Financial Institution applied NAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation” to determine whether the financial 
instrument is either a financial liability or equity. A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset, or the variable number of its own equity shares to the holder of the instruments or to exchange financial 
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.  

 
Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognized when the owner's right to receive payment is established. 
 
3.16 Earnings per share including diluted 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed as per NAS 33 “Earnings per Share”. Basic earnings per equity share are 
computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Bonus shares involve the issue of shares without any consideration and hence do not change the resources available to the 
entity. Accordingly, adjustments of bonus shares issued have been done.  
The entity does not hold any dilutive potential ordinary shares, and hence the Basic EPS itself is the Diluted EPS.  
The entity has no discontinued operation and so the amounts per share for the continued and discontinued operation have 
not been reported. 
 
3.17 Segment Reporting 
An operating segment is a component of the entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose 
operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resource 
allocation to each segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. 
The Financial Institution has identified segments based on the geographic locations of its offices in the seven provinces of 
the country. Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the 
respective segment. All business transactions of business units located in a particular province are grouped together. 
 
4 Explanatory Notes 
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows: 
 
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent 
Cash and cash equivalent includes the total amount of cash at vault, balances with other bank & financial institutions, 
money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets i.e., Treasury Bills, with original maturities of three months 
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and used in the 
management of short-term commitments and Cash in Transit is presented as follows:    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Cash in hand         52,920,768  38,068,253 
Balances with B/Fis         60,725,159  96,450,128 
Money at call and short notice    1,812,380,522  1,187,914,213 
Other       150,000,000  500,000,000 
Total    2,076,026,449  1,822,432,593 

 
4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 
Statutory Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from 
Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank is presented as 
follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year  
Statutory balances with NRB 576,720,625 433,404,153 
Statutory balances with BFIs - - 
Securities purchased under resale agreement - - 
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - - 
Total 576,720,625 433,404,153 

 
Previous Year amount of  Rs. 3,488,306  of  Other deposits and receivable from NRB has been re-grouped under Investment 
securities measured at Amortized Cost under Schedule 4.8. 
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payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the 
end of the period in which the employee render the service are discounted at their present value.  

 
Financial Institution provides “Employees Provident Fund” to the employees entitled to receive benefits under 
the provident fund act, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the Financial Institution 
contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grade). Financial Institution 
does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution. 
 
ii. Defined Benefit Plan  
The Financial Institution provides Gratuity Plan as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-
employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are funded whereas the 
Financial Institution makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments 
to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an 
amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.  
 
Gratuity  
The Financial Institution provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee 
Service Byelaws of the Financial Institution. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at 
retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined 
days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years of service. The Financial Institution accounts for the 
liability for gratuity as per the actuarial valuation.  

 
c) Termination Benefits  

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Financial Institution is demonstrably committed, 
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a 
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Financial 
Institutions made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number 
of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting 
date, they are discounted to their present value. 
 

d) Other Long-Term Benefits 
The Financial Institution’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits, other than gratuity, is the 
amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. 
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The 
Financial Institution has recognized accumulated leave liability as other long term employee benefits. The 
discount rate is the average yield at the reporting date on current government bonds. 
 

3.14 Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in 
an arrangement.  
Right-of-use asset and resulting lease liability has been created as per NFRS 16. 
Consequently, depreciation on right-of-use asset and finance cost on lease liability is charged to statement of profit and 
loss. 
 The financial Institution has adopted the lease treatment as per NFRS 16-Leases. 
 
3.15 Share capital and reserves 
The Financial Institution applied NAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation” to determine whether the financial 
instrument is either a financial liability or equity. A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset, or the variable number of its own equity shares to the holder of the instruments or to exchange financial 
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.  

 
Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognized when the owner's right to receive payment is established. 
 
3.16 Earnings per share including diluted 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed as per NAS 33 “Earnings per Share”. Basic earnings per equity share are 
computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Bonus shares involve the issue of shares without any consideration and hence do not change the resources available to the 
entity. Accordingly, adjustments of bonus shares issued have been done.  
The entity does not hold any dilutive potential ordinary shares, and hence the Basic EPS itself is the Diluted EPS.  
The entity has no discontinued operation and so the amounts per share for the continued and discontinued operation have 
not been reported. 
 
3.17 Segment Reporting 
An operating segment is a component of the entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose 
operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resource 
allocation to each segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. 
The Financial Institution has identified segments based on the geographic locations of its offices in the seven provinces of 
the country. Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the 
respective segment. All business transactions of business units located in a particular province are grouped together. 
 
4 Explanatory Notes 
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows: 
 
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent 
Cash and cash equivalent includes the total amount of cash at vault, balances with other bank & financial institutions, 
money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets i.e., Treasury Bills, with original maturities of three months 
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and used in the 
management of short-term commitments and Cash in Transit is presented as follows:    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Cash in hand         52,920,768  38,068,253 
Balances with B/Fis         60,725,159  96,450,128 
Money at call and short notice    1,812,380,522  1,187,914,213 
Other       150,000,000  500,000,000 
Total    2,076,026,449  1,822,432,593 

 
4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 
Statutory Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from 
Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank is presented as 
follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year  
Statutory balances with NRB 576,720,625 433,404,153 
Statutory balances with BFIs - - 
Securities purchased under resale agreement - - 
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - - 
Total 576,720,625 433,404,153 

 
Previous Year amount of  Rs. 3,488,306  of  Other deposits and receivable from NRB has been re-grouped under Investment 
securities measured at Amortized Cost under Schedule 4.8. 
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4.3 Placements with Financial Institutions 
Placements with domestic banks and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from the 
acquisition date are presented as follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Placement with domestic FIs   450,000,000   -  
Less: Allowances for impairment - - 
Total - - 

Fixed Deposit with maturities more 90 days as on reporting date has been grouped under Placement with domestic FIs. 

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments 
The Financial Institution does not have any Derivative Financial Instruments.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Held for trading   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
Forward exchange contract - - 
Others - - 
Held for risk management   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
Forward exchange contract - - 
Others - - 
Total - - 

 
4.5 Other Trading Assets  
The Financial Institution does not have any Trading Assets. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Treasury bills - - 
Government bonds - - 
NRB Bonds - - 
Domestic Corporate bonds - - 
Equities - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 
Pledged - - 
Non-Pledged - - 

 

4.6 Loans and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives  
The Financial Institution does not have any Loan and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loans to microfinance institutions - - 
Loans to FIs - - 
Loans to cooperative - - 
Less: allowance for impairment other - - 
Less: allowance for impairment - - 
Total - - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Balance at Shrawan 1 - - 
Impairment loss for the year: - - 
Charge for the year - - 
Recoveries/reversal - - 
Amount written off - - 
Balance as Asar end - - 

 

4.7 Loans and advances to Customers 
Total Loans and advances extended to the customers and amortized cost of staff loans; less the amount of impairment 
loss is presented under this head. Accrued Interest Receivable on performing loans have been considered under loans 
and advances measured at amortized cost. Impairment on loans and advances to customers are assessed individually and 
collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan loss provision prescribed by NRB Directives. 
Higher of the loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered for impairment. 
  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost  26,749,597,826  26,501,974,240 
Less: Impairment allowances  2,622,791,419  2,189,330,910 
Collective impairment  343,337,990  383,747,613 
Individual impairment  2,279,453,428  1,805,583,297 
Net Amount  24,126,806,408  24,312,643,330 
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - - 
Total 24,126,806,408 24,312,643,330 

 

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By Product  
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Product   
Term loans 25,806,377,407 25,749,144,940 
Short term, term loan - - 
Long term, term loan - - 
Hire purchase loans - - 
Personal Residential Loans - - 
Staff loans 456,216,153 421,853,645 
Other - - 
Sub-Total 26,262,593,559 26,170,998,585 
Interest receivable 487,004,267 330,975,655 
Grand Total 26,749,597,826 26,501,974,240 

Note: Previous Year amount of  Rs. 25,749,144,940  of  Other Loans has been re-classified under Term Loans. 
4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Secured   
Immovable assets 352,106,910 320,609,650 
Government guarantee - - 
Collateral of Government securities - - 
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt - - 
Group guarantee 21,085,627,902 21,610,231,671 
Personal guarantee - - 
Other collateral 5,311,863,014 4,571,132,919 
Sub-Total 26,749,597,826 26,501,974,240 
Unsecured - - 
Grand Total 26,749,597,826 26,501,974,240 
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4.3 Placements with Financial Institutions 
Placements with domestic banks and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from the 
acquisition date are presented as follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Placement with domestic FIs   450,000,000   -  
Less: Allowances for impairment - - 
Total - - 

Fixed Deposit with maturities more 90 days as on reporting date has been grouped under Placement with domestic FIs. 

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments 
The Financial Institution does not have any Derivative Financial Instruments.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Held for trading   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
Forward exchange contract - - 
Others - - 
Held for risk management   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
Forward exchange contract - - 
Others - - 
Total - - 

 
4.5 Other Trading Assets  
The Financial Institution does not have any Trading Assets. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Treasury bills - - 
Government bonds - - 
NRB Bonds - - 
Domestic Corporate bonds - - 
Equities - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 
Pledged - - 
Non-Pledged - - 

 

4.6 Loans and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives  
The Financial Institution does not have any Loan and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loans to microfinance institutions - - 
Loans to FIs - - 
Loans to cooperative - - 
Less: allowance for impairment other - - 
Less: allowance for impairment - - 
Total - - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Balance at Shrawan 1 - - 
Impairment loss for the year: - - 
Charge for the year - - 
Recoveries/reversal - - 
Amount written off - - 
Balance as Asar end - - 

 

4.7 Loans and advances to Customers 
Total Loans and advances extended to the customers and amortized cost of staff loans; less the amount of impairment 
loss is presented under this head. Accrued Interest Receivable on performing loans have been considered under loans 
and advances measured at amortized cost. Impairment on loans and advances to customers are assessed individually and 
collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan loss provision prescribed by NRB Directives. 
Higher of the loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered for impairment. 
  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost  26,749,597,826  26,501,974,240 
Less: Impairment allowances  2,622,791,419  2,189,330,910 
Collective impairment  343,337,990  383,747,613 
Individual impairment  2,279,453,428  1,805,583,297 
Net Amount  24,126,806,408  24,312,643,330 
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - - 
Total 24,126,806,408 24,312,643,330 

 

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By Product  
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Product   
Term loans 25,806,377,407 25,749,144,940 
Short term, term loan - - 
Long term, term loan - - 
Hire purchase loans - - 
Personal Residential Loans - - 
Staff loans 456,216,153 421,853,645 
Other - - 
Sub-Total 26,262,593,559 26,170,998,585 
Interest receivable 487,004,267 330,975,655 
Grand Total 26,749,597,826 26,501,974,240 

Note: Previous Year amount of  Rs. 25,749,144,940  of  Other Loans has been re-classified under Term Loans. 
4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Secured   
Immovable assets 352,106,910 320,609,650 
Government guarantee - - 
Collateral of Government securities - - 
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt - - 
Group guarantee 21,085,627,902 21,610,231,671 
Personal guarantee - - 
Other collateral 5,311,863,014 4,571,132,919 
Sub-Total 26,749,597,826 26,501,974,240 
Unsecured - - 
Grand Total 26,749,597,826 26,501,974,240 
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4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Specific allowances for impairment   
Balance at Shrawan 1 1,805,583,297 897,274,612 
Impairment loss for the year:   
Charge for the year 473,870,132 908,308,684 
Recoveries/reversal during the year - - 
Write-offs - - 
Other movement - - 
Balance at Asar end 2,279,453,428 1,805,583,297 
   
 
Collective allowances for impairment 

  

Balance at Shrawan 1 383,747,613 416,075,770 
Impairment loss for the year:   
Charge/(reversal) for the year (40,409,623) (32,328,157) 
Other movement - - 
Balance at Asar end 343,337,990 383,747,613 
Total allowances for impairment 2,622,791,419 2,189,330,910 

Note: Previous Year amount of Rs. 908,308,684 of Collective impairment charge has been re-classified under Specific 
impairment and amount of Rs. (32,328,157) of Specific impairment charge has been re-classified under Collective 
impairment. 
 
4.8 Investment Securities 
Investment in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in two categories i.e., investment securities 
measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 191,042,557 293,488,306 
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 3,510,000 3,510,000 
Total 644,552,557 296,998,306 

 
4.8.1 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 
Disclosures in respect of investment in government bond which are measured at amortized cost are as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Debt securities - - 
Government bonds 191,042,557 293,488,306 
Government treasury bills - - 
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - - 
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - - 
Other - - 
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - 
Total 641,042,557  293,488,306   

Note : Interest Receivable From Development Bond has been disclosed in Investment Securities at amortised cost 
(Government Bond), Previously it was classified under Other deposit and receivable from NRB under Schedule 4.2. 

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through OCI 
Disclosures in respect of investment in shares and debentures/bonds of other companies/institutions are as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Equity instruments   
Quoted equity securities - - 
Unquoted equity securities  3,510,000.00   3,510,000.00  
Total  3,510,000.00   3,510,000.00  

 

 
4.8.3 Investment relating to investment in equities 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
 Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value 
Investment in quoted equity     
NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1 - - - - 
Investment in unquoted equity     
Prabhu Capital Ltd. 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Center for Micro-Finance Nepal 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Total 3,510,000   3,510,000   3,510,000   3,510,000   

 

4.9 Current Tax Assets 
Advance tax deposited by the financial institution less tax liabilities as well as income tax liabilities for the purpose of 
current tax, prior period tax including fees are presented under this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Current tax assets 423,670,143 387,475,530 
Current year income tax assets 423,670,143 387,475,530 
Tax assets of prior periods - - 
 -  
Current tax liabilities 398,989,499 312,350,347 
Current year income tax liabilities 398,989,499 312,350,347 
Tax liabilities of prior periods - - 
Total 24,680,645 75,125,183 

 
4.10 Investment properties 
The Financial Institution does not have any investment properties. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Investment properties measured at fair value   
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2080 - - 
Addition/disposal during the year - - 
Net changes in fair value during the year - - 
Adjustment/transfer - - 
Net Amount - - 
   
Investment properties measured at cost   
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2080 - - 
Addition/disposal during the year - - 
Adjustment/transfer - - 
Accumulated depreciation - - 
Accumulated impairment loss - - 
Net Amount - - 
Total - - 
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4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Specific allowances for impairment   
Balance at Shrawan 1 1,805,583,297 897,274,612 
Impairment loss for the year:   
Charge for the year 473,870,132 908,308,684 
Recoveries/reversal during the year - - 
Write-offs - - 
Other movement - - 
Balance at Asar end 2,279,453,428 1,805,583,297 
   
 
Collective allowances for impairment 

  

Balance at Shrawan 1 383,747,613 416,075,770 
Impairment loss for the year:   
Charge/(reversal) for the year (40,409,623) (32,328,157) 
Other movement - - 
Balance at Asar end 343,337,990 383,747,613 
Total allowances for impairment 2,622,791,419 2,189,330,910 

Note: Previous Year amount of Rs. 908,308,684 of Collective impairment charge has been re-classified under Specific 
impairment and amount of Rs. (32,328,157) of Specific impairment charge has been re-classified under Collective 
impairment. 
 
4.8 Investment Securities 
Investment in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in two categories i.e., investment securities 
measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 191,042,557 293,488,306 
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 3,510,000 3,510,000 
Total 644,552,557 296,998,306 

 
4.8.1 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 
Disclosures in respect of investment in government bond which are measured at amortized cost are as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Debt securities - - 
Government bonds 191,042,557 293,488,306 
Government treasury bills - - 
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - - 
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - - 
Other - - 
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - 
Total 641,042,557  293,488,306   

Note : Interest Receivable From Development Bond has been disclosed in Investment Securities at amortised cost 
(Government Bond), Previously it was classified under Other deposit and receivable from NRB under Schedule 4.2. 

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through OCI 
Disclosures in respect of investment in shares and debentures/bonds of other companies/institutions are as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Equity instruments   
Quoted equity securities - - 
Unquoted equity securities  3,510,000.00   3,510,000.00  
Total  3,510,000.00   3,510,000.00  

 

 
4.8.3 Investment relating to investment in equities 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
 Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value 
Investment in quoted equity     
NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1 - - - - 
Investment in unquoted equity     
Prabhu Capital Ltd. 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Center for Micro-Finance Nepal 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Total 3,510,000   3,510,000   3,510,000   3,510,000   

 

4.9 Current Tax Assets 
Advance tax deposited by the financial institution less tax liabilities as well as income tax liabilities for the purpose of 
current tax, prior period tax including fees are presented under this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Current tax assets 423,670,143 387,475,530 
Current year income tax assets 423,670,143 387,475,530 
Tax assets of prior periods - - 
 -  
Current tax liabilities 398,989,499 312,350,347 
Current year income tax liabilities 398,989,499 312,350,347 
Tax liabilities of prior periods - - 
Total 24,680,645 75,125,183 

 
4.10 Investment properties 
The Financial Institution does not have any investment properties. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Investment properties measured at fair value   
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2080 - - 
Addition/disposal during the year - - 
Net changes in fair value during the year - - 
Adjustment/transfer - - 
Net Amount - - 
   
Investment properties measured at cost   
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2080 - - 
Addition/disposal during the year - - 
Adjustment/transfer - - 
Accumulated depreciation - - 
Accumulated impairment loss - - 
Net Amount - - 
Total - - 
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Note: Previously, Intangible Assets classified under Equipment & Others of Schedule 4.11 has been correctly re-classified 
under Goodwill and Intangible Assets under Schedule 4.12. 
 
4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

 

4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Purchased Developed

Cost

As on Shrawan 1  2079 -                                     4,781,750                         -                                     -                                     4,781,750                         

Addition during the Year

Acquisition -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Capitalization -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Disposal during the year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Adjustment/Revaluation -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Balance as on Asar End 2080 -                                     4,781,750                         -                                     -                                     4,781,750                         

Addition during the Year

Acquisition -                                     984,999                            -                                     -                                     984,999                            

Capitalization -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Disposal during the year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Adjustment/Revaluation -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Balance as on Asar end 2081 -                                     5,766,749                         -                                     -                                     5,766,749                         

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 1  2079 -                                     3,485,484                         -                                     -                                     3,485,484                         -                                     

Depreciation charge for the Year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Impairment for the year -                                     473,393                            -                                     -                                     473,393                            -                                     

Disposals -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Adjustment -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

As on Asar 2080 -                                     3,958,877                         -                                     -                                     3,958,877                         -                                     

Impairment for the year -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Amortization charge for the Year -                                     916,795                            -                                     -                                     916,795                            -                                     

Amortization (PL) 619,319                            619,319                            -                                     

Amortization (Capital Reserve) 297,476                            297,476                            -                                     

Disposals -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Adjustment -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

As on Asar end 2081 -                                     4,875,672                         -                                     -                                     4,875,672                         -                                     

Capital Work in Progress -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Net Book Value

As on Asar End 2079 -                                     1,296,266                         -                                     -                                     1,296,266                         -                                     

As on Asar End 2080 -                                     822,873                            -                                     -                                     822,873                            -                                     

As on Asar End 2081 -                                     891,077                            -                                     -                                     891,077                            -                                     

 Total as on Asar end 
2080 

Particulars Goodwill
Software

Other Total Asar end 2081
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4.13 Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax base of 
assets/liabilities using the tax rate of 30%.  

 

4.13 Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax Liabilities Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/FIs -                                      -                                       -                                                      
Loans and advances to customers -                                      -                                       -                                                      

Investment properties -                                      -                                       -                                                      

Investment securities -                                       -                                                      
Property & equipment 1,474,518                            (1,474,518)                                          

ROU Assets & Liabilities (1,226,576)                           1,226,576                                           
Loan Loss Provision 130,038,153                        130,038,153                                       

Employees' defined benefit plan & Leave Provision 173,861,498                        -                                       173,861,498                                       

Actuary Gain -                                       -                                                      
Other temporary differences -                                                      
Deferred tax on temporary differences 303,899,651                        247,942                               303,651,708                                       

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -                                                      
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -                                                      
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Asar end 2081 303,899,651                        247,942                               303,651,708                                       

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1 2080 416,371,747                                       
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (112,720,039)                                      
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss 109,075,517                                       

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income 3,644,522                                           

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity -                                                      

Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax Liabilities Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/FIs -                                      -                                       -                                                      
Loans and advances to customers -                                      -                                       -                                                      

Investment properties -                                      -                                       -                                                      

Investment securities -                                       -                                                      
Property & equipment 3,524,113                            (3,524,113)                                          

ROU Assets & Liabilities (1,354,965)                           1,354,965                                           
Loan Loss Provision 262,794,158                        262,794,158                                       

Employees' defined benefit plan & Leave Provision 155,746,738                        155,746,738                                       

Provisions -                                                      
Other temporary differences -                                                      
Deferred tax on temporary differences 418,540,896                        2,169,149                            416,371,747                                       

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -                                                      
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -                                                      
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Asar end 2080 418,540,896                        2,169,149                            416,371,747                                       

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1 2079 163,219,532                                       
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 253,152,215                                       
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (288,208,570)                                      

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income 35,056,355                                         

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity -                                                      

Current Year

Previous Year

4.14 Other Assets 
Other assets include accounts receivable, prepayment and deposit, stationary stock, staff advance, client protection fund, 
remit in transit and inter-branch balances which are presented as follows: 

Particulars  Current Year Previous Year 
Assets held for sale - - 

Other non-banking assets - - 

Bills receivable - - 

Accounts receivable 29,370,963 20,030,921 

Accrued income - - 

Prepayments and deposit 26,252,045 25,772,889 

Income tax deposit - - 

Deferred employee expenditure 160,062,483 155,253,859 

Other 
  

 

Stationary Stock 3,120,300 3,487,987 
Staff Advance 
Inter Branch Adjustment 

4,908,844 
367,100 

4,354,482 
-  

Other* 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Total   324,081,735 308,900,138 
* Other Assets Consists of Fixed Deposit for Client Protection Fund in Jyoti Bikash Bank Limited. 
Note 1:  Amount of Rs. 2,465,713 is added to Account Receivable of Schedule 4.14 and Creditor and Accruals of Schedule 

4.21 which was netted off in Previous Year. 
Note 2:  Amount of Rs. 1,749,527 is added to Staff Advance of Schedule 4.14 and Payable to Staff of Schedule 4.21 which 

was netted off in Previous Year. 
 
4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 
The Financial Institution does not have any dues to bank and financial institutions. 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Borrowing from BFIs - - 
Settlement and clearing accounts - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 

 
4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 
The Financial Institution does not have any dues to Nepal Rastra Bank. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Refinance from NRB - - 
Standing Liquidity Facility - - 
Lender of last report facility from NRB - - 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - 
Other payable to NRB - - 
Total - - 

 

4.17 Derivative financial instruments 
The Financial Institution does not have any derivative financial instruments. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Held for trading   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
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4.14 Other Assets 
Other assets include accounts receivable, prepayment and deposit, stationary stock, staff advance, client protection fund, 
remit in transit and inter-branch balances which are presented as follows: 

Particulars  Current Year Previous Year 
Assets held for sale - - 

Other non-banking assets - - 

Bills receivable - - 

Accounts receivable 29,370,963 20,030,921 

Accrued income - - 

Prepayments and deposit 26,252,045 25,772,889 

Income tax deposit - - 

Deferred employee expenditure 160,062,483 155,253,859 

Other 
  

 

Stationary Stock 3,120,300 3,487,987 
Staff Advance 
Inter Branch Adjustment 

4,908,844 
367,100 

4,354,482 
-  

Other* 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Total   324,081,735 308,900,138 
* Other Assets Consists of Fixed Deposit for Client Protection Fund in Jyoti Bikash Bank Limited. 
Note 1:  Amount of Rs. 2,465,713 is added to Account Receivable of Schedule 4.14 and Creditor and Accruals of Schedule 

4.21 which was netted off in Previous Year. 
Note 2:  Amount of Rs. 1,749,527 is added to Staff Advance of Schedule 4.14 and Payable to Staff of Schedule 4.21 which 

was netted off in Previous Year. 
 
4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 
The Financial Institution does not have any dues to bank and financial institutions. 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Borrowing from BFIs - - 
Settlement and clearing accounts - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 

 
4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 
The Financial Institution does not have any dues to Nepal Rastra Bank. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Refinance from NRB - - 
Standing Liquidity Facility - - 
Lender of last report facility from NRB - - 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - 
Other payable to NRB - - 
Total - - 

 

4.17 Derivative financial instruments 
The Financial Institution does not have any derivative financial instruments. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Held for trading   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
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Forward exchange contract - - 
Others - - 
Held for risk management   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
Forward exchange contract - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 

 

4.18 Deposits from customers 
The Financial Institution does not have any institutional deposit customers. Individual customers include saving deposits 
and term deposits which are presented as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Institutional customers:   
Term deposits - - 
Call deposits - - 
Other - - 
Individual customers:   
Term deposits 960,954,397 573,033,933 
Saving deposits 19,224,289,412 18,541,259,382 
Savings from Members - - 
Other - - 
Total 20,185,243,809 19,114,293,315 

 

4.19 Borrowing 
Borrowings from domestic banks and financial institutions as well as foreign borrowings are presented as follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Domestic Borrowing   
Nepal Government - - 
Other licensed Institutions 2,820,171,928 3,885,503,863 
Other - - 
Sub total 2,820,171,928 3,885,503,863 
Foreign Borrowing   
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - 
Multilateral Development Banks - - 
Other Institutions 50,441,976 61,217,976 
Sub total 50,441,976 61,217,976 
Total 2,870,613,904 3,946,721,839 

Note: The amount in Foreign Borrowing (Other Institutions) consist of Borrowing from Whole Planet of USA and this 
loan is Interest Free Loans as per agreement. 

4.20 Provisions 
Provisions for expenses made by the Financial Institution are presented as follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Provisions for redundancy - - 
Provision for restructuring - - 
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - 
Onerous contracts - - 
Other 14,590,860 14,590,102 
Total 14,590,860 14,590,102 

The above Other Provision is related to Fraudulent case of staff the details of which is disclosed in Notes to Account in 
5.9 point no 4. 

4.20.1 Movement in Provisions 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2080 14,590,102 14,648,322 
Provisions made during the year 758 - 
Provisions used during the year - 58,220 
Provisions reversed during the year - - 
Unwind of discount - - 
Balance at Asar end 2081 14,590,860 14,590,102 

 
4.21 Other liabilities 
The details of other liabilities are presented as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations  (224,287,261)  (198,902,497) 
Liability for long-service leave  84,520,782   81,244,543  
Short-term employee benefits  11,460,692   15,575,442  
Bills payable  -     -    
Creditors and accruals     58,009,428  45,926,716  
Interest payable on deposit  2,330,045   10,386,874  
Interest payable on borrowing  10,330,444   11,337,000  
Liabilities on deferred grant income  -     -    
Unpaid Dividend  12,869,885   49,529,519  
Liabilities under Finance Lease  105,728,259   129,464,994  
Employee bonus payable  89,576,991   -    
Other 
     Payable to Staff 
     Tax Payable 
     Inter Branch Adjustment 
     Service Charge Payable 

  
7,914,514 

15,614,031 
- 

109,281,036 

  
1,749,527 

11,609,765 
- 

1,149,248 
Total 283,348,846 159,071,130 

Note 1:  Amount of Rs. 2,465,713 is added to Account Receivable of Schedule 4.14 and Creditor and Accruals of Schedule 
4.21 which was netted off in Previous Year. 

Note 2:  Amount of Rs. 1,749,527 is added to Staff Advance of Schedule 4.14 and Payable to Staff of Schedule 4.21 which 
was netted off in Previous Year. 

Note 3: Tax Payable and Service Charge Payable of Previous Year were grouped under same head of Schedule 4.21 (Sub-
head: other). Now, they are presented in their own respective sub-head for better presentation and disclosure. 

 
4.21.1 Defined benefit obligations 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:   
Present value of funded obligations 495,017,544 437,911,249 
Total present value of obligations 495,017,544 437,911,249 
Fair value of plan assets 719,304,805 636,813,747 
Present value of net obligations 224,287,261 198,902,498 
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations 224,287,261 198,902,498 

4.21.2 Plan Assets 
Plan assets comprise of the following: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Plan assets comprise   
Equity securities - - 
Government bonds - - 
Bank deposit 716,452,716 634,165,984 
Other (CIT Deposit) 2,852,089 2,647,763 
Total 719,304,805 636,813,747 
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Forward exchange contract - - 
Others - - 
Held for risk management   
Interest rate swap - - 
Currency swap - - 
Forward exchange contract - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 

 

4.18 Deposits from customers 
The Financial Institution does not have any institutional deposit customers. Individual customers include saving deposits 
and term deposits which are presented as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Institutional customers:   
Term deposits - - 
Call deposits - - 
Other - - 
Individual customers:   
Term deposits 960,954,397 573,033,933 
Saving deposits 19,224,289,412 18,541,259,382 
Savings from Members - - 
Other - - 
Total 20,185,243,809 19,114,293,315 

 

4.19 Borrowing 
Borrowings from domestic banks and financial institutions as well as foreign borrowings are presented as follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Domestic Borrowing   
Nepal Government - - 
Other licensed Institutions 2,820,171,928 3,885,503,863 
Other - - 
Sub total 2,820,171,928 3,885,503,863 
Foreign Borrowing   
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - 
Multilateral Development Banks - - 
Other Institutions 50,441,976 61,217,976 
Sub total 50,441,976 61,217,976 
Total 2,870,613,904 3,946,721,839 

Note: The amount in Foreign Borrowing (Other Institutions) consist of Borrowing from Whole Planet of USA and this 
loan is Interest Free Loans as per agreement. 

4.20 Provisions 
Provisions for expenses made by the Financial Institution are presented as follows:  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Provisions for redundancy - - 
Provision for restructuring - - 
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - 
Onerous contracts - - 
Other 14,590,860 14,590,102 
Total 14,590,860 14,590,102 

The above Other Provision is related to Fraudulent case of staff the details of which is disclosed in Notes to Account in 
5.9 point no 4. 

4.20.1 Movement in Provisions 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2080 14,590,102 14,648,322 
Provisions made during the year 758 - 
Provisions used during the year - 58,220 
Provisions reversed during the year - - 
Unwind of discount - - 
Balance at Asar end 2081 14,590,860 14,590,102 

 
4.21 Other liabilities 
The details of other liabilities are presented as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations  (224,287,261)  (198,902,497) 
Liability for long-service leave  84,520,782   81,244,543  
Short-term employee benefits  11,460,692   15,575,442  
Bills payable  -     -    
Creditors and accruals     58,009,428  45,926,716  
Interest payable on deposit  2,330,045   10,386,874  
Interest payable on borrowing  10,330,444   11,337,000  
Liabilities on deferred grant income  -     -    
Unpaid Dividend  12,869,885   49,529,519  
Liabilities under Finance Lease  105,728,259   129,464,994  
Employee bonus payable  89,576,991   -    
Other 
     Payable to Staff 
     Tax Payable 
     Inter Branch Adjustment 
     Service Charge Payable 

  
7,914,514 

15,614,031 
- 

109,281,036 

  
1,749,527 

11,609,765 
- 

1,149,248 
Total 283,348,846 159,071,130 

Note 1:  Amount of Rs. 2,465,713 is added to Account Receivable of Schedule 4.14 and Creditor and Accruals of Schedule 
4.21 which was netted off in Previous Year. 

Note 2:  Amount of Rs. 1,749,527 is added to Staff Advance of Schedule 4.14 and Payable to Staff of Schedule 4.21 which 
was netted off in Previous Year. 

Note 3: Tax Payable and Service Charge Payable of Previous Year were grouped under same head of Schedule 4.21 (Sub-
head: other). Now, they are presented in their own respective sub-head for better presentation and disclosure. 

 
4.21.1 Defined benefit obligations 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:   
Present value of funded obligations 495,017,544 437,911,249 
Total present value of obligations 495,017,544 437,911,249 
Fair value of plan assets 719,304,805 636,813,747 
Present value of net obligations 224,287,261 198,902,498 
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations 224,287,261 198,902,498 

4.21.2 Plan Assets 
Plan assets comprise of the following: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Plan assets comprise   
Equity securities - - 
Government bonds - - 
Bank deposit 716,452,716 634,165,984 
Other (CIT Deposit) 2,852,089 2,647,763 
Total 719,304,805 636,813,747 
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4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2080 437,911,249 586,239,838 
Actuarial losses (8,792,115) (108,645,948) 
Benefits paid by the plan (22,632,002) (128,600,812) 
Current service costs and interest 88,530,412 88,918,171 
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 2081 495,017,544 437,911,249 

 
4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2080 636,813,747 680,178,087 
Contributions paid into the plan 40,000,000 22,163,209 
Benefits paid during the year (22,632,002) (128,600,812) 
Actuarial (losses)/gains - - 
Actual return on plan assets 65,123,061 63,073,263 
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 2080 719,304,806 636,813,747 

 
 
4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss     

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Current service costs 68,522,374     55,297,317 
Interest on obligation 
Acturial(gain)/Loss 

43,511,716  
18,070,944 

    57,199,618 
   1,770,666 

Expected return on plan assets 55,407,819     54,864,694 
Total 74,697,215 59,402,907 

 
 
4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Actuarial (gain)/loss (12,148,407) (118,427,672) 
Total (12,148,407) (118,427,672) 

 

4.21.7 Actuarial assumptions     
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Discount rate 9.00% 8.50% 
Expected return on plan asset 9.00% 8.50% 
Future salary increases 4.00% 4.00% 
Withdrawal rate 1.50% 1.50% 

 

4.22 Debt securities issued    
The Financial Institution has not issued any debt securities. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - - 
Debt securities issued at amortized cost - - 
Total   

 

 

 

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities     
The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated liabilities. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Redeemable preference shares - - 
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liability component) - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 

 
4.24 Share capital      
Details of equity shares is presented as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Ordinary shares 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - 
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only) - - 
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - 
Total 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 

 

4.24.1 Ordinary Shares     
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Authorized Capital 3,500,000,000 3,500,000,000 
35000000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each   
Issued capital 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
26120797.5 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each   
Subscribed and paid-up capital 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
26120797.5 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each   
Total 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 

 
4.24.2 Ordinary Share Ownership    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
 Percent Amount Percent Amount 
Domestic ownership (Promoter) 41.90% 1,094,489,259 41.90% 1,094,489,259 
Nepal Government - - - - 
A class licensed institutions 24.62% 643,153,045 24.62% 643,153,045 
Other licensed institutions 0.02% 454,610 0.02% 454,610 
Other Institutions 10.00% 261,087,880 10.00% 261,087,880 
Other 7.27% 189,793,725 7.27% 189,793,725 
Domestic ownership (Public) 49.00% 1,279,919,078 49.00% 1,279,919,078 
Nepal Government 0.00% - 0.00% - 
A class Licensed Institutions 0.00% 902 0.01% 171,502 
Other licensed Institutions 0.08% 1,980,762 0.08% 1,980,762 
Other Institutions 4.55% 118,845,564 3.46% 90,470,464 
Other 44.37% 1,159,091,851 45.45% 1,187,296,351 
Foreign ownership (Promoter) 9.10% 237,671,412 9.10% 237,671,412 
Foreign ownership (Public) - - - - 
Total 100% 2,612,079,750 100% 2,612,079,750 
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4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2080 437,911,249 586,239,838 
Actuarial losses (8,792,115) (108,645,948) 
Benefits paid by the plan (22,632,002) (128,600,812) 
Current service costs and interest 88,530,412 88,918,171 
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 2081 495,017,544 437,911,249 

 
4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2080 636,813,747 680,178,087 
Contributions paid into the plan 40,000,000 22,163,209 
Benefits paid during the year (22,632,002) (128,600,812) 
Actuarial (losses)/gains - - 
Actual return on plan assets 65,123,061 63,073,263 
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 2080 719,304,806 636,813,747 

 
 
4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss     

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Current service costs 68,522,374     55,297,317 
Interest on obligation 
Acturial(gain)/Loss 

43,511,716  
18,070,944 

    57,199,618 
   1,770,666 

Expected return on plan assets 55,407,819     54,864,694 
Total 74,697,215 59,402,907 

 
 
4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Actuarial (gain)/loss (12,148,407) (118,427,672) 
Total (12,148,407) (118,427,672) 

 

4.21.7 Actuarial assumptions     
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Discount rate 9.00% 8.50% 
Expected return on plan asset 9.00% 8.50% 
Future salary increases 4.00% 4.00% 
Withdrawal rate 1.50% 1.50% 

 

4.22 Debt securities issued    
The Financial Institution has not issued any debt securities. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - - 
Debt securities issued at amortized cost - - 
Total   

 

 

 

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities     
The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated liabilities. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Redeemable preference shares - - 
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liability component) - - 
Other - - 
Total - - 

 
4.24 Share capital      
Details of equity shares is presented as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Ordinary shares 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - 
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only) - - 
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - 
Total 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 

 

4.24.1 Ordinary Shares     
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Authorized Capital 3,500,000,000 3,500,000,000 
35000000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each   
Issued capital 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
26120797.5 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each   
Subscribed and paid-up capital 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 
26120797.5 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each   
Total 2,612,079,750 2,612,079,750 

 
4.24.2 Ordinary Share Ownership    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
 Percent Amount Percent Amount 
Domestic ownership (Promoter) 41.90% 1,094,489,259 41.90% 1,094,489,259 
Nepal Government - - - - 
A class licensed institutions 24.62% 643,153,045 24.62% 643,153,045 
Other licensed institutions 0.02% 454,610 0.02% 454,610 
Other Institutions 10.00% 261,087,880 10.00% 261,087,880 
Other 7.27% 189,793,725 7.27% 189,793,725 
Domestic ownership (Public) 49.00% 1,279,919,078 49.00% 1,279,919,078 
Nepal Government 0.00% - 0.00% - 
A class Licensed Institutions 0.00% 902 0.01% 171,502 
Other licensed Institutions 0.08% 1,980,762 0.08% 1,980,762 
Other Institutions 4.55% 118,845,564 3.46% 90,470,464 
Other 44.37% 1,159,091,851 45.45% 1,187,296,351 
Foreign ownership (Promoter) 9.10% 237,671,412 9.10% 237,671,412 
Foreign ownership (Public) - - - - 
Total 100% 2,612,079,750 100% 2,612,079,750 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

66 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

Details of Shareholding holding more than 0.5% 

 
 
4.25 Reserves     
Following reserves are maintained by the Financial Institution. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Statutory general reserve 1,224,440,023 1,171,190,311 
Capital reserve 264,895 2,574,621 
Exchange equalization reserve 709,566 709,566 
Investment adjustment reserve 1,510,000 1,510,000 
Corporate social responsibility reserve 5,215,100 3,629,040 
Client Protection Fund 140,825,225 145,691,556 
Capital redemption reserve - - 
Regulatory reserve 660,150,791 674,572,806 
Asset revaluation reserve - - 
Fair value reserve - - 
Dividend equalization reserve 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 

- 
288,569,278 

- 
298,403,345 

Actuarial Gain                                               90,450,904 80,845,810 
Special reserve - - 
Other reserve   
    Institutional Development Fund 152,247 152,247 
    Employee Training Fund 67,307,112 57,420,649 
Total 2,479,595,140 2,436,699,951 

 

Details of Shareholder holding more than 0.5%
% of Holding No of Shares Amount % of Holding No of Shares Amount

Domestic ownership (Promoter)
A class licensed institutions

Nabil Bank Limited 9.39% 2,453,594                                245,359,420                 9.39% 2,453,594                  245,359,420              
Everest Bank Limited 7.61% 1,988,968                                198,896,813                 7.61% 1,988,968                  198,896,639              
Himalayan Bank Limited 7.61% 1,988,968                                198,896,813                 7.61% 1,988,968                  198,896,586              
Other Institutions

Nirdhan Sanstha 7.44% 1,942,398                                194,239,751                 7.44% 1,942,398                  194,239,751              

National Life Insurance Company Limited 2.00% 522,416                                   52,241,595                   2.00% 522,416                     52,241,595                
Other

Meena Pant 5.36% 1,399,907                                139,990,723                 5.36% 1,399,907                  139,990,723              
Janardan Dev Pant 0.64% 166,094                                   16,609,399                   0.64% 166,094                     16,609,399                

Domestic ownership (Public)
A class Licensed Institutions - - - - - -
Other Institutions

Nepal Life Insurance 0.72% 188,631                                   18,863,061                   0.68% 178,259                     17,825,861                

Nirdhan Sanstha 12.97% 3,386,831                                338,683,112                 12.97% 3,386,831                  338,683,112              
NMB Saral Bachat Fund-E 0.62% 163,103                                   16,310,347                   - -                            -                            
Other

Indira Kc 0.63% 165,333                                   16,533,333                   0.63% 165,333                     16,533,333                
Top Bahadur Rayamajhy 0.73% 189,829                                   18,982,867                   0.73% 189,829                     18,982,867                

Keshari Chand Kucheria 0.51% 132,177                                   13,217,652                   0.51% 132,177                     13,217,652                
Meena Pant 2.37% 619,412                                   61,941,170                   2.52% 659,412                     65,941,170                
Janardan Dev Pant 0.30% 78,718                                     7,871,764                     0.30% 78,718                       7,871,764                  
Foreign ownership (Promoter)

International Finance Corporation 7.54% 1,970,449                                197,044,919                 7.54% 1,970,449                  197,044,919              

Grameen Trust 1.56% 406,265                                   40,626,493                   1.56% 406,265                     40,626,493                
Foreign ownership (Public) - - - - - -

Current Year Previous Year

Statutory General Reserve 
General Reserve is maintained as per the regulatory requirements. This is regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the 
net profit after tax as general reserve to build up the capital until the reserve fund balance is twice the paid-up share capital 
and thereafter minimum 10% of the net profit after tax. This is the restricted reserve and cannot be freely used. 
 
Capital Reserve 
Capital Reserve comprises value of fixed assets received in grant net of accumulated depreciation. Such reserve shall not 
be available for distribution of Dividend. No amount has been allocated by the Financial Institution during the year. 
 
Exchange Equalization Reserve 
Exchange equalization is maintained as per requirement of NRB Directive, which is 25% of foreign exchange revaluation 
gain on the translation to the reporting currency. This reserve is accumulation of such gains over the years. 
 
Investment Adjustment Reserve 
Investment Adjustment Reserve is maintained as per requirement of NRB, the amount equivalent to book value of 
investment in shares not listed in Recognized Stock Exchange within 2 years from the date of acquisition (for shares of 
Prabhu Capital Ltd. amount Rs. 1,500,000 and for Shares of Centre for Micro-Finance Nepal amount Rs. 10,000).   
 
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve is created as per NRB Directive, which is set aside of 1% of net profit. The 
balance in the reserve is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for corporate social 
responsibility objective in the coming years, details of which is presented in table below:- 
 

Particulars Amount 
1. Opening Balance               3,629,040  
2. Expenses during F.Y 2080/081               1,076,426  
3. Allocation in F.Y 2080/081               2,662,486  
4. Closing Balance (1-2+3)                5,215,100  

 
Client Protection Fund 
Client Protection Fund is created as per NRB Directive, which is set aside of 1% of net profit, details of which is presented 
below:- 
 

Particulars Amount 
1. Opening Balance 145,691,556 
2. Interest Received from FD 6,658,221 
3. Expenses during F.Y 2080/81 14,187,036 
4. Allocation in F.Y 2080/81 2,662,486 
     As per NRB Directive (1%) 2,662,486 
     Additional 25% 0 
5. Closing Balance (1+2-3+4) 140,825,225 

 
Regulatory Reserve 

Particulars Deferred Tax 
Reserve Actuary Reserve AIR Reserve Other Total 

Opening 2078-79 163,219,532 (21,369,865) 159,022,375 188,076,150 488,948,193 
Adjustment     - 
Current Year Allocation 253,152,215 21,369,865 49,492,288 (138,389,754) 185,624,613 
Closing Total 2079-80 416,371,747 - 208,514,663 49,686,396 674,572,806 
Adjustment      
Current Year Allocation (112,720,040) - 98,298,026 - (14,422,015) 
Closing Total 2080-81 303,651,707 - 306,812,688 49,686,396 660,150,791 
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Details of Shareholding holding more than 0.5% 

 
 
4.25 Reserves     
Following reserves are maintained by the Financial Institution. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Statutory general reserve 1,224,440,023 1,171,190,311 
Capital reserve 264,895 2,574,621 
Exchange equalization reserve 709,566 709,566 
Investment adjustment reserve 1,510,000 1,510,000 
Corporate social responsibility reserve 5,215,100 3,629,040 
Client Protection Fund 140,825,225 145,691,556 
Capital redemption reserve - - 
Regulatory reserve 660,150,791 674,572,806 
Asset revaluation reserve - - 
Fair value reserve - - 
Dividend equalization reserve 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 

- 
288,569,278 

- 
298,403,345 

Actuarial Gain                                               90,450,904 80,845,810 
Special reserve - - 
Other reserve   
    Institutional Development Fund 152,247 152,247 
    Employee Training Fund 67,307,112 57,420,649 
Total 2,479,595,140 2,436,699,951 

 

Details of Shareholder holding more than 0.5%
% of Holding No of Shares Amount % of Holding No of Shares Amount

Domestic ownership (Promoter)
A class licensed institutions

Nabil Bank Limited 9.39% 2,453,594                                245,359,420                 9.39% 2,453,594                  245,359,420              
Everest Bank Limited 7.61% 1,988,968                                198,896,813                 7.61% 1,988,968                  198,896,639              
Himalayan Bank Limited 7.61% 1,988,968                                198,896,813                 7.61% 1,988,968                  198,896,586              
Other Institutions

Nirdhan Sanstha 7.44% 1,942,398                                194,239,751                 7.44% 1,942,398                  194,239,751              

National Life Insurance Company Limited 2.00% 522,416                                   52,241,595                   2.00% 522,416                     52,241,595                
Other

Meena Pant 5.36% 1,399,907                                139,990,723                 5.36% 1,399,907                  139,990,723              
Janardan Dev Pant 0.64% 166,094                                   16,609,399                   0.64% 166,094                     16,609,399                

Domestic ownership (Public)
A class Licensed Institutions - - - - - -
Other Institutions

Nepal Life Insurance 0.72% 188,631                                   18,863,061                   0.68% 178,259                     17,825,861                

Nirdhan Sanstha 12.97% 3,386,831                                338,683,112                 12.97% 3,386,831                  338,683,112              
NMB Saral Bachat Fund-E 0.62% 163,103                                   16,310,347                   - -                            -                            
Other

Indira Kc 0.63% 165,333                                   16,533,333                   0.63% 165,333                     16,533,333                
Top Bahadur Rayamajhy 0.73% 189,829                                   18,982,867                   0.73% 189,829                     18,982,867                

Keshari Chand Kucheria 0.51% 132,177                                   13,217,652                   0.51% 132,177                     13,217,652                
Meena Pant 2.37% 619,412                                   61,941,170                   2.52% 659,412                     65,941,170                
Janardan Dev Pant 0.30% 78,718                                     7,871,764                     0.30% 78,718                       7,871,764                  
Foreign ownership (Promoter)

International Finance Corporation 7.54% 1,970,449                                197,044,919                 7.54% 1,970,449                  197,044,919              

Grameen Trust 1.56% 406,265                                   40,626,493                   1.56% 406,265                     40,626,493                
Foreign ownership (Public) - - - - - -

Current Year Previous Year

Statutory General Reserve 
General Reserve is maintained as per the regulatory requirements. This is regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the 
net profit after tax as general reserve to build up the capital until the reserve fund balance is twice the paid-up share capital 
and thereafter minimum 10% of the net profit after tax. This is the restricted reserve and cannot be freely used. 
 
Capital Reserve 
Capital Reserve comprises value of fixed assets received in grant net of accumulated depreciation. Such reserve shall not 
be available for distribution of Dividend. No amount has been allocated by the Financial Institution during the year. 
 
Exchange Equalization Reserve 
Exchange equalization is maintained as per requirement of NRB Directive, which is 25% of foreign exchange revaluation 
gain on the translation to the reporting currency. This reserve is accumulation of such gains over the years. 
 
Investment Adjustment Reserve 
Investment Adjustment Reserve is maintained as per requirement of NRB, the amount equivalent to book value of 
investment in shares not listed in Recognized Stock Exchange within 2 years from the date of acquisition (for shares of 
Prabhu Capital Ltd. amount Rs. 1,500,000 and for Shares of Centre for Micro-Finance Nepal amount Rs. 10,000).   
 
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve is created as per NRB Directive, which is set aside of 1% of net profit. The 
balance in the reserve is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for corporate social 
responsibility objective in the coming years, details of which is presented in table below:- 
 

Particulars Amount 
1. Opening Balance               3,629,040  
2. Expenses during F.Y 2080/081               1,076,426  
3. Allocation in F.Y 2080/081               2,662,486  
4. Closing Balance (1-2+3)                5,215,100  

 
Client Protection Fund 
Client Protection Fund is created as per NRB Directive, which is set aside of 1% of net profit, details of which is presented 
below:- 
 

Particulars Amount 
1. Opening Balance 145,691,556 
2. Interest Received from FD 6,658,221 
3. Expenses during F.Y 2080/81 14,187,036 
4. Allocation in F.Y 2080/81 2,662,486 
     As per NRB Directive (1%) 2,662,486 
     Additional 25% 0 
5. Closing Balance (1+2-3+4) 140,825,225 

 
Regulatory Reserve 

Particulars Deferred Tax 
Reserve Actuary Reserve AIR Reserve Other Total 

Opening 2078-79 163,219,532 (21,369,865) 159,022,375 188,076,150 488,948,193 
Adjustment     - 
Current Year Allocation 253,152,215 21,369,865 49,492,288 (138,389,754) 185,624,613 
Closing Total 2079-80 416,371,747 - 208,514,663 49,686,396 674,572,806 
Adjustment      
Current Year Allocation (112,720,040) - 98,298,026 - (14,422,015) 
Closing Total 2080-81 303,651,707 - 306,812,688 49,686,396 660,150,791 
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Regulatory Reserve is created due to changes in the NFRS Conversion and adoption with effect in the retained earnings of 
the Financial Institution. Regulatory Reserve includes Deferred Tax Reserve, Actuarial Gain /(losses), Accrued Interest 
Receivable and Others (Balances out of Restatement of Previous Year Figures).The balance in the reserve amounting Rs. 
660,150,791 is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for Regulatory objective in the 
coming years.  
 
Fair Value Reserve 
The Fair Value Reserve is created against the valuation of the investment made as per the fair valuation of the investment 
made, quoted as available for sale investments. During the year no fair value reserve is maintained. 
 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve is created as per NRB Direction as a separate reserve for amount of Loan Loss provision 
(Net of Tax) that has been reversed due to Rescheduling and Restructuring of Loans during FY 2080-81. 
The total amount of loan Rs. 1,473,412,177 has been Rescheduled and Restructured during FY 2080-81 and corresponding 
Impairment charge (Net of Tax) of Rs. 288,569,278 has been maintained as Reschedule and Restructure Reserve as at Year 
end FY 2080-81. Amount of Rs. 9,834,067 has been reversed from Reschedule & Restructure Reserve accordingly. 
                                         
Actuarial Gain Reserve 
The Actuarial Gain Reserve is a financial provision set aside to account for favourable changes in actuarial assumptions 
such as improvements in mortality rates or investment returns, which impact the estimated future obligations of employee 
benefits. Accumulated actuarial gain till Ashad end 2081 is Rs. 129,215,577 therefore actuarial gain reserve for Rs. 
90,450,904 has been maintained. 
 
Other Reserves 
Other Reserves includes Client Protection Fund, CSR Reserve, Employee Training Fund, Investment adjustment Reserve, 
Institutional Development Fund, Capital Reserve and Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve.  
 
Retained Earning 
Retained Earnings is cumulative net income that has been earned over time, minus any dividend or distributions paid to 
Shareholders. 
Opening balance of Retained Earning was Rs. (357,515,437). Adjustment for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. 220,942,287. 
Closing Retained Earning for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. (136,573,150). The detailed flow for Retained Earning has also 
been presented in Statement of change of Equity. 
 
4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments      
Contingent liabilities include Litigation in Large Tax Payers Office, the amount which is not acknowledged as liability by 
the Financial Institution. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Contingent liabilities - - 
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - 
Capital commitment - - 
Lease Commitment - - 
Litigation 4,998,540 4,998,540 
Others - - 
Total 4,998,540 4,998,540 

 
4.26.1 Capital commitments    
The Financial Institution does not have any Capital Commitments. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial 
statements. 
   
Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment   

Regulatory Reserve is created due to changes in the NFRS Conversion and adoption with effect in the retained earnings of 
the Financial Institution. Regulatory Reserve includes Deferred Tax Reserve, Actuarial Gain /(losses), Accrued Interest 
Receivable and Others (Balances out of Restatement of Previous Year Figures).The balance in the reserve amounting Rs. 
660,150,791 is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for Regulatory objective in the 
coming years.  
 
Fair Value Reserve 
The Fair Value Reserve is created against the valuation of the investment made as per the fair valuation of the investment 
made, quoted as available for sale investments. During the year no fair value reserve is maintained. 
 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve is created as per NRB Direction as a separate reserve for amount of Loan Loss provision 
(Net of Tax) that has been reversed due to Rescheduling and Restructuring of Loans during FY 2080-81. 
The total amount of loan Rs. 1,473,412,177 has been Rescheduled and Restructured during FY 2080-81 and corresponding 
Impairment charge (Net of Tax) of Rs. 288,569,278 has been maintained as Reschedule and Restructure Reserve as at Year 
end FY 2080-81. Amount of Rs. 9,834,067 has been reversed from Reschedule & Restructure Reserve accordingly. 
                                         
Actuarial Gain Reserve 
The Actuarial Gain Reserve is a financial provision set aside to account for favourable changes in actuarial assumptions 
such as improvements in mortality rates or investment returns, which impact the estimated future obligations of employee 
benefits. Accumulated actuarial gain till Ashad end 2081 is Rs. 129,215,577 therefore actuarial gain reserve for Rs. 
90,450,904 has been maintained. 
 
Other Reserves 
Other Reserves includes Client Protection Fund, CSR Reserve, Employee Training Fund, Investment adjustment Reserve, 
Institutional Development Fund, Capital Reserve and Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve.  
 
Retained Earning 
Retained Earnings is cumulative net income that has been earned over time, minus any dividend or distributions paid to 
Shareholders. 
Opening balance of Retained Earning was Rs. (357,515,437). Adjustment for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. 220,942,287. 
Closing Retained Earning for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. (136,573,150). The detailed flow for Retained Earning has also 
been presented in Statement of change of Equity. 
 
4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments      
Contingent liabilities include Litigation in Large Tax Payers Office, the amount which is not acknowledged as liability by 
the Financial Institution. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Contingent liabilities - - 
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - 
Capital commitment - - 
Lease Commitment - - 
Litigation 4,998,540 4,998,540 
Others - - 
Total 4,998,540 4,998,540 

 
4.26.1 Capital commitments    
The Financial Institution does not have any Capital Commitments. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial 
statements. 
   
Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment   

Approved and contracted for - - 
Approved but not contracted for - - 
Sub Total - - 
   
 
 
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets 

  

Approved and contracted for - - 
Approved but not contracted for - - 
Sub Total - - 
Total - - 

 
4.26.2 Lease commitments    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Operating lease commitments   
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where 
the institution is lessee - - 

Not later than 1 year - - 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - 
Later than 5 years - - 
Sub Total - - 
   
Finance lease commitments   
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where 
the institution is lessee - - 

Not later than 1 year - - 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - 
Later than 5 years - - 
Sub Total   
Grand Total   

 
4.26.3 Litigation 
Amount of NPR 49,98,540/- disclosed as contingent liabilities relates to an unresolved matter with the Income Tax 
Department. The Income Tax Department has not provided sufficient evidence to validate the claim. Based on advice from 
our Legal Advisor, this liability is deemed not payable due to the lack of substantiating documentation from the Income 
Tax Department. No provision has been recognized in the financial statements for this amount, as management believes 
there is a low probability of an outflow of resources. 
 
4.27 Interest Income      
Interest Income includes interest income on loans and advances to customers and staffs, investment securities except on 
those investment securities measured at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, placement with banks 
and financial institutions and interest income on gratuity fund.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Cash and cash equivalent  114,936,307  96,102,351 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  -    - 
Placement with bank and financial institutions  -    - 
Loans and advances to financial institutions  -    - 
Loans and advances to customers  3,669,526,323  3,809,309,609 
Investment securities  15,870,724  17,490,004 
Loans and advances to staff  42,961,749  37,877,608 
Other  -    - 
Total interest income 3,843,295,104 3,960,779,572 
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Regulatory Reserve is created due to changes in the NFRS Conversion and adoption with effect in the retained earnings of 
the Financial Institution. Regulatory Reserve includes Deferred Tax Reserve, Actuarial Gain /(losses), Accrued Interest 
Receivable and Others (Balances out of Restatement of Previous Year Figures).The balance in the reserve amounting Rs. 
660,150,791 is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for Regulatory objective in the 
coming years.  
 
Fair Value Reserve 
The Fair Value Reserve is created against the valuation of the investment made as per the fair valuation of the investment 
made, quoted as available for sale investments. During the year no fair value reserve is maintained. 
 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve is created as per NRB Direction as a separate reserve for amount of Loan Loss provision 
(Net of Tax) that has been reversed due to Rescheduling and Restructuring of Loans during FY 2080-81. 
The total amount of loan Rs. 1,473,412,177 has been Rescheduled and Restructured during FY 2080-81 and corresponding 
Impairment charge (Net of Tax) of Rs. 288,569,278 has been maintained as Reschedule and Restructure Reserve as at Year 
end FY 2080-81. Amount of Rs. 9,834,067 has been reversed from Reschedule & Restructure Reserve accordingly. 
                                         
Actuarial Gain Reserve 
The Actuarial Gain Reserve is a financial provision set aside to account for favourable changes in actuarial assumptions 
such as improvements in mortality rates or investment returns, which impact the estimated future obligations of employee 
benefits. Accumulated actuarial gain till Ashad end 2081 is Rs. 129,215,577 therefore actuarial gain reserve for Rs. 
90,450,904 has been maintained. 
 
Other Reserves 
Other Reserves includes Client Protection Fund, CSR Reserve, Employee Training Fund, Investment adjustment Reserve, 
Institutional Development Fund, Capital Reserve and Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve.  
 
Retained Earning 
Retained Earnings is cumulative net income that has been earned over time, minus any dividend or distributions paid to 
Shareholders. 
Opening balance of Retained Earning was Rs. (357,515,437). Adjustment for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. 220,942,287. 
Closing Retained Earning for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. (136,573,150). The detailed flow for Retained Earning has also 
been presented in Statement of change of Equity. 
 
4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments      
Contingent liabilities include Litigation in Large Tax Payers Office, the amount which is not acknowledged as liability by 
the Financial Institution. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Contingent liabilities - - 
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - 
Capital commitment - - 
Lease Commitment - - 
Litigation 4,998,540 4,998,540 
Others - - 
Total 4,998,540 4,998,540 

 
4.26.1 Capital commitments    
The Financial Institution does not have any Capital Commitments. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial 
statements. 
   
Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment   

Regulatory Reserve is created due to changes in the NFRS Conversion and adoption with effect in the retained earnings of 
the Financial Institution. Regulatory Reserve includes Deferred Tax Reserve, Actuarial Gain /(losses), Accrued Interest 
Receivable and Others (Balances out of Restatement of Previous Year Figures).The balance in the reserve amounting Rs. 
660,150,791 is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for Regulatory objective in the 
coming years.  
 
Fair Value Reserve 
The Fair Value Reserve is created against the valuation of the investment made as per the fair valuation of the investment 
made, quoted as available for sale investments. During the year no fair value reserve is maintained. 
 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve 
Reschedule & Restructure Reserve is created as per NRB Direction as a separate reserve for amount of Loan Loss provision 
(Net of Tax) that has been reversed due to Rescheduling and Restructuring of Loans during FY 2080-81. 
The total amount of loan Rs. 1,473,412,177 has been Rescheduled and Restructured during FY 2080-81 and corresponding 
Impairment charge (Net of Tax) of Rs. 288,569,278 has been maintained as Reschedule and Restructure Reserve as at Year 
end FY 2080-81. Amount of Rs. 9,834,067 has been reversed from Reschedule & Restructure Reserve accordingly. 
                                         
Actuarial Gain Reserve 
The Actuarial Gain Reserve is a financial provision set aside to account for favourable changes in actuarial assumptions 
such as improvements in mortality rates or investment returns, which impact the estimated future obligations of employee 
benefits. Accumulated actuarial gain till Ashad end 2081 is Rs. 129,215,577 therefore actuarial gain reserve for Rs. 
90,450,904 has been maintained. 
 
Other Reserves 
Other Reserves includes Client Protection Fund, CSR Reserve, Employee Training Fund, Investment adjustment Reserve, 
Institutional Development Fund, Capital Reserve and Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve.  
 
Retained Earning 
Retained Earnings is cumulative net income that has been earned over time, minus any dividend or distributions paid to 
Shareholders. 
Opening balance of Retained Earning was Rs. (357,515,437). Adjustment for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. 220,942,287. 
Closing Retained Earning for FY 2080-81 amounts to Rs. (136,573,150). The detailed flow for Retained Earning has also 
been presented in Statement of change of Equity. 
 
4.26 Contingent liabilities and commitments      
Contingent liabilities include Litigation in Large Tax Payers Office, the amount which is not acknowledged as liability by 
the Financial Institution. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Contingent liabilities - - 
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - 
Capital commitment - - 
Lease Commitment - - 
Litigation 4,998,540 4,998,540 
Others - - 
Total 4,998,540 4,998,540 

 
4.26.1 Capital commitments    
The Financial Institution does not have any Capital Commitments. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial 
statements. 
   
Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment   

Approved and contracted for - - 
Approved but not contracted for - - 
Sub Total - - 
   
 
 
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets 

  

Approved and contracted for - - 
Approved but not contracted for - - 
Sub Total - - 
Total - - 

 
4.26.2 Lease commitments    

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Operating lease commitments   
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where 
the institution is lessee - - 

Not later than 1 year - - 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - 
Later than 5 years - - 
Sub Total - - 
   
Finance lease commitments   
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease, where 
the institution is lessee - - 

Not later than 1 year - - 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - 
Later than 5 years - - 
Sub Total   
Grand Total   

 
4.26.3 Litigation 
Amount of NPR 49,98,540/- disclosed as contingent liabilities relates to an unresolved matter with the Income Tax 
Department. The Income Tax Department has not provided sufficient evidence to validate the claim. Based on advice from 
our Legal Advisor, this liability is deemed not payable due to the lack of substantiating documentation from the Income 
Tax Department. No provision has been recognized in the financial statements for this amount, as management believes 
there is a low probability of an outflow of resources. 
 
4.27 Interest Income      
Interest Income includes interest income on loans and advances to customers and staffs, investment securities except on 
those investment securities measured at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, placement with banks 
and financial institutions and interest income on gratuity fund.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Cash and cash equivalent  114,936,307  96,102,351 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  -    - 
Placement with bank and financial institutions  -    - 
Loans and advances to financial institutions  -    - 
Loans and advances to customers  3,669,526,323  3,809,309,609 
Investment securities  15,870,724  17,490,004 
Loans and advances to staff  42,961,749  37,877,608 
Other  -    - 
Total interest income 3,843,295,104 3,960,779,572 
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4.28 Interest Expense      
Interest Expenses include interest on deposits collected and interest on borrowings. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Due to bank and financial institutions  -    - 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -    - 
Deposits from customers  1,559,050,986  1,342,556,788 
Borrowing  352,879,106  659,378,248 
Debt securities issued  -    - 
Subordinated liabilities  -    - 
Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16)  13,082,359  13,992,070 
Total interest expense 1,925,012,451 2,015,927,106 

Note: Previous Year Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16) has been restated to correct the classification. 
Previously, it was presented as Finance expense und NFRSs (Personnel Expense). 

4.29 Fees and Commission Income      
Fees and commission incomes is generally recognized when the services has been provided. Service fees on loans is 
recognized as fees and commission income by the Financial Institution and the same is recognized upfront and is not 
deferred with the tenure of loan. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loan administration fees - - 
Service fees 175,272,939 90,518,119 
Commitment Fees - - 
Card Issuance Fees - - 
Prepayment and swap fees - - 
Remittance fees 51,340 359,237 
Brokerage Fees - - 
*Other fees and commission income 172,684,797 44,800,054 
Total Fees and Commission Income 348,009,076 135,677,411 

*Other fees and commission income includes reversal of Interest Expense on Sambriddhi Savings amounting         
Rs.124,119,057. Previously it was deducted from Interest Expenses. Similarly, it includes Charge on Premature Fixed 
Deposit amounting Rs. 248,182 Mobile Banking Commission amounting Rs.3,520,093 insurance commission amounting 
Rs.30,062,881 and NLIC Commission amounting Rs. 14,734,584. 
 
Note:  Amount of Rs. 4,846,357 and 983,382 relating to previous year has been deducted from Other fees and commission 
income of Schedule 4.29 and reclassified to House Rent and Miscellaneous income respectively of Schedule 4.37 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.30 Fees and Commission Expense      
Fees and Commission Expenses include remittance fees and commission. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Brokerage - - 
ATM management fees - - 
Visa Master card Fees - - 
Guarantee Commission Fees - - 
DD/TT/Swift Fees - - 
Remittance fees and commission 2,558 2,408 
**Other fees and commission expense 1,807,225 5,766,670 

Total Fees and Commission Expense 5,769,078 1,863,754 
**Other fees and commission expense includes the Bank Charge and Service Fees amounting Rs. 1,807,225. 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 5,766,670 relating to previous year has been deducted from Remittance fees and commission expense 
of Schedule 4.30 and reclassified to Other fees and commission expense under the same schedule 4.30 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.31 Net Trading Income      
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Changes in fair value of trading assets - - 
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - - 
Interest income on trading assets - - 
Dividend income on trading assets - - 
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - - 
Other - - 
Net trading income - - 

 
4.32 Other Operating Income     
Other Operating Income include loss on sale of Property and Equipment. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Foreign exchange revaluation gain - - 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities - - 
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - 
Dividend on equity instruments 118,472 168,822 
Gain/(loss) on sale of property and equipment 259,923 (8,682) 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment property - - 
Operating lease income - - 
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - 
Other 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of Staffs Loan 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of ROU Assets 
     Adjustment to ROU Assets and Lease Liability 
     Prior Period Excess Depreciation Reversed 
     ***Grant Income 

  
3,679,160 
154,409 

4,516,549 
551,920 
78,937 

    
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,253,855 
Total 9,359,370 2,413,995 

***Grant Income includes Grant from CCS Project which has been utilized for payment of Incentive and Salary to staff 
as per Agreement. 
 
4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses     
Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan 
loss provision prescribed by NRB Directive. Higher of loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered 
for impairment. Accrued Interest Receivable on loans and Loans provided to employees have been considered under Loans 
and Advances measured at Amortized Cost.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fis - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 433,460,509 875,980,527 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial 
institutions 

- - 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - 
Total 433,460,509 875,980,527 Total Fees and Commission Expense 5,769,078 1,863,754 

**Other fees and commission expense includes the Bank Charge and Service Fees amounting Rs. 1,807,225. 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 5,766,670 relating to previous year has been deducted from Remittance fees and commission expense 
of Schedule 4.30 and reclassified to Other fees and commission expense under the same schedule 4.30 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.31 Net Trading Income      
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Changes in fair value of trading assets - - 
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - - 
Interest income on trading assets - - 
Dividend income on trading assets - - 
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - - 
Other - - 
Net trading income - - 

 
4.32 Other Operating Income     
Other Operating Income include loss on sale of Property and Equipment. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Foreign exchange revaluation gain - - 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities - - 
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - 
Dividend on equity instruments 118,472 168,822 
Gain/(loss) on sale of property and equipment 259,923 (8,682) 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment property - - 
Operating lease income - - 
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - 
Other 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of Staffs Loan 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of ROU Assets 
     Adjustment to ROU Assets and Lease Liability 
     Prior Period Excess Depreciation Reversed 
     ***Grant Income 

  
3,679,160 
154,409 

4,516,549 
551,920 
78,937 

    
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,253,855 
Total 9,359,370 2,413,995 

***Grant Income includes Grant from CCS Project which has been utilized for payment of Incentive and Salary to staff 
as per Agreement. 
 
4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses     
Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan 
loss provision prescribed by NRB Directive. Higher of loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered 
for impairment. Accrued Interest Receivable on loans and Loans provided to employees have been considered under Loans 
and Advances measured at Amortized Cost.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fis - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 433,460,509 875,980,527 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial 
institutions 

- - 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - 
Total 433,460,509 875,980,527 
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4.28 Interest Expense      
Interest Expenses include interest on deposits collected and interest on borrowings. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Due to bank and financial institutions  -    - 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -    - 
Deposits from customers  1,559,050,986  1,342,556,788 
Borrowing  352,879,106  659,378,248 
Debt securities issued  -    - 
Subordinated liabilities  -    - 
Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16)  13,082,359  13,992,070 
Total interest expense 1,925,012,451 2,015,927,106 

Note: Previous Year Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16) has been restated to correct the classification. 
Previously, it was presented as Finance expense und NFRSs (Personnel Expense). 

4.29 Fees and Commission Income      
Fees and commission incomes is generally recognized when the services has been provided. Service fees on loans is 
recognized as fees and commission income by the Financial Institution and the same is recognized upfront and is not 
deferred with the tenure of loan. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loan administration fees - - 
Service fees 175,272,939 90,518,119 
Commitment Fees - - 
Card Issuance Fees - - 
Prepayment and swap fees - - 
Remittance fees 51,340 359,237 
Brokerage Fees - - 
*Other fees and commission income 172,684,797 44,800,054 
Total Fees and Commission Income 348,009,076 135,677,411 

*Other fees and commission income includes reversal of Interest Expense on Sambriddhi Savings amounting         
Rs.124,119,057. Previously it was deducted from Interest Expenses. Similarly, it includes Charge on Premature Fixed 
Deposit amounting Rs. 248,182 Mobile Banking Commission amounting Rs.3,520,093 insurance commission amounting 
Rs.30,062,881 and NLIC Commission amounting Rs. 14,734,584. 
 
Note:  Amount of Rs. 4,846,357 and 983,382 relating to previous year has been deducted from Other fees and commission 
income of Schedule 4.29 and reclassified to House Rent and Miscellaneous income respectively of Schedule 4.37 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.30 Fees and Commission Expense      
Fees and Commission Expenses include remittance fees and commission. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Brokerage - - 
ATM management fees - - 
Visa Master card Fees - - 
Guarantee Commission Fees - - 
DD/TT/Swift Fees - - 
Remittance fees and commission 2,558 2,408 
**Other fees and commission expense 1,807,225 5,766,670 

Total Fees and Commission Expense 5,769,078 1,863,754 
**Other fees and commission expense includes the Bank Charge and Service Fees amounting Rs. 1,807,225. 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 5,766,670 relating to previous year has been deducted from Remittance fees and commission expense 
of Schedule 4.30 and reclassified to Other fees and commission expense under the same schedule 4.30 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.31 Net Trading Income      
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Changes in fair value of trading assets - - 
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - - 
Interest income on trading assets - - 
Dividend income on trading assets - - 
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - - 
Other - - 
Net trading income - - 

 
4.32 Other Operating Income     
Other Operating Income include loss on sale of Property and Equipment. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Foreign exchange revaluation gain - - 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities - - 
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - 
Dividend on equity instruments 118,472 168,822 
Gain/(loss) on sale of property and equipment 259,923 (8,682) 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment property - - 
Operating lease income - - 
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - 
Other 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of Staffs Loan 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of ROU Assets 
     Adjustment to ROU Assets and Lease Liability 
     Prior Period Excess Depreciation Reversed 
     ***Grant Income 

  
3,679,160 
154,409 

4,516,549 
551,920 
78,937 

    
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,253,855 
Total 9,359,370 2,413,995 

***Grant Income includes Grant from CCS Project which has been utilized for payment of Incentive and Salary to staff 
as per Agreement. 
 
4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses     
Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan 
loss provision prescribed by NRB Directive. Higher of loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered 
for impairment. Accrued Interest Receivable on loans and Loans provided to employees have been considered under Loans 
and Advances measured at Amortized Cost.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fis - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 433,460,509 875,980,527 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial 
institutions 

- - 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - 
Total 433,460,509 875,980,527 Total Fees and Commission Expense 5,769,078 1,863,754 

**Other fees and commission expense includes the Bank Charge and Service Fees amounting Rs. 1,807,225. 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 5,766,670 relating to previous year has been deducted from Remittance fees and commission expense 
of Schedule 4.30 and reclassified to Other fees and commission expense under the same schedule 4.30 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.31 Net Trading Income      
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Changes in fair value of trading assets - - 
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - - 
Interest income on trading assets - - 
Dividend income on trading assets - - 
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction - - 
Other - - 
Net trading income - - 

 
4.32 Other Operating Income     
Other Operating Income include loss on sale of Property and Equipment. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Foreign exchange revaluation gain - - 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities - - 
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - 
Dividend on equity instruments 118,472 168,822 
Gain/(loss) on sale of property and equipment 259,923 (8,682) 
Gain/(loss) on sale of investment property - - 
Operating lease income - - 
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - 
Other 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of Staffs Loan 
     Gain/(loss) On Disposal of ROU Assets 
     Adjustment to ROU Assets and Lease Liability 
     Prior Period Excess Depreciation Reversed 
     ***Grant Income 

  
3,679,160 
154,409 

4,516,549 
551,920 
78,937 

    
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,253,855 
Total 9,359,370 2,413,995 

***Grant Income includes Grant from CCS Project which has been utilized for payment of Incentive and Salary to staff 
as per Agreement. 
 
4.33 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses     
Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incurred loss model which is compared with the loan 
loss provision prescribed by NRB Directive. Higher of loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered 
for impairment. Accrued Interest Receivable on loans and Loans provided to employees have been considered under Loans 
and Advances measured at Amortized Cost.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fis - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 433,460,509 875,980,527 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial 
institutions 

- - 

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - - 
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - 
Total 433,460,509 875,980,527 
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4.34 Personnel Expense     
Expenses related to employees of the Financial Institution are included under this head. Gratuity expense of previous year 
restated to match with expense of actuary report.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Salary  445,186,589  444,038,024 
Allowances  228,143,567  236,937,184 
Gratuity expense  33,122,593  34,053,477 
Provident fund  30,790,582  31,491,858 
Uniform  6,258,750  6,736,250 
Training & development expense  15,213,865  13,860,141 
Leave encashment  41,574,622  25,349,430 
Medical  -    - 
Insurance  21,510,756  21,976,144 
Employees incentive  -    - 
Cash-settled share-based payments  -    - 
Pension expense  520,191  - 
Finance expense under NFRSs  15,696,784  12,535,523 
Other expenses related to staff  -    6,909,068 
Sub Total 838,018,299 833,887,100 
Employees bonus 89,576,991 - 
Grand total 927,595,290 833,887,100 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 13,992,070 relating to previous year has been deducted from Finance expense under NFRSs of 
Schedule 4.34 and reclassified to Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16) under the same schedule 4.28 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.35 Other operating expense     
Operating Expense other than those relating to personnel expenses are recognized and presented in this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Directors' fee  937,000  761,000 
Directors' expense  356,639  421,161 
Auditors' remuneration  1,000,000  791,000 
Other audit related expense  -    500,000 
Professional and legal expense  281,323  301,145 
Office administration expense  71,255,953  71,037,347 
Operating lease expense  -    106,652 
Operating expense of investment properties  -    - 
Corporate social responsibility expense  -    - 
Client Protection expenses  -    - 
Onerous lease provisions  -    - 
Other  -    - 
Total 73,830,915 73,918,305 

 

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.34 Personnel Expense     
Expenses related to employees of the Financial Institution are included under this head. Gratuity expense of previous year 
restated to match with expense of actuary report.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Salary  445,186,589  444,038,024 
Allowances  228,143,567  236,937,184 
Gratuity expense  33,122,593  34,053,477 
Provident fund  30,790,582  31,491,858 
Uniform  6,258,750  6,736,250 
Training & development expense  15,213,865  13,860,141 
Leave encashment  41,574,622  25,349,430 
Medical  -    - 
Insurance  21,510,756  21,976,144 
Employees incentive  -    - 
Cash-settled share-based payments  -    - 
Pension expense  520,191  - 
Finance expense under NFRSs  15,696,784  12,535,523 
Other expenses related to staff  -    6,909,068 
Sub Total 838,018,299 833,887,100 
Employees bonus 89,576,991 - 
Grand total 927,595,290 833,887,100 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 13,992,070 relating to previous year has been deducted from Finance expense under NFRSs of 
Schedule 4.34 and reclassified to Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16) under the same schedule 4.28 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.35 Other operating expense     
Operating Expense other than those relating to personnel expenses are recognized and presented in this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Directors' fee  937,000  761,000 
Directors' expense  356,639  421,161 
Auditors' remuneration  1,000,000  791,000 
Other audit related expense  -    500,000 
Professional and legal expense  281,323  301,145 
Office administration expense  71,255,953  71,037,347 
Operating lease expense  -    106,652 
Operating expense of investment properties  -    - 
Corporate social responsibility expense  -    - 
Client Protection expenses  -    - 
Onerous lease provisions  -    - 
Other  -    - 
Total 73,830,915 73,918,305 

 

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense     

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Water and electricity  4,592,106  4,207,957 
Repair and maintenance   
    (a) Building  -    - 
    (b) Vehicle  1,134,501  453,200 
    (c) Computer and accessories  193,608  238,880 
    (d) Office equipment and furniture  133,735  27,070 
    (e) Other/Low-Cost Assets Maintenance  1,110,406  1,235,822 
Insurance  5,852,205  5,124,469 
Postage, telex, telephone, fax  5,305,429  5,705,394 
Printing and stationery  11,208,972  10,559,502 
Newspaper, books and journals  257,959  415,993 
Advertisement  195,514  264,079 
Donation  -    - 
Security expense  656,304  656,304 
Deposit and loan guarantee premium  -    - 
Travel allowance and expense  27,862,515  26,582,479 
Entertainment  4,575,753  4,648,105 
Annual/special general meeting expense  87,430  175,785 
Other 
     Low-Cost Items Expense 
     Municipal Levies and Fees 
     Recruitment and Placement Expenses 
     Vehicle Running Expenses 
     Reward and Prizes 
     Other Office Running Expenses 

  
881,647  

 2,135,453  
 2,048,034  
 864,424  
 225,000  

 1,934,956 

  
1,011,245  
 3,424,785  
 2,965,667  
 847,614  

 -    
 2,492,999 

Total 71,255,953 71,037,347 
Note:  Amount of Rs. 10,742,309 relating to previous year was presented in a single head (Other). Now it has been 
presented in their respective heads under the same schedule 4.35.1 for better Presentation and disclosure. 
 
4.36 Depreciation & Amortization     
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation includes 
depreciation on property and equipment.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Depreciation on property and equipment 17,534,338 15,890,249 
Depreciation on ROU Assets 
Depreciation on investment property 

35,844,393 
- 

35,076,781 
- 

Amortization of intangible assets 619,319 376,373 
Total 53,998,050 51,343,404 

Note 1:  Amount of Rs. 376,373 relating to previous year was presented in Depreciation on property and equipment. Now 
it has been presented in its respective head (Amortization of intangible assets) under the same schedule 4.36 for better 
Presentation and disclosure. 
 
4.37 Non-Operating Income       
Incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Recovery of loan written off 5,510,694 782,992 
Other income 
     Share of Profit from Plan Assets 
     Disposal of Scrap 
     Examination Fees 

 
6,358,950  
 2,090,000  
 1,520,000  

 
 

 -    
 -    
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4.34 Personnel Expense     
Expenses related to employees of the Financial Institution are included under this head. Gratuity expense of previous year 
restated to match with expense of actuary report.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Salary  445,186,589  444,038,024 
Allowances  228,143,567  236,937,184 
Gratuity expense  33,122,593  34,053,477 
Provident fund  30,790,582  31,491,858 
Uniform  6,258,750  6,736,250 
Training & development expense  15,213,865  13,860,141 
Leave encashment  41,574,622  25,349,430 
Medical  -    - 
Insurance  21,510,756  21,976,144 
Employees incentive  -    - 
Cash-settled share-based payments  -    - 
Pension expense  520,191  - 
Finance expense under NFRSs  15,696,784  12,535,523 
Other expenses related to staff  -    6,909,068 
Sub Total 838,018,299 833,887,100 
Employees bonus 89,576,991 - 
Grand total 927,595,290 833,887,100 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 13,992,070 relating to previous year has been deducted from Finance expense under NFRSs of 
Schedule 4.34 and reclassified to Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16) under the same schedule 4.28 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.35 Other operating expense     
Operating Expense other than those relating to personnel expenses are recognized and presented in this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Directors' fee  937,000  761,000 
Directors' expense  356,639  421,161 
Auditors' remuneration  1,000,000  791,000 
Other audit related expense  -    500,000 
Professional and legal expense  281,323  301,145 
Office administration expense  71,255,953  71,037,347 
Operating lease expense  -    106,652 
Operating expense of investment properties  -    - 
Corporate social responsibility expense  -    - 
Client Protection expenses  -    - 
Onerous lease provisions  -    - 
Other  -    - 
Total 73,830,915 73,918,305 

 

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.34 Personnel Expense     
Expenses related to employees of the Financial Institution are included under this head. Gratuity expense of previous year 
restated to match with expense of actuary report.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Salary  445,186,589  444,038,024 
Allowances  228,143,567  236,937,184 
Gratuity expense  33,122,593  34,053,477 
Provident fund  30,790,582  31,491,858 
Uniform  6,258,750  6,736,250 
Training & development expense  15,213,865  13,860,141 
Leave encashment  41,574,622  25,349,430 
Medical  -    - 
Insurance  21,510,756  21,976,144 
Employees incentive  -    - 
Cash-settled share-based payments  -    - 
Pension expense  520,191  - 
Finance expense under NFRSs  15,696,784  12,535,523 
Other expenses related to staff  -    6,909,068 
Sub Total 838,018,299 833,887,100 
Employees bonus 89,576,991 - 
Grand total 927,595,290 833,887,100 

Note:  Amount of Rs. 13,992,070 relating to previous year has been deducted from Finance expense under NFRSs of 
Schedule 4.34 and reclassified to Other (Lease Liability Interest as per NFRS 16) under the same schedule 4.28 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.35 Other operating expense     
Operating Expense other than those relating to personnel expenses are recognized and presented in this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Directors' fee  937,000  761,000 
Directors' expense  356,639  421,161 
Auditors' remuneration  1,000,000  791,000 
Other audit related expense  -    500,000 
Professional and legal expense  281,323  301,145 
Office administration expense  71,255,953  71,037,347 
Operating lease expense  -    106,652 
Operating expense of investment properties  -    - 
Corporate social responsibility expense  -    - 
Client Protection expenses  -    - 
Onerous lease provisions  -    - 
Other  -    - 
Total 73,830,915 73,918,305 

 

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense     

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Water and electricity  4,592,106  4,207,957 
Repair and maintenance   
    (a) Building  -    - 
    (b) Vehicle  1,134,501  453,200 
    (c) Computer and accessories  193,608  238,880 
    (d) Office equipment and furniture  133,735  27,070 
    (e) Other/Low-Cost Assets Maintenance  1,110,406  1,235,822 
Insurance  5,852,205  5,124,469 
Postage, telex, telephone, fax  5,305,429  5,705,394 
Printing and stationery  11,208,972  10,559,502 
Newspaper, books and journals  257,959  415,993 
Advertisement  195,514  264,079 
Donation  -    - 
Security expense  656,304  656,304 
Deposit and loan guarantee premium  -    - 
Travel allowance and expense  27,862,515  26,582,479 
Entertainment  4,575,753  4,648,105 
Annual/special general meeting expense  87,430  175,785 
Other 
     Low-Cost Items Expense 
     Municipal Levies and Fees 
     Recruitment and Placement Expenses 
     Vehicle Running Expenses 
     Reward and Prizes 
     Other Office Running Expenses 

  
881,647  

 2,135,453  
 2,048,034  
 864,424  
 225,000  

 1,934,956 

  
1,011,245  
 3,424,785  
 2,965,667  
 847,614  

 -    
 2,492,999 

Total 71,255,953 71,037,347 
Note:  Amount of Rs. 10,742,309 relating to previous year was presented in a single head (Other). Now it has been 
presented in their respective heads under the same schedule 4.35.1 for better Presentation and disclosure. 
 
4.36 Depreciation & Amortization     
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation includes 
depreciation on property and equipment.  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Depreciation on property and equipment 17,534,338 15,890,249 
Depreciation on ROU Assets 
Depreciation on investment property 

35,844,393 
- 

35,076,781 
- 

Amortization of intangible assets 619,319 376,373 
Total 53,998,050 51,343,404 

Note 1:  Amount of Rs. 376,373 relating to previous year was presented in Depreciation on property and equipment. Now 
it has been presented in its respective head (Amortization of intangible assets) under the same schedule 4.36 for better 
Presentation and disclosure. 
 
4.37 Non-Operating Income       
Incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Recovery of loan written off 5,510,694 782,992 
Other income 
     Share of Profit from Plan Assets 
     Disposal of Scrap 
     Examination Fees 

 
6,358,950  
 2,090,000  
 1,520,000  

 
 

 -    
 -    
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     House Rent 
     Miscellaneous 

 4,531,017  
 1,344,178  

 4,846,357  
 983,382 

Total 21,354,839 6,612,731 
Note1: Share of Profit from Plan Assets amounting Rs. 6,358,950 is return relating to Previous Year from Plan Assets 
(Investment in CIT and NCC Bank). Similarly, Disposal of Scrap relates to Sale of Vehicle received on Grant and 
categorized as Low-cost items for Inventory Control Purpose. This Asset was already written off from Books of Accounts 
in FY 2077-78. 
Note 2:  Amount of Rs. 4,846,357 and 983,382 relating to previous year has been deducted from Other fees and commission 
income of Schedule 4.29 and reclassified to House Rent and Miscellaneous income respectively of Schedule 4.37 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.38 Non-Operating Expense     
Expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loan written off - 4,754,859 
Redundancy provision - - 
Expense of restructuring - - 
Other expense - - 
Total - 4,754,859 

 
4.39 Income Tax Expense     
The Financial Institution has calculated current tax on the basis of self-assessment as per Income Tax Act, 2058. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Current tax expense 430,987,314 362,153,786 
Current year 398,989,499 312,350,347 
Adjustments for prior years 31,997,816 49,803,439 
   
Deferred tax expense 109,075,517 (288,208,570) 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 109,075,517 (288,208,570) 
Changes in tax rate - - 
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - - 
Total income tax expense 540,062,831 73,945,216 

 

Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or loss) for the 
reporting period amounting to Rs. 398,989,499 and amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous 
years Rs. 31,997,816. 

4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit    
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Profit before tax  806,311,391  243,903,330 
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 %  241,893,417  73,170,999 
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose  192,546,911  312,646,846 
Less: Tax effect on exempt income  (35,450,830) (67,479,299) 
Add: Tax effect on other items  141,073,332  (238,405,131) 
Total income tax expense 540,062,831 79,933,415 
Effective Tax Rate 67% 33% 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss 
For the year ended 31 Asar 2081 
 

Particulars  Current Year 
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss   266,248,560  
Appropriations:   
a. General reserve   53,249,712  
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund   -    
c. Capital redemption reserve   -    
d. Corporate social responsibility fund   2,662,486  
e. Employees' training fund   9,886,463  
f. Client Protection Fund   2,662,486  
g. Other   -    
            -Transfer from CSR 
            -Adjustment in Retained Earning                                                                 

            -Share related expenses 
            -Transfer from Fair Value Reserve      
            -Restructure and Reschedule Reserve Created                                                                        

 
 - 
- 

(9,934,067)    
 Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment  207,621,482 
   
Regulatory adjustment:   
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)  (98,298,026) 
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)  - 
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)  - 
d. Short loan loss provision on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)  - 
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)  112,720,040 
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)  - 
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)  - 
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)  - 
i. Other (+/-)                                                                      - 
Regulatory Reserve for the year  14,422,015 
Remained Retained Earning for Previous year 
Adjustment/Restatement 

 (357,515,437) 
(1,101,209) 

Distributable profit or (loss)  (136,573,150) 

5. Disclosures & Additional Information 

5.1  Risk  Management & Risk Management Framework 
Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the 
Financial Institution’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Financial Institution is accountable for the 
risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is mainly exposed to; 

1. Liquidity Risk 
2. Interest Rate Risk 
3. Credit Risk 
4. Operational Risk 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial Institution’s risk 
management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the Financial Institution which 
includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economic level business 
risks that could interfere with Financial Institution’s objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution’s is in 
substantial compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, 
regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major 
risk in capital assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in 
market conditions, products and services offered. The Financial Institution, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all 
employees are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.  

 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution may be unable to meet its payment 
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged 
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with 
liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has 
formulated separate liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for 
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade 
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required. 

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in 
the event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Financial Institution also has committed lines of credit 
that could be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal 
Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.16% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the Financial Institution’s policy, the 
liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating 
to both the market in general and specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the 
required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term 
bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest Rate Risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our exposure to 
interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial Institution focuses on risk 
management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in 
regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market 
rate risk set by ALCO. 
 
Credit Risk 
The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from Financial 
Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been used by Institution, 
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers’ background, business and experience, 
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.  
 
Operational Risk 
"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error, fraud or external 
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory 
implications, or lead to financial loss. Strategic and Reputational Risks are not covered in Operational Risk. 
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     House Rent 
     Miscellaneous 

 4,531,017  
 1,344,178  

 4,846,357  
 983,382 

Total 21,354,839 6,612,731 
Note1: Share of Profit from Plan Assets amounting Rs. 6,358,950 is return relating to Previous Year from Plan Assets 
(Investment in CIT and NCC Bank). Similarly, Disposal of Scrap relates to Sale of Vehicle received on Grant and 
categorized as Low-cost items for Inventory Control Purpose. This Asset was already written off from Books of Accounts 
in FY 2077-78. 
Note 2:  Amount of Rs. 4,846,357 and 983,382 relating to previous year has been deducted from Other fees and commission 
income of Schedule 4.29 and reclassified to House Rent and Miscellaneous income respectively of Schedule 4.37 for better 
Presentation. 
 
4.38 Non-Operating Expense     
Expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Loan written off - 4,754,859 
Redundancy provision - - 
Expense of restructuring - - 
Other expense - - 
Total - 4,754,859 

 
4.39 Income Tax Expense     
The Financial Institution has calculated current tax on the basis of self-assessment as per Income Tax Act, 2058. 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Current tax expense 430,987,314 362,153,786 
Current year 398,989,499 312,350,347 
Adjustments for prior years 31,997,816 49,803,439 
   
Deferred tax expense 109,075,517 (288,208,570) 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 109,075,517 (288,208,570) 
Changes in tax rate - - 
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - - 
Total income tax expense 540,062,831 73,945,216 

 

Current tax comprises the amount of income taxes payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or loss) for the 
reporting period amounting to Rs. 398,989,499 and amount adjusted to the tax payable (or receivable) in respect of previous 
years Rs. 31,997,816. 

4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit    
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Profit before tax  806,311,391  243,903,330 
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 %  241,893,417  73,170,999 
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose  192,546,911  312,646,846 
Less: Tax effect on exempt income  (35,450,830) (67,479,299) 
Add: Tax effect on other items  141,073,332  (238,405,131) 
Total income tax expense 540,062,831 79,933,415 
Effective Tax Rate 67% 33% 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss 
For the year ended 31 Asar 2081 
 

Particulars  Current Year 
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss   266,248,560  
Appropriations:   
a. General reserve   53,249,712  
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund   -    
c. Capital redemption reserve   -    
d. Corporate social responsibility fund   2,662,486  
e. Employees' training fund   9,886,463  
f. Client Protection Fund   2,662,486  
g. Other   -    
            -Transfer from CSR 
            -Adjustment in Retained Earning                                                                 

            -Share related expenses 
            -Transfer from Fair Value Reserve      
            -Restructure and Reschedule Reserve Created                                                                        

 
 - 
- 

(9,934,067)    
 Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment  207,621,482 
   
Regulatory adjustment:   
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)  (98,298,026) 
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)  - 
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)  - 
d. Short loan loss provision on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)  - 
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)  112,720,040 
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)  - 
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)  - 
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)  - 
i. Other (+/-)                                                                      - 
Regulatory Reserve for the year  14,422,015 
Remained Retained Earning for Previous year 
Adjustment/Restatement 

 (357,515,437) 
(1,101,209) 

Distributable profit or (loss)  (136,573,150) 

5. Disclosures & Additional Information 

5.1  Risk  Management & Risk Management Framework 
Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the 
Financial Institution’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Financial Institution is accountable for the 
risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is mainly exposed to; 

1. Liquidity Risk 
2. Interest Rate Risk 
3. Credit Risk 
4. Operational Risk 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial Institution’s risk 
management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the Financial Institution which 
includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economic level business 
risks that could interfere with Financial Institution’s objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution’s is in 
substantial compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, 
regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major 
risk in capital assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in 
market conditions, products and services offered. The Financial Institution, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all 
employees are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.  

 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution may be unable to meet its payment 
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged 
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with 
liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has 
formulated separate liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for 
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade 
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required. 

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in 
the event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Financial Institution also has committed lines of credit 
that could be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal 
Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.16% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the Financial Institution’s policy, the 
liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating 
to both the market in general and specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the 
required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term 
bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest Rate Risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our exposure to 
interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial Institution focuses on risk 
management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in 
regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market 
rate risk set by ALCO. 
 
Credit Risk 
The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from Financial 
Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been used by Institution, 
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers’ background, business and experience, 
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.  
 
Operational Risk 
"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error, fraud or external 
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory 
implications, or lead to financial loss. Strategic and Reputational Risks are not covered in Operational Risk. 
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4. Operational Risk 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial Institution’s risk 
management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the Financial Institution which 
includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economic level business 
risks that could interfere with Financial Institution’s objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution’s is in 
substantial compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, 
regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major 
risk in capital assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in 
market conditions, products and services offered. The Financial Institution, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all 
employees are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.  

 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution may be unable to meet its payment 
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged 
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with 
liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has 
formulated separate liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for 
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade 
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required. 

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in 
the event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Financial Institution also has committed lines of credit 
that could be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal 
Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.16% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the Financial Institution’s policy, the 
liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating 
to both the market in general and specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the 
required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term 
bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest Rate Risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our exposure to 
interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial Institution focuses on risk 
management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in 
regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market 
rate risk set by ALCO. 
 
Credit Risk 
The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from Financial 
Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been used by Institution, 
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers’ background, business and experience, 
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.  
 
Operational Risk 
"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error, fraud or external 
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory 
implications, or lead to financial loss. Strategic and Reputational Risks are not covered in Operational Risk. 

 
Effective operational risk management systems aims to minimizing losses and customer dissatisfaction due to failure in 
processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Financial Institution to losses due to fraud, 
analyzing the impact of failures in technology / system, developing plans to meet external shocks that can adversely impact 
continuity in the Financial Institution’s operations. The Financial Institution has introduced a "comprehensive operational 
risk monitoring and reporting framework" as well as "output checking" at all branches covering all transactions on daily 
basis to minimize operational risk." 
 
One of the growing risks among others these days is Operations Risk that arises out of inefficient processes and people 
inside and outside the Financial Institution. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is the management 
committee where operating risk, market risk and other risks are discussed, in line with ALM Policy. Information and 
Technology Division in the Financial Institution reviews and checks the security aspects in line with IT Policy of the 
Financial Institution. Financial Institution has conducted an IS Audit of the Financial Institution’s system and suggestions 
given by the audit with respect to safety and security standards are being put in place. 
" Financial Institution has separate division to oversee operation risk including Compliance of KYC and AML. The 
division is headed by senior level staff with adequate access to the daily report, operational processes and right to 
recommend the changes in the system and procedures. All the activities are undertaken in line with the set criteria in the 
Standing Instruction Manual, policies and guidelines including Directives and circulars from central bank (the regulatory 
authority). Similarly daily functions at operations are independently reported through separate reporting line other than 
business generation and credit risk where independence of checking and control is complied with. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Assets & Liabilities 
Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value. The following is a description of how fair values are determined for 
financial instruments that are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Financial 
Institution’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments. 

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by referring to externally quoted prices or observable pricing 
inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is obtained. In an inactive market, direct observation of a 
traded price may not be possible. In these circumstances, the Financial Institution uses alternative market information to 
validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more 
relevant and reliable. Financials assets measured at fair value (either through PL or OCI), primarily consisting of quoted 
equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units, are valued using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. 
If unquoted, those are carried at cost. 

 

Financial investments - Measured through OCI 
Financials assets measured through OCI, primarily consist of quoted equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units ,are valued 
using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. For unquoted securities those are carried at cost. 
 

5.2 Capital Management 
Financial Institution shall disclose following information in regard of Capital Management: 
 

i) Qualitative Disclosures 
Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Financial Institution to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to 
manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as 
strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of 
managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The Financial 
Institution has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance.  
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4. Operational Risk 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Financial Institution’s risk 
management framework. Risk Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the Financial Institution which 
includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economic level business 
risks that could interfere with Financial Institution’s objective and goals and whether the Financial Institution’s is in 
substantial compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, 
regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk Committee ensures integration of all major 
risk in capital assessment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in 
market conditions, products and services offered. The Financial Institution, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all 
employees are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.  

 
Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Financial Institution will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the Financial Institution may be unable to meet its payment 
obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged 
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with 
liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Financial Institution has 
formulated separate liquidity risk management policy and developed internal control processes and contingency plans for 
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade 
collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required. 

The Financial Institution maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in 
the event of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Financial Institution also has committed lines of credit 
that could be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Financial Institution maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal 
Rastra Bank equal to approx. 2.16% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the Financial Institution’s policy, the 
liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating 
to both the market in general and specific to the Financial Institution. The most important of these is to maintain the 
required ratio of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term 
bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest Rate Risk includes risk arising due to adverse movements in the interest rates and equity price. Our exposure to 
interest rate risk arises predominantly from customer driven transactions. The Financial Institution focuses on risk 
management in compliance with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, also by addressing interest rate risk in 
regular interval to strengthen the risk management. The interest rate risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market 
rate risk set by ALCO. 
 
Credit Risk 
The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failure to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from Financial 
Institution as per the agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application form which has been used by Institution, 
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers’ background, business and experience, 
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.  
 
Operational Risk 
"Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from failed internal processes, systems failure, human error, fraud or external 
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory 
implications, or lead to financial loss. Strategic and Reputational Risks are not covered in Operational Risk. 

 
Effective operational risk management systems aims to minimizing losses and customer dissatisfaction due to failure in 
processes, focusing on flows in products and their design that can expose the Financial Institution to losses due to fraud, 
analyzing the impact of failures in technology / system, developing plans to meet external shocks that can adversely impact 
continuity in the Financial Institution’s operations. The Financial Institution has introduced a "comprehensive operational 
risk monitoring and reporting framework" as well as "output checking" at all branches covering all transactions on daily 
basis to minimize operational risk." 
 
One of the growing risks among others these days is Operations Risk that arises out of inefficient processes and people 
inside and outside the Financial Institution. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is the management 
committee where operating risk, market risk and other risks are discussed, in line with ALM Policy. Information and 
Technology Division in the Financial Institution reviews and checks the security aspects in line with IT Policy of the 
Financial Institution. Financial Institution has conducted an IS Audit of the Financial Institution’s system and suggestions 
given by the audit with respect to safety and security standards are being put in place. 
" Financial Institution has separate division to oversee operation risk including Compliance of KYC and AML. The 
division is headed by senior level staff with adequate access to the daily report, operational processes and right to 
recommend the changes in the system and procedures. All the activities are undertaken in line with the set criteria in the 
Standing Instruction Manual, policies and guidelines including Directives and circulars from central bank (the regulatory 
authority). Similarly daily functions at operations are independently reported through separate reporting line other than 
business generation and credit risk where independence of checking and control is complied with. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Assets & Liabilities 
Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value. The following is a description of how fair values are determined for 
financial instruments that are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Financial 
Institution’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments. 

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by referring to externally quoted prices or observable pricing 
inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is obtained. In an inactive market, direct observation of a 
traded price may not be possible. In these circumstances, the Financial Institution uses alternative market information to 
validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more 
relevant and reliable. Financials assets measured at fair value (either through PL or OCI), primarily consisting of quoted 
equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units, are valued using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. 
If unquoted, those are carried at cost. 

 

Financial investments - Measured through OCI 
Financials assets measured through OCI, primarily consist of quoted equities and Quoted Mutual Fund units ,are valued 
using the quoted market price in active markets as at the reporting date. For unquoted securities those are carried at cost. 
 

5.2 Capital Management 
Financial Institution shall disclose following information in regard of Capital Management: 
 

i) Qualitative Disclosures 
Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Financial Institution to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to 
manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as 
strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of 
managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The Financial 
Institution has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance.  



lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

78 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

ii) Quantitative Disclosures 
1. Capital Structure and Capital adequacy 

 Tier 1 capital and breakdown of its components 
Particulars Amount (Rs.) 
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 2,612,079,750 
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - 
Share Premium 510,111 
Irredeemable Preference Share - 
Statutory General Reserve 1,224,440,023 
Retained Earnings (136,573,150) 
Capital Redemption Reserve - 
Capital Adjustment Fund - 
Calls in Advance - 
Other Free Reserves - 
Deductions 326,459,276 
a. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 891,077 
b. Deferred Tax Assets 303,651,708 
c. Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits - 
d. Investment to the company having financial interest - 
e. Fictitious assets - 
f. Investment on land and building for self-use not complying the Directives of NRB 21,916,490 
g. Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits - 
h. Underwriting shares not sold within stipulated time - 
i. Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws  - 
Total Tier 1 Capital 3,373,997,459 

 
 Tier 2 capital and breakdown of its components 
Particulars Amount (Rs.) 
Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan   468,944,303 
Additional loan loss provision  - 
Hybrid capital instruments  - 
Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt  - 
Exchange Equalization Fund  709,566 
Asset revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added automatically)  - 
Investment adjustment Fund  1,510,000 
Total Tier 2 Capital 471,163,869 
 Detailed Information about Subordinated Term Debts  

The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated term debts. 
 Total qualifying capital 

Total Tier 1 Capital 3,373,997,459 
Total Tier 2 Capital 471,163,869 
Total Qualifying Capital 3,845,161,328 

 
 Capital Adequacy Ratio 

Core Capital Ratio 11.87% 
Capital Adequacy Ratio 13.53% 

  
 
 
 
 

 Risk Weighted Exposures 
Particulars Weight 

(%) 
Amount (Rs.) RWA 

A. On-Balance Sheet Items    
Cash Balance 0 52,920,768  -    
NRB Balance 0 576,720,625  -    
Investment to Govt. Bond 0 191,042,557  -    
Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0 -  -    
Balance on domestic banks and financial 
institutions 

20 660,725,159  132,145,032  

Money at call 20 1,812,380,522  362,476,104  
Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 3,510,000  3,510,000  
Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 26,749,597,826  26,749,597,826  
Fixed assets 100 231,998,067  231,998,067  
Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 324,081,735  324,081,735  
Total of On-Balance Sheet Items (A)  30,602,977,259 27,803,808,764 
B. Off-Balance Sheet Items    
Off-Balance-sheet Items 100 4,998,540  4,998,540  
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 100 612,059,545  612,059,545  
Total of Off-Balance Sheet Items (B)  617,058,085 617,058,085 
Total Risk Weighted Exposure (A+B)  31,220,035,344 28,420,866,849 

 
iii) Compliance with external requirement 

"The Financial Institution has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and 
there are no such consequence where the institution has not complied with those requirement." 

 
5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The summary of 
significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and 
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of 
the financial instruments by category as defined in NAS 39. 
 

Particulars FVTPL Amortized Cost Measured at 
FVTOCI 

Total 

Financial Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 2,076,026,449 - 2,076,026,449 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 576,720,625 - 576,720,625 
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions - 450,000,000 - 450,000,000 
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - - 
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - - - 
Loans and Advances to Customers - 24,126,806,408 - 24,126,806,408 
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through PL - - - - 
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through OCI - - - - 
Financial Investments - Measured at Amortized Cost - 191,042,557 - 191,042,557 
Other Financial Assets - - - - 
Total Financial Assets - 27,420,596,039 - 27,420,596,039 
Financial Liabilities     
Due From Customers - 20,185,243,809 - 20,185,243,809 
Other Financial Liabilities - 2,870,613,904 - 2,870,613,904 
Other Liabilities - - - - 
Total Financial Liabilities - 23,055,857,713 - 23,055,857,713 
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ii) Quantitative Disclosures 
1. Capital Structure and Capital adequacy 

 Tier 1 capital and breakdown of its components 
Particulars Amount (Rs.) 
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 2,612,079,750 
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - 
Share Premium 510,111 
Irredeemable Preference Share - 
Statutory General Reserve 1,224,440,023 
Retained Earnings (136,573,150) 
Capital Redemption Reserve - 
Capital Adjustment Fund - 
Calls in Advance - 
Other Free Reserves - 
Deductions 326,459,276 
a. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 891,077 
b. Deferred Tax Assets 303,651,708 
c. Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits - 
d. Investment to the company having financial interest - 
e. Fictitious assets - 
f. Investment on land and building for self-use not complying the Directives of NRB 21,916,490 
g. Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits - 
h. Underwriting shares not sold within stipulated time - 
i. Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws  - 
Total Tier 1 Capital 3,373,997,459 

 
 Tier 2 capital and breakdown of its components 
Particulars Amount (Rs.) 
Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan   468,944,303 
Additional loan loss provision  - 
Hybrid capital instruments  - 
Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt  - 
Exchange Equalization Fund  709,566 
Asset revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added automatically)  - 
Investment adjustment Fund  1,510,000 
Total Tier 2 Capital 471,163,869 
 Detailed Information about Subordinated Term Debts  

The Financial Institution does not have any subordinated term debts. 
 Total qualifying capital 

Total Tier 1 Capital 3,373,997,459 
Total Tier 2 Capital 471,163,869 
Total Qualifying Capital 3,845,161,328 

 
 Capital Adequacy Ratio 

Core Capital Ratio 11.87% 
Capital Adequacy Ratio 13.53% 

  
 
 
 
 

 Risk Weighted Exposures 
Particulars Weight 

(%) 
Amount (Rs.) RWA 

A. On-Balance Sheet Items    
Cash Balance 0 52,920,768  -    
NRB Balance 0 576,720,625  -    
Investment to Govt. Bond 0 191,042,557  -    
Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0 -  -    
Balance on domestic banks and financial 
institutions 

20 660,725,159  132,145,032  

Money at call 20 1,812,380,522  362,476,104  
Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 3,510,000  3,510,000  
Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 26,749,597,826  26,749,597,826  
Fixed assets 100 231,998,067  231,998,067  
Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 324,081,735  324,081,735  
Total of On-Balance Sheet Items (A)  30,602,977,259 27,803,808,764 
B. Off-Balance Sheet Items    
Off-Balance-sheet Items 100 4,998,540  4,998,540  
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 100 612,059,545  612,059,545  
Total of Off-Balance Sheet Items (B)  617,058,085 617,058,085 
Total Risk Weighted Exposure (A+B)  31,220,035,344 28,420,866,849 

 
iii) Compliance with external requirement 

"The Financial Institution has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and 
there are no such consequence where the institution has not complied with those requirement." 

 
5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The summary of 
significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and 
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of 
the financial instruments by category as defined in NAS 39. 
 

Particulars FVTPL Amortized Cost Measured at 
FVTOCI 

Total 

Financial Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 2,076,026,449 - 2,076,026,449 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 576,720,625 - 576,720,625 
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions - 450,000,000 - 450,000,000 
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - - 
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - - - 
Loans and Advances to Customers - 24,126,806,408 - 24,126,806,408 
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through PL - - - - 
Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through OCI - - - - 
Financial Investments - Measured at Amortized Cost - 191,042,557 - 191,042,557 
Other Financial Assets - - - - 
Total Financial Assets - 27,420,596,039 - 27,420,596,039 
Financial Liabilities     
Due From Customers - 20,185,243,809 - 20,185,243,809 
Other Financial Liabilities - 2,870,613,904 - 2,870,613,904 
Other Liabilities - - - - 
Total Financial Liabilities - 23,055,857,713 - 23,055,857,713 
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5.4 Operating Segment Information 
1. General Information 
(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments 
The Financial Institution’s operation is provincially decentralized and duly managed. However strategic and financial 
policies are monitored and directed from the Head Office. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in 
line with the accounting policies of the Company, NFRS 8 ‘Segment Reporting” and Unified Directives to Microfinance, 
2079 as issued by NRB.  
 
i) Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment based on relationship to operating activities of the segment. 
Revenue and Expenses which relates to the Institution as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis 
have been disclosed as “Unallocated”.  
 
ii) Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax-related 
assets, and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as 
“Unallocated”.  
 
iii) Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold as defined in NFRS 8 have been aggregated under the 
Other Segments. Operating segments not meeting the quantitative threshold and still considered reportable by the 
management have been disclosed separately. Aggregation is consistent with the core principle of NFRS.    
 
(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues 
Each segment provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance services to low-
income families of Nepal. The above mentioned are the main source of revenue for each operating segment.  
 
2. Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities  

 
 

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities  
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.  

Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the 
respective segment. Equity and Tax Expense are not allocated to the individual segments. For segmentation 
purpose, all business transactions of offices and business units located in a particular province are grouped 
together. 

 
(b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ profits or losses and the 

entity’s profit or loss before income tax.  
None 

 

Particulars Koshi Madhesh Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Karnali Sudur Paschhim Other Total
Revenues from external customers 443,617,585          1,221,832,839   552,848,859      208,090,319      1,131,193,724   237,062,578      392,437,503         948,479,261      5,135,562,666      
Intersegment revenues
Net Revenue 443,617,585          1,221,832,839   552,848,859      208,090,319      1,131,193,724   237,062,578      392,437,503         948,479,261      5,135,562,666      
Interest Revenue 387,826,236          1,076,151,003   465,611,188      150,516,045      906,997,829      200,895,079      334,780,085         320,517,638      3,843,295,104      
Interest Expense 139,092,743          380,625,388      208,091,757      93,038,022        487,637,892      95,331,992        155,233,192         365,961,465      1,925,012,451      
Net Interest Revenue 248,733,493          695,525,615      257,519,431      57,478,022        419,359,937      105,563,087      179,546,894         (45,443,827)       1,918,282,652      
Depreciation and Amortization 3,611,541              9,588,138          5,638,290          2,414,034          12,432,106        2,475,688          3,968,799             13,869,454        53,998,050           
Segment Profit / (Loss) 105,314,652          223,361,163      89,906,050        53,139,970        226,649,559      62,074,714        71,038,351           (565,235,899)     266,248,560         
Other material non-cash items: -                        
Loan Loss Provisions Expenses 670,750                 99,706,088        50,005,171        (2,545,706)         101,995,282      (2,006,131)         27,129,620           158,505,436      433,460,509         
Goodwill Amortization -                        
Others Intangible Assets Amortization -                        
Impairment of Assets -                        
Segment Assets 1,893,412,940       5,026,746,787   2,955,970,557   1,265,598,948   6,517,746,296   1,297,922,280   2,080,711,109      7,271,300,355   28,309,409,271    
Segment Liabilities 1,788,098,288       4,803,385,624   2,866,064,507   1,212,458,978   6,291,096,737   1,235,847,566   2,009,672,757      3,147,172,962   23,353,797,419    

(c) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ assets and the entity’s 
asset. 
None 

 
(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment 

profit or loss and the effect, if any, and  
None 

 
(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments. 

None 
 

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities 

a) Revenue 

Total revenues from reportable segment  4,187,083,405 
Other Revenues  948,479,261  
Elimination of intersegment revenues - 
Entity's Revenue 5,135,562,666 

  

b) Profit or Loss 

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 831,484,459 
Other profit or loss - 
Elimination of intersegment profits - 
Unallocated amounts (565,235,899) 
Profit before income tax 266,248,560 

 

c) Assets 

Total assets for reportable segments 21,038,108,916 
Other Assets - 
Unallocated amounts 7,271,300,355 
Entity's assets 28,309,409,271 

 

d) Liabilities 

Total Liabilities for reportable segments 20,206,624,457 
Other Liabilities - 
Unallocated Liabilities 3,147,172,962 
Entity's liabilities 23,353,797,419 

 
5. Information about product and services 

Revenue from each type of product and services  
(a) Microfinance Related Services 5,135,562,666 
(b) Others - 
Total 5,135,562,666 
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5.4 Operating Segment Information 
1. General Information 
(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments 
The Financial Institution’s operation is provincially decentralized and duly managed. However strategic and financial 
policies are monitored and directed from the Head Office. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in 
line with the accounting policies of the Company, NFRS 8 ‘Segment Reporting” and Unified Directives to Microfinance, 
2079 as issued by NRB.  
 
i) Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment based on relationship to operating activities of the segment. 
Revenue and Expenses which relates to the Institution as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis 
have been disclosed as “Unallocated”.  
 
ii) Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax-related 
assets, and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on a reasonable basis have been disclosed as 
“Unallocated”.  
 
iii) Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold as defined in NFRS 8 have been aggregated under the 
Other Segments. Operating segments not meeting the quantitative threshold and still considered reportable by the 
management have been disclosed separately. Aggregation is consistent with the core principle of NFRS.    
 
(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues 
Each segment provides microfinance services such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-Insurance, and Remittance services to low-
income families of Nepal. The above mentioned are the main source of revenue for each operating segment.  
 
2. Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities  

 
 

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities  
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.  

Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported under the 
respective segment. Equity and Tax Expense are not allocated to the individual segments. For segmentation 
purpose, all business transactions of offices and business units located in a particular province are grouped 
together. 

 
(b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ profits or losses and the 

entity’s profit or loss before income tax.  
None 

 

Particulars Koshi Madhesh Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Karnali Sudur Paschhim Other Total
Revenues from external customers 443,617,585          1,221,832,839   552,848,859      208,090,319      1,131,193,724   237,062,578      392,437,503         948,479,261      5,135,562,666      
Intersegment revenues
Net Revenue 443,617,585          1,221,832,839   552,848,859      208,090,319      1,131,193,724   237,062,578      392,437,503         948,479,261      5,135,562,666      
Interest Revenue 387,826,236          1,076,151,003   465,611,188      150,516,045      906,997,829      200,895,079      334,780,085         320,517,638      3,843,295,104      
Interest Expense 139,092,743          380,625,388      208,091,757      93,038,022        487,637,892      95,331,992        155,233,192         365,961,465      1,925,012,451      
Net Interest Revenue 248,733,493          695,525,615      257,519,431      57,478,022        419,359,937      105,563,087      179,546,894         (45,443,827)       1,918,282,652      
Depreciation and Amortization 3,611,541              9,588,138          5,638,290          2,414,034          12,432,106        2,475,688          3,968,799             13,869,454        53,998,050           
Segment Profit / (Loss) 105,314,652          223,361,163      89,906,050        53,139,970        226,649,559      62,074,714        71,038,351           (565,235,899)     266,248,560         
Other material non-cash items: -                        
Loan Loss Provisions Expenses 670,750                 99,706,088        50,005,171        (2,545,706)         101,995,282      (2,006,131)         27,129,620           158,505,436      433,460,509         
Goodwill Amortization -                        
Others Intangible Assets Amortization -                        
Impairment of Assets -                        
Segment Assets 1,893,412,940       5,026,746,787   2,955,970,557   1,265,598,948   6,517,746,296   1,297,922,280   2,080,711,109      7,271,300,355   28,309,409,271    
Segment Liabilities 1,788,098,288       4,803,385,624   2,866,064,507   1,212,458,978   6,291,096,737   1,235,847,566   2,009,672,757      3,147,172,962   23,353,797,419    

(c) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ assets and the entity’s 
asset. 
None 

 
(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment 

profit or loss and the effect, if any, and  
None 

 
(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments. 

None 
 

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities 

a) Revenue 

Total revenues from reportable segment  4,187,083,405 
Other Revenues  948,479,261  
Elimination of intersegment revenues - 
Entity's Revenue 5,135,562,666 

  

b) Profit or Loss 

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 831,484,459 
Other profit or loss - 
Elimination of intersegment profits - 
Unallocated amounts (565,235,899) 
Profit before income tax 266,248,560 

 

c) Assets 

Total assets for reportable segments 21,038,108,916 
Other Assets - 
Unallocated amounts 7,271,300,355 
Entity's assets 28,309,409,271 

 

d) Liabilities 

Total Liabilities for reportable segments 20,206,624,457 
Other Liabilities - 
Unallocated Liabilities 3,147,172,962 
Entity's liabilities 23,353,797,419 

 
5. Information about product and services 

Revenue from each type of product and services  
(a) Microfinance Related Services 5,135,562,666 
(b) Others - 
Total 5,135,562,666 
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6. Information about geographical areas 
 

Revenue from following geographical areas  
(A)Domestic  
(a) Koshi Province  443,617,585  
(b) Madhesh Province  1,221,832,839  
(c) Bagmati Province  552,848,859  
(d) Gandaki Province  208,090,319  
(e) Lumbini Province  1,131,193,724  
(f) Karnali Province  237,062,578  
(g) Sudur Paschim Province  392,437,503  
(h) Others  948,479,261  
(B)Foreign - 
Total 5,135,562,666 

 
 
7. Information about major customers 

Disclosure related to major customers is not applicable as no revenue from a single external customer amount to 10 
percent or more of the entity's revenue. 

 
5.5 Share options and share based payment  
       Not Applicable. 

 
5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment 
The Standard defines a contingent liability as: 
 A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity: or 
 A present obligation that arises from events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or 
 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. An entity should not recognize a 

contingent liability. An entity should disclose a contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. 

 
Details of contingent liability are as follows: 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Contingent liabilities - - 
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - 
Capital commitment - - 
Lease Commitment - - 
Litigation 4,998,540.00 4,998,540.00 
Others - - 
Total 4,998,540.00 4,998,540.00 

Amount of NPR 49,98,540/- disclosed as contingent liabilities relates to an unresolved matter with the Income Tax 
Department. The Income Tax Department has not provided sufficient evidence to validate the claim. Based on advice 
from our Legal Advisor, this liability is deemed not payable due to the lack of substantiating documentation from the 
Income Tax Department. No provision has been recognized in the financial statements for this amount, as management 
believes there is a low probability of an outflow of resources.  

 

 

 
5.7 Related Party Disclosures 
In the ordinary course of its business operation the Institution has conducted commercial transactions with parties who are 
defined as related parties in NAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”. All those transactions were conducted on an arm’s length 
price basis. 

5.7.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities The chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 8,000 /-
and NPR 7,000/- respectively per meeting.  

The Board of Directors (BOD) has been paid total meeting fees of NPR 9,37,000 during the reportable financial year. The 
BOD had held total of fourteen Board Meetings during the period. 

The meeting fees paid to different Board Level Committees are as follows: 

Board Level Committees No. of Meetings Meeting Allowances (NPR) 
Audit Committee 7 91,000 
Risk Management Committee 8 112,000 
Human Resource Committee 3 21,000 
AML Committee 4 28,000 
Other Committee (Investigation) 4 42,000 
Total 26 294,000 

 

While conducting Board Meetings, the following Board Meeting Expenses has been incurred: 

S. No Particulars Amount (NPR) 
1 Communication Expenses 109,500 
2 Bus & Air Fare Expenses 121,233 
3 Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses 125,906 
Total   356,639 

 

5.7.2 Loans and Advances extended to Promoters 

There are no such benefits extended to Promoters. 

5.7.3 Disclosure of a classified list of all related parties 

Followings have been identified as related parties for “Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited”, under NAS 
24 “Related Party Disclosures”: 

KMP  Position  
Mr. Mukesh Dahal Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya Act. Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Jagya Prasad Panta Company Secretary 

 

Where the Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) 
of that entity. KMP includes Managing Director, Whole time Directors, Chief Finance Officer and Company Secretary. 
While identifying related party relationship attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the 
legal form.  
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6. Information about geographical areas 
 

Revenue from following geographical areas  
(A)Domestic  
(a) Koshi Province  443,617,585  
(b) Madhesh Province  1,221,832,839  
(c) Bagmati Province  552,848,859  
(d) Gandaki Province  208,090,319  
(e) Lumbini Province  1,131,193,724  
(f) Karnali Province  237,062,578  
(g) Sudur Paschim Province  392,437,503  
(h) Others  948,479,261  
(B)Foreign - 
Total 5,135,562,666 

 
 
7. Information about major customers 

Disclosure related to major customers is not applicable as no revenue from a single external customer amount to 10 
percent or more of the entity's revenue. 

 
5.5 Share options and share based payment  
       Not Applicable. 

 
5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment 
The Standard defines a contingent liability as: 
 A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity: or 
 A present obligation that arises from events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or 
 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. An entity should not recognize a 

contingent liability. An entity should disclose a contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. 

 
Details of contingent liability are as follows: 
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Contingent liabilities - - 
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - 
Capital commitment - - 
Lease Commitment - - 
Litigation 4,998,540.00 4,998,540.00 
Others - - 
Total 4,998,540.00 4,998,540.00 

Amount of NPR 49,98,540/- disclosed as contingent liabilities relates to an unresolved matter with the Income Tax 
Department. The Income Tax Department has not provided sufficient evidence to validate the claim. Based on advice 
from our Legal Advisor, this liability is deemed not payable due to the lack of substantiating documentation from the 
Income Tax Department. No provision has been recognized in the financial statements for this amount, as management 
believes there is a low probability of an outflow of resources.  

 

 

 
5.7 Related Party Disclosures 
In the ordinary course of its business operation the Institution has conducted commercial transactions with parties who are 
defined as related parties in NAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”. All those transactions were conducted on an arm’s length 
price basis. 

5.7.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities The chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 8,000 /-
and NPR 7,000/- respectively per meeting.  

The Board of Directors (BOD) has been paid total meeting fees of NPR 9,37,000 during the reportable financial year. The 
BOD had held total of fourteen Board Meetings during the period. 

The meeting fees paid to different Board Level Committees are as follows: 

Board Level Committees No. of Meetings Meeting Allowances (NPR) 
Audit Committee 7 91,000 
Risk Management Committee 8 112,000 
Human Resource Committee 3 21,000 
AML Committee 4 28,000 
Other Committee (Investigation) 4 42,000 
Total 26 294,000 

 

While conducting Board Meetings, the following Board Meeting Expenses has been incurred: 

S. No Particulars Amount (NPR) 
1 Communication Expenses 109,500 
2 Bus & Air Fare Expenses 121,233 
3 Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses 125,906 
Total   356,639 

 

5.7.2 Loans and Advances extended to Promoters 

There are no such benefits extended to Promoters. 

5.7.3 Disclosure of a classified list of all related parties 

Followings have been identified as related parties for “Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited”, under NAS 
24 “Related Party Disclosures”: 

KMP  Position  
Mr. Mukesh Dahal Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya Act. Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Jagya Prasad Panta Company Secretary 

 

Where the Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) 
of that entity. KMP includes Managing Director, Whole time Directors, Chief Finance Officer and Company Secretary. 
While identifying related party relationship attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the 
legal form.  
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5.7.4 Compensation details for Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Key Management Personnel includes members of the Executive Committee of the Institution. 

Particulars Amount 
Short-term employee benefits 8,207,910 
Post-employment benefits 12,524,861 
Other long-term benefits 1,474,608 
Termination benefits - 
Share-based payment - 
Total  22,027,379 

 

 

The salary and benefits paid to Key Management Personnel other than directors are as follows: 

Name Position Basic 
Salary 

Provident 
Fund 

Allowance Bonus & 
welfare 

Other 
Perquisites 

Total 
Income 

Mr. Mukesh Dahal   CEO 1,351,377 135,138 1,112,556 0 159,452 2,758,523 

Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki   AGM 913,779 91,378 815,744 0 98,262 1,919,163 

Mr. Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya Act. AGM 911,712 91,171 715,047 0 321,511 2,039,441 

Mr. Jagya Prasad Panta Company 
Secretary 

731,436 73,144 674,243 0 141,890 1,620,713 

 

Key Management Personnel are also provided with the following benefits: 
i. Benefits as per the Employee Terms of Service By-Laws, 

ii. Bonus to the staff as per The Bonus Act, 
iii. Vehicle Fuel Expenses as per Institution’s Staff Vehicle Scheme. 

 

Existing members of Executive Committee include: 

Name Positions Held As/In 
Mr. Mukesh Dahal Chief Executive Officer HR Committee, AML Committee 
Mr. Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Board Member AML Committee 
Mr. Niraj Kumar Basnet Danil Board Member Risk Committee 
Mr. Krishna Kumar Pradhan Board Member Audit Committee, Risk Committee 
Ms Samrita Tiwari Board Member Audit Committee 
Mr. Devendra Bahadur Raut Board Member HR Committee 
Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki Assistant General Manager Risk Committee, AML Committee 
Mr. Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya Act. Assistant General Manager HR Committee 
Mr. Narayan Prasad Neupane Head of Department HR Committee 
Mr. Laxmipati Kafle Head of Department Audit Committee 
Mr. Jagya Prashad Pant Head of Department Company Secretary, Risk Committee, AML 

Committee 
 

5.7.5 Transactions with Subsidiary and Associates Companies. 

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not 
control over those policies. As per NAS 28 “Investments in Associates & Joint Ventures”, while computing significant 
influence potential voting power is taken into account. Existence of significant influence is evidenced by the existence of 
one or more of the following: 

i. Representation in the Board of Directors; 
ii. Participation in the policy making process including dividend distribution and other appropriation of profit; 

iii. Material transaction between the investor and the investee; 
iv. Interchange of managerial personnel; and 
v. Provision for essential managerial transaction. 

By virtue of representation in the Board of Directors of Nepal Finsoft Company Limited, the Institution has significant 
influence in the Board of Directors of the said entity. But no any financial transactions has been executed during the year. 

Additional Disclosures: 

Statement of Profit or Loss 

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties 
2080-81 2079-80 

Interest Income - - 
Interest Expenses 133,892,888 304,550,200 
Other Income - - 
Other Expenses - - 
Dividend Income(net) - - 

 

Statement of Financial Position 

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties 
2080-81 2079-80 

Total Assets 1,140,575,000 1,543,791,739 
Loans and Advances 1,140,575,000 1,543,791,739 
Other Receivables - - 
Total Liabilities - - 
Customer Deposits - - 
Other Payables - - 

 

Commitments and Contingencies 

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties 
2080-81 2079-80 

Undrawn Credit Limits - - 
Other Contingencies - - 
Total - - 

 

5.8 Collective Impairment Disclosure 
 

Particulars Collateral Loan Collateral Free Total Impairment 
PD 5.62% 4.75% 

 

LGD 10.66% 100% 
EAD 4,720,749,505 21,085,627,902 
Impairment 28,289,189 1,002,420,418 1,030,709,607 

 
Since impairment as per Loss Incurred Model is lower than impairment prescribed by NRB, effect of impairment as 
prescribed by NRB has been considered.  
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5.7.4 Compensation details for Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Key Management Personnel includes members of the Executive Committee of the Institution. 

Particulars Amount 
Short-term employee benefits 8,207,910 
Post-employment benefits 12,524,861 
Other long-term benefits 1,474,608 
Termination benefits - 
Share-based payment - 
Total  22,027,379 

 

 

The salary and benefits paid to Key Management Personnel other than directors are as follows: 

Name Position Basic 
Salary 

Provident 
Fund 

Allowance Bonus & 
welfare 

Other 
Perquisites 

Total 
Income 

Mr. Mukesh Dahal   CEO 1,351,377 135,138 1,112,556 0 159,452 2,758,523 

Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki   AGM 913,779 91,378 815,744 0 98,262 1,919,163 

Mr. Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya Act. AGM 911,712 91,171 715,047 0 321,511 2,039,441 

Mr. Jagya Prasad Panta Company 
Secretary 

731,436 73,144 674,243 0 141,890 1,620,713 

 

Key Management Personnel are also provided with the following benefits: 
i. Benefits as per the Employee Terms of Service By-Laws, 

ii. Bonus to the staff as per The Bonus Act, 
iii. Vehicle Fuel Expenses as per Institution’s Staff Vehicle Scheme. 

 

Existing members of Executive Committee include: 

Name Positions Held As/In 
Mr. Mukesh Dahal Chief Executive Officer HR Committee, AML Committee 
Mr. Top Bahadur Rayamajhi Board Member AML Committee 
Mr. Niraj Kumar Basnet Danil Board Member Risk Committee 
Mr. Krishna Kumar Pradhan Board Member Audit Committee, Risk Committee 
Ms Samrita Tiwari Board Member Audit Committee 
Mr. Devendra Bahadur Raut Board Member HR Committee 
Mr. Narayan Bahadur Karki Assistant General Manager Risk Committee, AML Committee 
Mr. Gokarna Prasad Upadhaya Act. Assistant General Manager HR Committee 
Mr. Narayan Prasad Neupane Head of Department HR Committee 
Mr. Laxmipati Kafle Head of Department Audit Committee 
Mr. Jagya Prashad Pant Head of Department Company Secretary, Risk Committee, AML 

Committee 
 

5.7.5 Transactions with Subsidiary and Associates Companies. 

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not 
control over those policies. As per NAS 28 “Investments in Associates & Joint Ventures”, while computing significant 
influence potential voting power is taken into account. Existence of significant influence is evidenced by the existence of 
one or more of the following: 

i. Representation in the Board of Directors; 
ii. Participation in the policy making process including dividend distribution and other appropriation of profit; 

iii. Material transaction between the investor and the investee; 
iv. Interchange of managerial personnel; and 
v. Provision for essential managerial transaction. 

By virtue of representation in the Board of Directors of Nepal Finsoft Company Limited, the Institution has significant 
influence in the Board of Directors of the said entity. But no any financial transactions has been executed during the year. 

Additional Disclosures: 

Statement of Profit or Loss 

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties 
2080-81 2079-80 

Interest Income - - 
Interest Expenses 133,892,888 304,550,200 
Other Income - - 
Other Expenses - - 
Dividend Income(net) - - 

 

Statement of Financial Position 

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties 
2080-81 2079-80 

Total Assets 1,140,575,000 1,543,791,739 
Loans and Advances 1,140,575,000 1,543,791,739 
Other Receivables - - 
Total Liabilities - - 
Customer Deposits - - 
Other Payables - - 

 

Commitments and Contingencies 

Particulars Transaction with Related Parties 
2080-81 2079-80 

Undrawn Credit Limits - - 
Other Contingencies - - 
Total - - 

 

5.8 Collective Impairment Disclosure 
 

Particulars Collateral Loan Collateral Free Total Impairment 
PD 5.62% 4.75% 

 

LGD 10.66% 100% 
EAD 4,720,749,505 21,085,627,902 
Impairment 28,289,189 1,002,420,418 1,030,709,607 

 
Since impairment as per Loss Incurred Model is lower than impairment prescribed by NRB, effect of impairment as 
prescribed by NRB has been considered.  
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5.9 Other Additional Disclosure 
1. Out of the collected service charge amounting to Rs. 309,705,161, amount of Rs. 26,260,583 has been refunded 

to customer Accounts during FY 2080-81 and Rs. 108,171,640 has remained refundable for FY 2080-81. 
2. Right-of-use asset of Rs. 101,639,673 and corresponding lease liability of Rs. 105,728,259 has been presented as 

per NFRS 16. Consequently, depreciation amounting Rs. 35,844,393 on right-of-use asset and finance cost 
amounting Rs. 13,082,359 on lease liability is charged to statement of profit and loss. 

3. We do not have any pending legal cases effecting probable future cash flows other than contingent liabilities 
disclosed in of Financial Statements. 

4. Accounts receivable includes an amount of NPR 14,578,202 related to staff fraud identified in FY 2076-77. The 
same amount has already been provisioned in Books of Account and shown in Schedule 4.20. The organization 
has initiated legal proceedings against the individuals involved to recover the outstanding balance. Management 
continues to pursue all possible legal actions to reclaim the amount, and an assessment of recoverability is 
ongoing.  

 
 
 

5.10  Merger and acquisition 
The Financial Institution has not entered into any merger and acquisition activities in the reporting period and in the 
comparative previous period. 

 
5.11  Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities 

The Financial Institution does not have any non-consolidated entities to report for the reporting period and in the 
comparative previous period. 
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5.9 Other Additional Disclosure 
1. Out of the collected service charge amounting to Rs. 309,705,161, amount of Rs. 26,260,583 has been refunded 

to customer Accounts during FY 2080-81 and Rs. 108,171,640 has remained refundable for FY 2080-81. 
2. Right-of-use asset of Rs. 101,639,673 and corresponding lease liability of Rs. 105,728,259 has been presented as 

per NFRS 16. Consequently, depreciation amounting Rs. 35,844,393 on right-of-use asset and finance cost 
amounting Rs. 13,082,359 on lease liability is charged to statement of profit and loss. 

3. We do not have any pending legal cases effecting probable future cash flows other than contingent liabilities 
disclosed in of Financial Statements. 

4. Accounts receivable includes an amount of NPR 14,578,202 related to staff fraud identified in FY 2076-77. The 
same amount has already been provisioned in Books of Account and shown in Schedule 4.20. The organization 
has initiated legal proceedings against the individuals involved to recover the outstanding balance. Management 
continues to pursue all possible legal actions to reclaim the amount, and an assessment of recoverability is 
ongoing.  

 
 
 

5.10  Merger and acquisition 
The Financial Institution has not entered into any merger and acquisition activities in the reporting period and in the 
comparative previous period. 

 
5.11  Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities 

The Financial Institution does not have any non-consolidated entities to report for the reporting period and in the 
comparative previous period. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements 

As on 31 Ashad 2081  
 

 

Statement of Financial Position As per Unaudited As per Audited Reasons for Variance
Assets Financial Statement Financial Statement In Amount In %
Cash and Cash equivalent 2,532,519,381                      2,076,026,449                      (456,492,932)                -18.03% Regrouping and rectification of error
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 577,763,183                         576,720,625                         (1,042,558)                    -0.18% Regroupingand reclassification
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions -                                       450,000,000                         450,000,000                  0.00% Regroupingand reclassification
Derivative Financial Instruments -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Other Trading Assets -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Loans and Advances to Customers 23,935,632,122                     24,126,806,408                     191,174,286                  0.80% Change in Impairment Calculation
Investment Securities 193,510,000                         194,552,557                         1,042,557                     0.54% Regrouping and reclassification
Current Tax Assets 238,286,347                         24,680,645                           (213,605,702)                -89.64% Change in estimations.
Investment Property -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Property and Equipment 258,802,232                         231,998,067                         (26,804,165)                  -10.36% Regrouping of Intangible Assets and Rectification of error in Calculation of depreciation 
Goodwill and Intangible assets -                                       891,077                                891,077                        0.00% Regrouping of Intangible Assets
Deferred Tax Assets 416,371,747                         303,651,708                         (112,720,039)                -27.07% Change in estimations.
Other Assets 336,061,695                         324,081,735                         (11,979,960)                  -3.56% NFRS treatment of Staff Loans,Change in Classification and regrouping.
Total Assets 28,488,946,707                   28,309,409,271                   (179,537,436)               
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Derivative Financial Instrument -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Deposits from Customers 20,184,613,057                     20,185,243,809                     630,752                        0.00% Rectification of error
Borrowing 2,870,613,904                      2,870,613,904                      0                                  0.00%
Current Tax Liabilities -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Provisions 14,578,202                           14,590,860                           12,658                          0.09% Change in estimations.
Deferred Tax Liabilities -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Other Liabilities 231,172,711                         283,348,846                         52,176,135                    22.57% NFRS treatment of Lease,Acturial Valuation and Re-Grouping.
Debt Securities Issued -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Subordinated Liabilities -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Total Liabilities 23,300,977,874                   23,353,797,419                   52,819,545                  
Equity
Share Capital 2,612,079,750                      2,612,079,750                      -                               0.00%
Share Premium 510,111                                510,111                                -                               0.00%
Retained Earnings 148,951,010                         (136,573,150)                        (285,524,160)                -191.69% Change in Profit and NFRS Treatment
Reserves 2,426,427,962                      2,479,595,140                      53,167,178                    2.19% Change in Profit,rectifiction of error and Change in Regulatory Reserve
Total Equity 5,187,968,833                     4,955,611,852                     (232,356,981)               
Total Liabilities and Equity 28,488,946,707                   28,309,409,271                   (179,537,436)               
Interest Income 3,717,074,675                      3,843,295,104                      126,220,429                  3.40% Accrued Interest recognised,Interest income from Staff loan and due to some adjustment made in interest income
Interest Expense 1,911,187,795                      1,925,012,451                      13,824,656                    0.72% Regrouping of Finance cost of Lease Liability
Net Interest Income 1,805,886,880                     1,918,282,652                     112,395,772                  6.22%
Fee and Commission Income 434,836,834                         348,009,076                         (86,827,758)                  -19.97% Missed Accounting Entry Entered
Fee and Commission Expense 1,809,783                             1,809,783                             (0)                                 0.00%
Net Fee and Commission Income 433,027,051                        346,199,294                        (86,827,758)                  -20.05%
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 2,238,913,931                     2,264,481,946                     25,568,015                    1.14%
Net Trading Income -                                       -                                       -                               0.00%
Other Operating Income -                                       9,359,370                             9,359,370                     0.00% Missed Accounting Entry Entered
Total Operating Income 2,238,913,931                     2,273,841,316                     34,927,385                    1.56%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 430,616,535                         433,460,509                         2,843,974                     0.66%
Net Operating Income 1,808,297,396                     1,840,380,807                     32,083,411                  1.77%
Operating Expense 0.00%
Personnel Expenses 956,315,490                         927,595,290                         (28,720,200)                  -3.00% NFRS Treatment of Staff Loans , Acturial Valuation,Change in Employee Bonus Calculation and Regrouping
Other Operating Expenses 118,414,432                         73,830,915                           (44,583,517)                  -37.65% Regrouping and rectification of error
Depreciation & Amortization 15,669,827                           53,998,050                           38,328,223                    244.60% Rectification of error in Depreciation and Depreciation of ROU Assets
Operating Profit 717,897,647                        784,956,552                        67,058,905                  9.34%
Non Operating Income 5,629,377                             21,354,839                           15,725,462                    279.35%
Non Operating Expense -                                       -                                       -                               
Profit before Income Tax 723,527,024                        806,311,391                        82,784,367                  11.44%
Income Tax Expense 217,060,577                        540,062,831                        323,002,254                148.81%

Current Tax 217,060,577                         430,987,314                         213,926,737                  98.56% Change in estimations.
Deferred Tax -                                       109,075,517                         109,075,517                  100.00% Change in estimations.

Profit for the year 506,466,447                        266,248,560                        (240,217,887)               
Profit attributable to : -                                       -                               
Equity holders of the Financial Institution 506,466,447                         266,248,560                         (240,217,887)                -47.43%
Profit for the year 506,466,447                        266,248,560                        (240,217,887)               

        Variance
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Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

Principal Indicators 

S.No. Particulars Indicators 2080-81 2079-80 2078-79 2077-78 2076-77 

1 Net Profit/Total Income % 6.31 4.14 17.75 
              

28.06  
                

7.20  

2 Per Share Earning (after income tax) Rs. 10.19 6.51 34.17 
              

70.14  
              

15.12  

3 Market Price Per Share Rs. 
             

711.90  
             

765.00  
          

1,099.00  
          

1,600.00  
          

1,015.00  

4 Price/Earning Ratio Times 69.84 117.57 32.16 
              

22.81  
              

67.12  

5 Dividend on Share- Bonus Share % 0.00 0.00 19.00 
              

29.50  
              

13.68  

6 Cash Dividend % 0.00 0.00 1.00 
                

1.55  
                

0.68  

7 
Interest Income on Loans & Advances/Total 
Loans & advances % 14.35 14.26 13.96 14.98 16.43 

8 
Employee expenses/Total Operating 
Expenses % 87.89 87.13 87.25 

              
87.11  

              
83.04  

9 Interest expenses on Deposit & Borrowing % 8.35 8.68 7.47 
                

6.17  
                

8.55  

10 Exchange Income/Total Income % 0.00 0.00 - - - 

11 Staff Bonus/Total employee expenses % 0.00 0.00 12.49 
              

19.04  
                

5.38  

12 Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 1.041 0.636 2.709 
                

4.94  
                

1.29  

13 Net Profit/Total Assets % 0.94 0.61 2.53 
              

4.48  
                

1.12  

14 Total Loans & Advances/Total Deposits % 127.85 134.71 152.29 
             

152.20  
             

151.04  

15 Total Operating expenses/Total Assets % 3.73 3.49 3.66 
                

4.08  
                

4.18  

16 Capital Adequacy Ratio:             

  a) Core Capital % 11.87 10.56 12.23 
              

11.36  
              

10.61  

  b) Supplementary Capital %  
                

1.66  
                

1.66  
                

1.40  
                

1.26  
                

1.26  

  c) Total Capital Fund % 13.53 12.22 13.63 
              

12.62  
              

11.87  

17 Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) % 2.86 2.27 2.16 
                

2.24  
                

2.40  

18 
Non-Performing Loans/Total Loans & 
Advances % 10.60 9.87 5.30 

      
4.11  

                
1.83  

19 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 
                

6.00  
                

5.58  
                

6.49  
                

8.81  
                

7.88  

20 Book Net worth  Rs.'000    4,955,611.85     4,691,774.37     4,627,622.07  
   

3,851,807.42  
   

2,656,556.04  

21 Total Shares Number 
  

26,120,797.50    26,120,797.50  
  

21,950,250.00  
  

16,950,000.00  
  

16,950,000.00  

22 Total Employee Number 
          

1,138.00  
          

1,136.00  
          

1,190.00  
          

1,143.00  
          

1,182.00  

 

 

 

19,901 

20,742 

22,179 
22,672 22,738 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Number of Centers

374,535 
379,495 

397,596 

403,686 
399,723 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Number of Active Clients

219,136 221,634 
242,070 

222,309 

187,001 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Number of Loan Clients

11.85 

30.85 
30.25 

21.87 20.98 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Loan Disbursed (NRS. In 
Billion)

20.15 

24.08 

27.69 
25.75 25.81 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Loan Outstanding (NRS. In 
Billion)

13.34 
15.82 18.18 

19.11 20.19 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Savings & Deposits (NRS. In 
Billion)

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

Principal Indicators 

S.No. Particulars Indicators 2080-81 2079-80 2078-79 2077-78 2076-77 

1 Net Profit/Total Income % 6.31 4.14 17.75 
              

28.06  
                

7.20  

2 Per Share Earning (after income tax) Rs. 10.19 6.51 34.17 
              

70.14  
              

15.12  

3 Market Price Per Share Rs. 
             

711.90  
             

765.00  
          

1,099.00  
          

1,600.00  
          

1,015.00  

4 Price/Earning Ratio Times 69.84 117.57 32.16 
              

22.81  
              

67.12  

5 Dividend on Share- Bonus Share % 0.00 0.00 19.00 
              

29.50  
              

13.68  

6 Cash Dividend % 0.00 0.00 1.00 
                

1.55  
                

0.68  

7 
Interest Income on Loans & Advances/Total 
Loans & advances % 14.35 14.26 13.96 14.98 16.43 

8 
Employee expenses/Total Operating 
Expenses % 87.89 87.13 87.25 

              
87.11  

              
83.04  

9 Interest expenses on Deposit & Borrowing % 8.35 8.68 7.47 
                

6.17  
                

8.55  

10 Exchange Income/Total Income % 0.00 0.00 - - - 

11 Staff Bonus/Total employee expenses % 0.00 0.00 12.49 
              

19.04  
                

5.38  

12 Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 1.041 0.636 2.709 
                

4.94  
                

1.29  

13 Net Profit/Total Assets % 0.94 0.61 2.53 
              

4.48  
                

1.12  

14 Total Loans & Advances/Total Deposits % 127.85 134.71 152.29 
             

152.20  
             

151.04  

15 Total Operating expenses/Total Assets % 3.73 3.49 3.66 
                

4.08  
                

4.18  

16 Capital Adequacy Ratio:             

  a) Core Capital % 11.87 10.56 12.23 
              

11.36  
              

10.61  

  b) Supplementary Capital %  
                

1.66  
                

1.66  
                

1.40  
                

1.26  
                

1.26  

  c) Total Capital Fund % 13.53 12.22 13.63 
              

12.62  
              

11.87  

17 Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) % 2.86 2.27 2.16 
                

2.24  
                

2.40  

18 
Non-Performing Loans/Total Loans & 
Advances % 10.60 9.87 5.30 

      
4.11  

                
1.83  

19 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 
                

6.00  
                

5.58  
                

6.49  
                

8.81  
                

7.88  

20 Book Net worth  Rs.'000    4,955,611.85     4,691,774.37     4,627,622.07  
   

3,851,807.42  
   

2,656,556.04  

21 Total Shares Number 
  

26,120,797.50    26,120,797.50  
  

21,950,250.00  
  

16,950,000.00  
  

16,950,000.00  

22 Total Employee Number 
          

1,138.00  
          

1,136.00  
          

1,190.00  
          

1,143.00  
          

1,182.00  

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 

Principal Indicators 

S.No. Particulars Indicators 2080-81 2079-80 2078-79 2077-78 2076-77 

1 Net Profit/Total Income % 6.31 4.14 17.75 
              

28.06  
                

7.20  

2 Per Share Earning (after income tax) Rs. 10.19 6.51 34.17 
              

70.14  
              

15.12  

3 Market Price Per Share Rs. 
             

711.90  
             

765.00  
          

1,099.00  
          

1,600.00  
          

1,015.00  

4 Price/Earning Ratio Times 69.84 117.57 32.16 
              

22.81  
              

67.12  

5 Dividend on Share- Bonus Share % 0.00 0.00 19.00 
              

29.50  
              

13.68  

6 Cash Dividend % 0.00 0.00 1.00 
                

1.55  
                

0.68  

7 
Interest Income on Loans & Advances/Total 
Loans & advances % 14.35 14.26 13.96 14.98 16.43 

8 
Employee expenses/Total Operating 
Expenses % 87.89 87.13 87.25 

              
87.11  

              
83.04  

9 Interest expenses on Deposit & Borrowing % 8.35 8.68 7.47 
                

6.17  
                

8.55  

10 Exchange Income/Total Income % 0.00 0.00 - - - 

11 Staff Bonus/Total employee expenses % 0.00 0.00 12.49 
              

19.04  
                

5.38  

12 Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 1.041 0.636 2.709 
                

4.94  
                

1.29  

13 Net Profit/Total Assets % 0.94 0.61 2.53 
              

4.48  
                

1.12  

14 Total Loans & Advances/Total Deposits % 127.85 134.71 152.29 
             

152.20  
             

151.04  

15 Total Operating expenses/Total Assets % 3.73 3.49 3.66 
                

4.08  
                

4.18  

16 Capital Adequacy Ratio:             

  a) Core Capital % 11.87 10.56 12.23 
              

11.36  
              

10.61  

  b) Supplementary Capital %  
                

1.66  
                

1.66  
                

1.40  
                

1.26  
                

1.26  

  c) Total Capital Fund % 13.53 12.22 13.63 
              

12.62  
              

11.87  

17 Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) % 2.86 2.27 2.16 
                

2.24  
                

2.40  

18 
Non-Performing Loans/Total Loans & 
Advances % 10.60 9.87 5.30 

      
4.11  

                
1.83  

19 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 
                

6.00  
                

5.58  
                

6.49  
                

8.81  
                

7.88  

20 Book Net worth  Rs.'000    4,955,611.85     4,691,774.37     4,627,622.07  
   

3,851,807.42  
   

2,656,556.04  

21 Total Shares Number 
  

26,120,797.50    26,120,797.50  
  

21,950,250.00  
  

16,950,000.00  
  

16,950,000.00  

22 Total Employee Number 
          

1,138.00  
          

1,136.00  
          

1,190.00  
          

1,143.00  
          

1,182.00  
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19,901 

20,742 

22,179 
22,672 22,738 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Number of Centers

374,535 
379,495 

397,596 

403,686 
399,723 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Number of Active Clients

219,136 221,634 
242,070 

222,309 

187,001 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Number of Loan Clients

11.85 

30.85 
30.25 

21.87 20.98 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Loan Disbursed (NRS. In 
Billion)

20.15 

24.08 

27.69 
25.75 25.81 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Loan Outstanding (NRS. In 
Billion)

13.34 
15.82 18.18 

19.11 20.19 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Savings & Deposits (NRS. In 
Billion)
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23.82 
26.54 

29.62 
27.92 28.31 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Total Assets (NRS. In Billion)

1.83%

4.11%
5.30%

9.87%
10.60%

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Non-Performing Loan (in 
Percentage)

2.43 

3.85 

4.63 4.69 
4.95 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Shareholders Fund (NRS. In 
Billion)

11.87%

12.62%
13.63%

12.22%

13.53%

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Capital Adequacy Ratio (in 
Percentage)

1.12%

4.48% 2.53%

0.61%
0.94%

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Average Return on Assets (in 
Percentage)

256.32

1,188.82

750.08

169.96
266.25

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Net Profit After Tax (NRS. In 
Million)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.55%

30.86%

16.21%

3.62%
5.37%

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Return on Equity (in 
Percentage)

1,015 

1,600 

1,099 

765 711.90 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Closing Price in Nepse (In NRS)

13.68

31.05

20
0 0

15.12

70.14

34.17 6.51
10.19

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Earnings Per Share & Dividend 
Per Share (In NRS)

15.23 

27.12 

24.12 

19.82 18.59 

2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Market Capitalization (NRS. In 
Billion)
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750.08
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ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cf=j= @)*)÷÷*! sf] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg ug{ g]kfn /fi6« a}+s s]Gb|Lo 
sfof{no n3'ljQ ;+:yf ;'kl/j]If0f ljefusf] ldlt @)*!÷)*÷@$  sf] kq ;+VofM 
n=lj=;=;'=lj=÷÷u}/–:ynut÷÷lgw{g pTyfg÷÷)*!÷*@ r= g+= !^^ sf] kq dfkm{t :jLs[lt lbg] ;Gbe{df 
hf/L lgb]{zgx¿sf] af/]df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)! sf] #@@ cf}+ 
a}7saf6 kfl/t k|To"Q/ .  

tkl;nM 

-s_ lgb]{zg adf]lhd ;+ul7t ;+:yfdf /x]sf] nufgL ljlgj]z x'g] k|lj|mofdf /x]sf] 5 .  

-v_ lgb]{zg adf]lhd shf{ ;"rgf ;DaGwL Joj:yfsf] kl/kfngf ul/g] 5 . 

-u_ lgb]{lzt Joj:yf adf]lhd ;]jf z'Ns ;DaGwL Joj:yfsf] kl/kfngf ul/g] 5 . 

-3_ lgb]{zg adf]lhd ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{g]5 .  

cGTodf, o; ;+:yfsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa, 
;f];Fu ;DalGwt cg';"rLx¿, n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg, nªkmd{ cl86 l/kf]6{ ;d]tsf] cfwf/df u}/–
:ynut ;'kl/j]If0f u/L dfu{ lgb]{zg k|fKt ePsf]df g]kfn /fi6« a}+s k|lt xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg 
ub{5f}+ .   
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>L z+s/ rf}w/L ;xfos Joj:yfks 023—578824 

>L ;'lgn s'df/ l;x ;xfos Joj:yfks  023—578824 

ddww]]zz  kk||bb]]zz              

 
If]qLo sfof{no, alb{jf;, dxf]Q/L 

 

>L z+s/ k|;fb Gof}kfg] jl/i7 Joj:yfks  044—550484, 550485 

>L clgn s'df/ ld> Joj:yfks  044—550484, 550485 

>L k|lbk s'df/ bf; ;xfos Joj:yfks  044—550484, 550485 

 >L x]dnfn a:ofn ;xfos Joj:yfks  044—550484, 550485 

If]qLo sfof{no, aL/u+h, k;f{ 
>L /fw]Zofd ;xfgL jl/i7 Joj:yfks 051—529651 

>L bfdf]b/ kf7s Joj:yfks 051—529651 

aaffuuddttLL  kk||bb]]zz        

 
If]qLo sfof{no, sf7df8f}+ 

>L lzj/fh /fjn jl/i7 Joj:yfks 01—4513797 

>L n]vgfy sfkm\n] ;xfos Joj:yfks 01—4513797 

If]qLo sfof{no, e/tk'/ >L k/d]Zj/ rf}w/L  jl/i7 Joj:yfks 056—523157  

uu0088ssLL  kk||bb]]zz          

If]qLo sfof{no, kf]v/f, sf:sL 
 

>L z'jf; rGb| b]jsf]6f jl/i7 Joj:yfks 061—541380 

>L k|]d k|;fb ;'j]bL ;xfos Joj:yfks 061—541380 

nn''llDDaaggLL  kk||bb]]zz        

If]qLo sfof{no, e}/xjf 
 
 

>L cfgGb s'df/ uf}td jl/i7 Joj:yfks 071—587242 

>L k'GofTdf k|;fb z'Sn Joj:yfks 071—587664  

>L o'j/fh ltldlN;gf  ;xfos Joj:yfks  071—587664 

If]qLo sfof{no sf]xnk'/, af+s] 
 

>L ldg axfb'/ xdfn Joj:yfks 081—541798 

>L a'l4 k|sfz l3ld/]  Joj:yfks 081—541798 

ss00ffff{{nnLL  kk||bb]]zz          

If]qLo sfof{no, lj/]Gb|gu/, ;'v]{t >L k'0f{ axfb'/ v8\sf Joj:yfks 083—523746 

;;''bb''//kkllZZrrdd  kk||bb]]zz        

If]qLo sfof{no, cQ/Lof, s}nfnL 
 

>L gj/fh hf]zL jl/i7 Joj:yfks 091—551260, 551261 

>L afa'/fd s08]n ;xfos Joj:yfks 091—551260, 551261 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

96 5lAa;f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷*!

-u_ zfvf sfof{nox? 
qqmm==;;++==  ZZffffvvff  ssffooff{{nnooxx??ssff]]  ggffdd,,  77]]uuffggff  ZZffffvvff  kk||dd''vvssff]]  ggffdd,,  kkbb  ;;DDkkss{{  kkmmff]]gg  
ssff]]zzLL    kk||bb]]zz  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  bbddss  ccGGttuu{{tt          

! km'ªlnË zfvf, tfKn]h'Ë >L vu]Gb km'ofFn, jl/i7 ;xfos 024—460629 

@ lkmlbd zfvf, kFfry/ >L od axfb'/ /fO{, ;'k/LIfs 024—522503 

# /la zfvf, kFfry/  >L u0f]z k|;fb bf;,;'k/LIfs 024—412131 

$ ofzf]s zfvf, kFfry/ >L ;+tf]if g]DjfË, jl/i7 ;xfos 024—413058 

% O{nfd zfvf, O{nfd >L dbg /fh cg5fËjf], ;'k/LIfs 027—521718 

^ lkmSsn zfvf,Onfd >L b]j]Gb| k|;fb ;+u|f}nf, ;'k/LIfs 027—540457 

& w'nfaf/L zfvf, emfkf >L ;lGbk s'df/ kl08t, ;'k/LIfs 023—564556 

* rGb|u9L zfvf, emfkf >L lzj s'df/ lai6, jl/i7 ;xfos 023—456895 

( ;'?Ëf zfvf, emfkf >L l/tfdfof tfdfª, ;'k/LIfs 023—552837 

!) uf}/fbx zfvf, emfkf >L ;'/]Gb| sfkm\n], jl/i7 ;xfos 023—480324 

!! bds zfvf, emfkf >L rGb|d0fL kf08], ;'k/LIfs 023—580824 

!@ ef]hk'/ zfvf, ef]hk'/ >L r'8fd0fL dfemL, ;'k/LIfs 029—420736 

!# vFfbjf/L zfvf, ;+v'jf;ef >L lagf]b g]DjfË, jl/i7 ;xfos 029—562954 

!$ r}gk'/ zfvf, ;+v'jf;ef >L ga/fh bfxfn, jl/i7 ;xfos 029—570370 

!% Dofªn'ª zfvf, t]Xy'd >L CZfL/fd /]ZdL du/, jl/i7 ;xfos 026—460724 

!^ lxn] zfvf, wgs'6f >L a}hgfy zdf{, ;'k/LIfs 026—540493 

!& la/f6gu/ zfvf, df]/Ë >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb vgfn, ;'k/LIfs 021—503353 

!* 6++lsl;g'jf/L zfvf, df]/Ë >L cf]d k|sfz sf]O/fnf, ;'k/LIfs 021—421207 

!( la/f6Rff]s zfvf, df]/Ë >L k[YjLgf/fo0f rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 021—545783 

@) sl;{of zfvf, df]/Ë >L o1 axfb'/ lji6, ;'k/LIfs 021—565248 

@! kf+rsGof zfvf, ;'g;/L >L uf]laGb k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;'k/LIfs 025—552131 

@@ em'Dsf zfvf, ;'g;/L >L ;l/tf u'?Ë, ;'k/LIfs 025—562339 

@# k|sfzk'/ zfvf, ;'g;/L >L Åbogf/fo0f ofbj, ;'k/LIfs 025—620001 

ddww]]zz  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo,,  aallbb{{jjff;;  ccGGttuu{{tt          

! a]N6f/ zfvf, pbok'/ >L dflqsf k|;fb e08f/L, ;'k/LIfs 035—440346 

@ d's{'rL zfvf, pbok'/ >L dfbj s'df/ Nxfof], ;'k/LIfs 035—410041 

# cf]vn9'Ëf zfvf, cf]vn9'Ëf >L b'uf{ k|;fb l3ld/], jl/i7 ;xfos 037—520055 

$ ;Nn]/L zfvf, ;f]n'v'Da' >L  CifL cfrfo{, ;'k/LIfs 038—520495 

% lbSt]n zfvf, vf]6fË >L pd]z s'df/ kGyL, jl/i7 ;xfos 036—420688 

^ xn];L zfvf, vf]6fË >L dgsfhL rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 036—410078 

& s~rgk'/ zfvf, ;Kt/L >L cho s'df/ d]xtf, ;'k/LIfs 031—560054 

* s7f}gf zfvf, ;Kt/L >L xl//fd dxtf], ;'k/LIfs 031—410018 

( af]b]a;f{Og zfvf, ;Kt/L >L b'vf /fo, jl/i7 ;xfos 031—446060 

!) nxfg zfvf, l;/xf >L ;/f]h s'df/ ofbj,Joj:yfks 033—561573 

!! ;'vLk'/ zfvf, l;/xf >L zDe' s'df/ ld>, ;'k/LIfs 9845686461 

!@ rf]xjf{ zfvf, l;/xf >L clg?4, s'df/ ofbj, ;'k/LIfs 033—401112 

!# alGbk'/ zfvf, l;/xf >L zlz s'df/ bf;, jl/i7 ;xfos 035—691257 

!$ wg'iffwfd zfvf, wg'iff >L b'uf{gGb s'df/ bf;, jl/i7 ;xfos 041—414008 

!% dx]Gb|gu/ zfvf, wg'iff >L /fd/tg a/O, ;'k/LIfs 041—540510 
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qqmm==;;++==  ZZffffvvff  ssffooff{{nnooxx??ssff]]  ggffdd,,  77]]uuffggff  ZZffffvvff  kk||dd''vvssff]]  ggffdd,,  kkbb  ;;DDkkss{{  kkmmff]]gg  
!^ ob'sfxf zfvf, wg'iff >L gGblszf]/ /fd, ;'k/LIfs 041—410084 

!& hgsk'/ zfvf, wg'iff >L gjsfGt ;fx, ;'k/LIfs 041—425977 

!* gu/fO{g zfvf, wg'iff >L lagf]b /fd, ;'k/LIfs 041—400061 

!( hn]Zj/ zfvf, dxf]Q/L >L sdn]z s'df/ d08n, ;'k/LIfs 044—520479 

@) nf]xf/k§L zfvf, dxf]Q/L >L /fd pb\uf/ ofbj, ;xfos Joj:yfks 9847041903 

@! cf}/xL zfvf, dxf]Q/L >L xl/ gf/fo0f ofbj, ;'k/LIfs 044—411055 

@@ uf}zfnf zfvf, dxf]Q/L >L x;d'l4gldof, ;xfos Joj:yfks 044—556085 

@# rf}lnvf zfvf, ;nf{xL >L sfd]Zj/ k|;fb s'zjfx, jl/i7 ;xfos 9864194079 

@$ gjnk'/ zfvf, ;nf{xL >L z/b rGb| l3ld/], ;'k/LIfs 046—570374 

@% uf]8}tf zfvf, ;nf{xL >L dxfgGb bf;, ;'k/LIfs 9806804611 

@^ a/xyjf zfvf, ;nf{xL >L /fdf1f /fd, ;'k/LIfs 046—540040 

@& alb{af; zfvf, dxf]Q/L >L x/]Gb| /fo ofbj, jl/i7 ;xfos 9807624439 

@* l5Ggd:tf zfvf, ;Kt/L >L k|bLk s'df/ bnf{dL, ;xfos 9807936631 

@( cf}/xL zfvf, l;/fxf >L wgL/fd yf?, ;xfos 9816574227 

ddww]]zz  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  aaLL//uu++hh  ccGGttuu{{tt          

! rGb|lgufxk'/ zfvf, /f}tx6 >L s[i0f axfb'/ bhL{, ;'k/LIfs 055—540341 

@ u?8f zfvf, /f}tx6 >L cf]d k|sfz s'df/ ;fx, ;'k/LIfs 055—565119 

# uf}/ zfvf, /f}tx6 >L lbks /fh e§/fO{, ;'k/LIfs 055—521179 

$ a;Gtk§L zfvf, /f}tx6 >L ls:dt cln k7fg, ;'k/LIfs 9855040587 

% l;d/f zfvf, af/f >L lx/fnfn lj=s=, ;'k/LIfs 053—521823 

^ sf]NxjL zfvf, af/f >L n]v axfb'/ ef6 If]qL , ;'k/LIfs 053—410041 

& u+hejfgLk'/ zfvf, af/f >L s[i0f sGx}of rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 053—401043 

* sn}of zfvf, af/f >L gf/fo0f Gof}kfg], ;'k/LIfs 053—551012 

( k|;f}gL zfvf, af/f >L ls/g s'df/ xl/hg, ;'k/LIfs 9855026080 

!) l;d|f}gu9 zfvf, af/f >L gGb'gfy s+j/ of]uL, ;'k/LIfs 053—411022 

!! t]ns'jf zfvf, af/f >L /fd /Iff ofbj, ;'k/LIfs 9855049276 

!@ la?jfu'7L zfvf, k;f{ >L /fdz+s/ sxf/, ;'k/LIfs 9864194079 

!# k/jfgLk'/ zfvf, af/f >L dfwj k|;fb uf}td, ;'k/LIfs 051—410040 

!$ >Lk'/ zfvf, k;f{ >L dsa'n vfg, ;'k/LIfs 051—528807 

!% jL/u+h zfvf, k;f{ >L r'NxfO{ gfy s+j/, ;'k/LIfs 051—531097 

!^ laGbjfl;gL zfvf, k;f{ >L k"0f{jf;L rf}w/L, ;xfos Joj:yfks 9847044913 

!& kf]v/Lof zfvf, k;f{ >L a[hdf]xg k|;fb u'Ktf, ;'k/LIfs 051—560008 

!* ljhoj:tL zfvf, k;f{ >L ltn k|;fb e§/fO{, ;'k/LIfs 053—691604 

aaffuuddttLL  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  ee//ttkk''//  ccGGttuu{{tt          

! e08f/f zfvf, lrtjg >L hd'gf s08]n, ;'k/LIfs 056—550111 

@ 6fF8L zfvf, lrtjg >L l6sf/fd lu/L, ;'k/LIfs 056—561674 

# e/tk'/ zfvf, lrtjg >L OGb|d0fL uf}td, ;xfos Joj:yfks 056—527709 

$ df8L zfvf, lrtjg >L aa'/ xdfn 7s'/L, ;'k/LIfs 056—501097 

% rgf}nL zfvf, lrtjg >L Hof]lt /fh /]UdL, ;'k/LIfs 056—592427 

^ d'ulnË zfvf, lrtjg >L /]zdnfn ltjf/L, ;'k/LIfs 056—540171 

& bnbn] zfvf, gjnk/f;L -k"j{_ >L zflGt ;fksf]6f, ;xfos Joj:yfks 078—575066 
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qqmm==;;++==  ZZffffvvff  ssffooff{{nnooxx??ssff]]  ggffdd,,  77]]uuffggff  ZZffffvvff  kk||dd''vvssff]]  ggffdd,,  kkbb  ;;DDkkss{{  kkmmff]]gg  
* x]6f}8f zfvf, dsjfgk'/ >L lj/ axfb'/ nfdf, ;'k/LIfs 057—526541 

aaffuuddttLL  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  ssff77ddff0088ff}}  ccGGtt{{uutt          

! kfn'Ë zfvf, dsjfgk'/ >L z}n]Gb| s'df/ kf08]o, ;'k/LIfs 057—693746 

@ sflnsf:yfg zfvf, /;'jf >L lbks s'df/ >]i7, jl/i7 ;xfos 010—542088 

# l9s'/] zfvf, g'jfsf]6 >L cd[tf kg]?, ;'k/LIfs 010—418043 

$ uN5L zfvf, wflbª >L ;'o{ axfb'/ Kofs'/]n, ;'k/LIfs 010—403017 

% lqk'/]Zj/ zfvf, wflbª >L k|]d k|;fb zdf{ rfkfufO{, ;'k/LIfs 010—521270 

^ blIf0fsfnL zfvf, sf7df08f} >L ab|L k|;fb clwsf/L, ;xfos Joj:yfks 014—710505 

& /fdsf]6 zfvf, sf7df08f} >L aGbgf 1jfnL, Joj:yfks 014—039612 

* ufunkm]bL zfvf, sf7df08f} >L sNkgf vgfn -kGyL_, ;'k/LIfs 014—156041 

( l6sfynL zfvf, nlntk'/  >L ;ldtf lg/f}nf, Joj:yfks 015—709430 

!) 7]rf] zfvf, nlntk'/  >L l/tf /]UdL, Joj:yfks 015—571107 

!! 5flnË zfvf, eQmk'/ >L t'n;L 8'd|], jl/i7 ;xfos 015—091020 

!@ 5q]jfem zfvf, sfe|]knfGrf]s >L lab'/ ;fksf]6f, ;'k/LIfs 011—413023 

!# gjnk'/ zfvf, l;Gw'kfNrf]s  >L ;lRrbfgGb dfemL, jl/i7 ;xfos 011—691246 

!$ h]7n zfvf, l;Gw'kfNrf]s  >L k|df]b kl08t, jl/i7 ;xfos 011—691235 

!% gfDb' zfvf, bf]nvf >L b'uf{ k|;fb a:ofn, ;'k/LIfs 049—690998 

!^ v'sf{]6 zfvf, l;Gw'nL >L z+s/ sfGt Gof}kfg], ;'k/LIfs 047—590450 

  !& ;f3'6f/ zfvf, /fd]5fk >L s]bf/ k|;fb vgfn, ;'k/LIfs 046—691920 

uu0088ssLL  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  kkff]]vv//ff  ccGGtt{{uutt      

! b'n]uf}8f zfvf, tgxF' >L nId0f 1jfnL, ;'k/LIfs 065—414260 

@ ufO{v'/ zfvf, uf]/vf >L d~h' k+u]gL, jl/i7 ;xfos 065—413087 

# b'O{lkKn] zfvf, ndh'ª >L /fd afj' /fgfef6, ;'k/LIfs 9862861090 

$ Rffd] zfvf, dgfª >L lbk]Gb| s'df/ u}/], jl/i7 ;xfos 066—440219 

% 3Ff;f zfvf, d':tfª >L k'?iff]Qd vgfn, ;'k/LIfs 068—690754 

^ kfltrf}/ zfvf, kj{t >L sNkgf yfkf, jl/i7 ;xfos 067—410005 

& /fxfn] zfvf, kj{t >L k|]d k|;fb h}zL, ;'k/LIfs 067—430067 

* aflaofrf}/ zfvf, DofUbL >L sns /fh jg, ;'k/LIfs 068—690755 

( kf]v/f zfvf, sf:sL >L lj/]Gb| k|;fb cfrfo{, ;'k/LIfs 061—533243 

!) vjf{Ë zfvf, afUn'Ë >L gljg u'?Ë, ;'k/LIfs 079—712125 

!! unsf]6 zfvf, afUn'Ë >L l8NnL/fd nfld5fg], jl/i7 ;xfos 068—412070 

!@ a'lt{jfË zfvf, afUn'Ë >L lbks axfb'/ lh=;L=, ;'k/LIfs 068—410023 

!# k'tnLahf/ zfvf, :ofËhf >L lhjnfn ;'j]bL, jl/i7 ;xfos 063—420922 

!$ jflnª zfvf, :ofËhf >L ;l/tf 1jfnL, ;'k/LIfs 063—440514 

!% uNofË zfvf, :ofËhf >L t'n;f kf08]o b]jsf]6f, Joj:yfks 063—460287 

nn''llDDaaggLL  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  ee}}//xxjjff  ccGGttuu{{tt          

! cfo{eGHofË zfvf, kfNkf >L sdn/fh 1jfnL, ;'k/LIfs 075—402064 

@ hJUffbL zfvf, kfNkf >L 1fgaxfb'/ bnf{dL -du/_, ;'k/LIfs 9847532379 

# 5x/f zfvf, kfNkf >L ldgf rfln;], ;'k/LIfs 9857031251 

$ aFf:6f/L zfvf, kfNkf >L z+s/ kf08]o, jl/i7 ;xfos 075—411090 

% hf]xfË zfvf, u'NdL >L 6f]s/fh a:ofn, ;'k/LIfs 079—411006 
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^ a]nf6f/L zfvf, gjnk/f;L >L nId0f ;fksf]6f, ;'k/LIfs 078—419088 

& bfpGg]b]jL zfvf, gjnk/f;L >L ;Gtf]if/fh kGt, ;'k/LIfs 9847317692 

* k/f;L zfvf, gjnk/f;L >L ;'wf/fgL >Ljf:tj, Joj:yfks 078—520297 

( wswO{ zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L ;'/]Gb| k|;fb rf}w/L, ;xfos Joj:yfks 071—411008 

!) e}/xjf zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L l;tf kf08]o Gof}kfg], Joj:yfks 071—587439 

!! demuFfjf zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L gGbnfn kfn, ;xfos Joj:yfks 071—401017 

!@ dxlhlbof zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L /fdlszf]/ rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 071—404003 

!# sf]6Lxjf zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L lg/h l;+x s'+j/, ;'k/LIfs 071—514188 

!$ x/}of zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L ;+uLtf s]=;L=, ;'k/LIfs 071—417018 

!% l;tngu/ zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L k|ltIff 1jfnL vgfn, ;'k/LIfs 071—577095 

!^ a'6jn zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L lhj/fh kf}8]n, ;'k/LIfs 071—546852 

!& km;f{l6s/ zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L z'l;n uf}td, ;'k/LIfs  071—400195 

!* /fdfk'/ zfvf, ?kGb]xL >L s[i0f axfb'/ yfkf, ;xfos Joj:yfks 071—440167 

!( cf]bf/L zfvf, slknj:t' >L O{Zj/ rGb rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 076—410008 

@) Oldlnof zfvf, slknj:t' >L lbks e§/fO{, ;xfos Joj:yfks 076—412086 

@! ;lGwvs{ zfvf, c3f{vFfrL >L dx]Gb| k|;fb rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 077—420793 

@@ s[i0fgu/ zfvf, slkna:t' >L /fd z/0f ofbj,;'k/LIfs 9847322655 

nn''llDDaaggLL  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo,,  ssff]]xxnnkk''//  ccGGttuu{{tt          

! lah'jf/ zfvf, Ko'7fg >L lblnk s'df/ /]UdL, ;'k/LIfs 086—460446 

@ le+u[ zfvf, Ko'7fg >L ch{'g k|;fb zdf{, ;'k/LIfs 086—400014 

# ;'lnrf}/ zfvf, /f]Nkf >L lagf]b s'df/ clwsf/L, ;'k/LIfs 086—401067 

$ h'uf/ zfvf, /f]Nkf >L dfg axfb'/ e08f/L, jl/i7 ;xfos 9858052863 

% l;;xlgof zfvf, bfª >L g]kfn rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 082—402042 

^ u9jf zfvf, bfª >L ?Ggtf uf}td, jl/i7 ;xfos 082—410021 

& 3f]/fxL zfvf, bfª >L a|DxfgGb lqkf7L, ;'k/LIfs 082—563333 

* t'N;Lk'/ zfvf, bfª >L wd{/fh a:ofn, ;'k/LIfs 082—522240 

( ?s'dsf]6 zfvf, ?s'd -k'j{_ >L lxdfn ;'j]bL, jl/i7 ;xfos 088—413096 

!) sf]xnk'/ zfvf, aFfs] >L la/]Gb| k|;fb rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs  081—540652 

!! /Ffemf zfvf, aFfs] >L ladn rGb, ;'k/LIfs 081—531642 

!@ pbok'/ zfvf, aFfs] >L czf]s kf7s, ;xfos Joj:yfks 081—526941 

!# k/:k'/ zfvf, aFfs] >L uf]kfn zdf{, jl/i7 ;xfos 081—521562 

!$ vh'/f zfvf, aFfs] >L k'ikf s'df/L ;'j]bL, Joj:yfks 081—560373 

!% kmQ]k'/ zfvf, aFfs] >L lgdaxfb'/ 3lt{du/, ;'k/LIfs 081—694926 

!^ aFf;u9L zfvf, alb{of >L pk]Gb| uf}td, ;'k/LIfs 084—400051 

!& /fhfk'/ zfvf, alb{of >L nIdL zdf{ pkfWofo, jl/i7 ;xfos 084—460102 

!* u'n/Lof zfvf, alb{of >L dlg/fd yf?, ;'k/LIfs 084—421147 

!( e'l/uFfp zfvf, alb{of >L /fd k|;fb e';fn,;'k/LIfs 084—403031 

ss00ffff{{nnLL  kk||bb]]zz  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  llaa//]]GGbb||gguu//  ccGGtt{{uutt      

! ;NnLahf/ zfvf, ;Nofg >L km'ln/fd rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 088—411014 

@ rf}/hxf/L zfvf, ?s'd >L lbk]Gb| s'df/ rf}w/L, jl/i7 ;xfos 088—401052 

# vnËf zfvf, hfh/sf]6 >L ;h]Gb| s'df/ ofbj, jl/i7 ;xfos 089—430316 
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qqmm==;;++==  ZZffffvvff  ssffooff{{nnooxx??ssff]]  ggffdd,,  77]]uuffggff  ZZffffvvff  kk||dd''vvssff]]  ggffdd,,  kkbb  ;;DDkkss{{  kkmmff]]gg  
$ 8f]Nkf zfvf, 8f]Nkf >L rGb|z]v/ af]x/f, jl/i7 ;xfos 087—550118 

% udu9L zfvf, d'u' >L z}n]Gb| zfx, jl/i7 ;xfos 087—460247 

^ l;ldsf]6 zfvf, x'Dnf >L s'df/ Gof}kfg], jl/i7 ;xfos 087—680245 

& h'Dnf zfvf, h'Dnf >L s[i0f Gof}kfg], ;'k/LIfs 087—520488 

* l;+hf zfvf, h'Dnf >L /ljls/0f uf}td, jl/i7 ;xfos 9847827693 

( dfGdf zfvf, sflnsf]6 >L cf]dk|sfz xl/hg, jl/i7 ;xfos 087—440259 

!) b'Nn' zfvf, b}n]v >L /d]z s'df/ cfrfo{, ;'k/LIfs 089—411051 

!! gf/fo0f zfvf, b}n]v >L w|'j k|;fb kf}8]n, ;'k/LIfs 089—410057 

!@ laBfk'/ zfvf, ;'v{]t >L gf/fo0f k|;fb pkfWofo, ;'k/LIfs 9857833576 

!# la/]Gb|gu/ zfvf, ;'v{]t >L lednfn kf]v|]n,;xfos Aoa:yfks 083—523342 

!$ hx/] zfvf, ;'v{]t  >L ;'lzn zdf{, ;'k/LIfs 083—413058 

;;''bb''//kkllZZrrdd  kk||bb]]zz,,  IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnoo  ccQQll//ooff  ccGGtt{{uutt      

! nDsL zfvf, s}nfnL >L pdgfy ltldlN;gf, ;'k/LIfs 091—540321 

@ km'njf/L zfvf, s}nfnL >L xl/ k|;fb hf]zL, ;'k/LIfs 091—505055 

# l6sfk'/ zfvf, s}nfnL >L nIdL kf}8]n, ;'k/LIfs 091—561396 

$ hf]zLk'/ zfvf, s}nfnL >L /fd r/0f rf}w/L, jl/i7 ;xfos 091—401081 

% d;'l/of zfvf, s}nfnL >L ;+ho rf}w/L, ;'k/LIfs 091—402114 

^ ;'Vv8 zfvf, s}nfnL >L v]d s'df/L e08f/L, ;'k/LIfs 091—403042 

& cQl/of zfvf, s}nfnL >L cflzif s'df/ >]i7, ;'k/LIfs 091—550471 

* emnf/L zfvf, s~rgk'/ >L x/Laf]n e§/fO{, jl/i7 ;xfos 099—540201 

( a]nf}/L zfvf, s~rgk'/ >L dgf]h s'df/ clwsf/L, ;'k/LIfs 099—580043 

!) dx]Gb|gu/ zfvf, s~rgk'/ >L z]v/ rGb| kf}8]n, jl/i7 ;xfos 099—520570 

!! :jf:Yorf}sLahf/ zfvf, s~rgk'/ >L uf}td 1fg yfkf, ;'k/LIfs 099—400026 

!@ hf]ua'9f zfvf, 88]nw'/f >L gf/fo0f e't]{n, ;'k/LIfs 096—411045 

!# cd/u9L zfvf, 88]nw'/f >L /f]dxif{ e08f/L, ;'k/LIfs  096—420269 

!$ l;nu9L zfvf, 8f]6L >L wg s[i0f e§, ;'k/LIfs 094—420079 

!% d+un;]g zfvf, c5fd >L dg' cof{n, jl/i7 ;xfos 097—620374 

!^ ;f+km]au/ zfvf, c5fd >L df]xg nfn uf}td, jl/i7 ;xfos 097—625148 

!& dft{8L zfvf, afh'/f  >L lxdfno ;'j]bL, jl/i7 ;xfos 097—541252 

!* r}gk'/ zfvf, aemfË >L jvt axfb'/ /fjn, jl/i7 ;xfos  092—421392 

!( bz/yrGb zfvf, a}t8L  >L u]x]Gb| k|;fb zdf{, jl/i7 ;xfos 095—520323 

@) uf]s'n]Zj/ zfvf, bfr{'nf >L l;+x axfb'/ rf}w/L, jl/i7 ;xfos 093—400083 
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;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfkm\gf] k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug]{ lgj]bg -k|f]S;L kmf/d_

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt
lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

gS;fn, sf7df8f}F

laifo M k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] . 

dxfzo, 

======================================= lhNnf ======================= d=g=kf=÷p=d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷uf=kf=- ;fljs ===================_ 

j8f g+= ============= a:g] d÷xfdL =========================================== To; ;+:yf÷sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ldlt 

@)*! ;fn kf}if @^ ut] z'qmjf/sf lbg x'g] @^cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf d ÷ xfdL :jod\ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf 

;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pSt ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf] nflu ================== lhNnf 

=========================== d=g=kf=÷p=d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷uf=kf=- ;fljs ===================_ j8f g+= =============a:g] To; 

;+:yf÷sDkgLsf z]owgL >L ======================================== z]o/ wgL kl/ro g+============================= lxtu|fxL 

-l8Dof6_ vftf g+= ================================ nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw dgf]lgt u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ . 

k|f]S;L lng]sf] x:tfIf/ gd'gf M================  	

lgj]bs 

k|f]S;L lbg]sf] gfd M 

7]ufgf M

k|f]S;L lbg]sf] ;xL M 

z]o/wgL kl/ro g+=÷BOID No M===============  

z]o/ ;+Vof M 

z]o/ ;d"x M 

ldlt M 

-of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g'eGbf $* 306f cufj} ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no gS;fn sf7df8f}+df btf{ ul/;Sg' kg]{ 5 ._ 
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;+:yfsf]]   ;fdflhs pQ/  bfloTj;“u ;DalGwt sfo{  qmdx¿

sDkgL ;lrj
hUo k|;fb kGt

lg/h s'df/ a:g]t -8lgn_
;~rfns

k|ltlglwTj M glan a}+s lnld6]8

s[i0f s'df/ k|wfg
;~rfns

k|ltlglwTj M :jtGq Joj;flos ljz]if1

b]j]Gb| axfb'/ /fpt
;~rfns

k|ltlglwTj M ;+:yfks z]o/wgL

;Gtf]if s'df/ e§/fO{
;~rfns

k|ltlglwTj M Pe/]i6 a}+s lnld6]8

6f]k axfb'/ /fodfemL
;~rfns

k|ltlglwTj M ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL

;ld|tf ltjf/L
;~rfns

k|ltlglwTj M ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL

xl/ s[i0f kGt
cWoIf

k|ltlglwTj M ;+:yfks z]o/wgL

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no vfFbjf/L, ;+v'jf;efsL ;b:o 
lalgiff /fO{nfO{ ;'Ts]/L vr{ k|bfg ub}{ zfvfsL sd{rf/L

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no t'n;Lk'/, bfªsL ;b:o slb 3lt{sf] d[To" kZrft lghsf] 

klt 7u axfb'/ 3lt{nfO{ aLdf Ifltk"lt{ /sd k|bfg ub}{ j8fWoIf >L z';L/fd rf}w/L 

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no ;f+3'6f/, /fd]5fkåf/f ;b:o g/dfof sfsL{ v8\sfsL 
5f]/L ;lagf v8\sfsf] d'6'sf] eNj ck/]zgsf nflu /fxt k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no Oldlnof, slknj:t'sL ;b:o cf/tL 
b]lj ljZjsdf{ t/sf/L v]tL Joj;fo ub}{

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no ;f+km]au/, c5fdsL ;b:o piff zfxsf] 
5f]/f ;+:sf/ h+u zfxnfO{ 5fqj[lQ k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no d'lUnË, lrtjgsL ;b:o ;'s' 3n] 
s'v'/fkfng Joj;fo ;~rfng ub}{ 

;+:yfdf cfj4 n3'pBdLx¿n] ;~rfng u/]sf] kl/of]hgf

zfvf sfof{no /fdfk'/, ?kGb]xLaf6 ;~rflnt ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmddf 
;xefuL ;b:o tyf sd{rf/Lx¿

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no alGbk'/, l;/fxfåf/f ;~rflnt Jofj;flos 
t/sf/L v]tL tflnddf ;xefuL ;b:o tyf sd{rf/Lx¿ 

;+:yfåf/f ;+rflnt sfo{qmdx¿
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klRr;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf emnsx¿

;+:yfsf] ;fdflhs pQ/  bfloTj;“u ;DalGwt sfo{  qmdx¿

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no, h'DnfsL ;b:o ;'lgtf yfkfnfO{ 
;'Ts]/L vr{ k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no u?8f, /f}tx6sL ;b:o ktl;of b]ljsL 
5f]/L l;df s'df/LnfO{ 5fqj[lQ  k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no a'lt{jfª, afUn'ª4f/f afl9 klx/f]af6 kLl8t ;b:o rlg 
sfdLnfO{ /fxt vr{ k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v 

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no d+un;]g, c5fdsL ;b:o hdgfb]lj bdfO{sf] klt v8s axfb'/sf] 
d[To' kZrft lghnfO{ aLdf Ifltk"lt{ /sd k|bfg ub}{ zfvf k|d'v

;+:yfsf] zfvf sfof{no afF;u9L, alb{of cGt{ut ;~rflnt zfGtLgu/ dlxnf ;
d"xsf] a}7s

;~rfng
x'Fb}

-g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf_
eujtLaxfn, gS;fn, sf7df08f}, g]kfn, kmf]g g+= M (&&–!–$%!#*$), $%!#&($

O{d]n M info@nirdhan.com.np, j]j;fO6 M www.nirdhan.com.np

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

;+:yfsf] @%cf+} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt ;+:yfsf cWoIf, 
;+rfnsx¿ / k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

;+:yfsf] @%cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf dGtJo /fVg] z]o/wgLx¿ afofFaf6 j|mdzM >L 8Da? 

aNne l3ld/], >L ;q'3g >]i7, >L ;'bLk >]i7, >L uf]ljGb s]=;L= / >L lg?kdf u'Ktf  

;+:yfsf] If]qLo tyf zfvf sfof{no bds, emfkfsf sd{rf/Lx¿;Fu 
;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIf, >L xl/ s[i0f kGt

g]zgn a}+lsË OlG:6Ro'6 lnld6]8n] cfof]hgf u/]sf] hf]lvddf cfwfl/t cfGtl/s
n]vfk/LIf0f tflnddf ;xefuL ;+:yfsf Joj:yfksLo >]0fLsf sd{rf/Lx¿ 

cWoIfåf/f zfvf lelh6 sd{rf/L Ifdtf clej[l4 tflnd


